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HEARING ON THE REAUTHORIZATION OF THE
OLDER AMERICAN VOLUNTEER PROGRAMS

FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 1989

U.S. HouSE oF REPRESENTATIVES.
SUBCOMMITTEE oN HUMAN RESOURCES,
CoMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10:00 a.m., in Room
2257, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon.. Dale E. Kildee [chair-
man of the subcommittee] presiding.

G Me:inbers present: Representatives Kildee, Unsoeld, Poshard, and
randy.

Staff present: Susan A. Wilhelm, staff director; Chris Jacobs, leg-
islative director; Thomas Kelley, legislative associate: Carol Behrer,
professional staff member; Nita Orr, legislative assistant; Jay
Horstman, legislative assistant; Margaret Kajeckas, clerk/legisla-
tive assistant; and Lynn Selmser, professional staff member.

Mr. KiLbee. Not so much as a Congressman, but as a former
teacher, we will start right on time.

The Subcommittee on Human Resources meets today to hear tes-
timony on the reauthorization of the three Older American Volun-
teer Programs.

These are the Retired Senior Volunteer Program, better known
as RSVP; the Foster Grandparent Program; and the Senior Com-
panion Program.

The Older American Volunteer Program, authorized under Title
IT of the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973, are among the
most popular programs operated by the Federal Government today.

I have often stated that the role of Government is to promote,
protect, defend, and enhance hum in dignity.

Older American Volunteer Programs certainiy promote, protect,
defend, and enhance the human dignity of the elderly by offering
them the opportunity to continue to contribute in a meaningful
way to their communities.

gver 400,000 older persons took advantage of that opportunity in
1988.

Through a wide range of volunteer activities, these programs
provide assistance to virtually every age group—in schools, hospi-
tals, homes, and institutions.

Since its inception 20 years ago, the Foster Grandparent Pro-
gram has enabled low-income elderly age 60 and over to work 20
hours per week on a one-to-one basis to provide support to children
with physical, mental, emotional, or social disabilities.
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Senior companions also work on a one-to-one basis with home-
bound, chronically disabled older persons so that they may contin-
ue to live independently in their own homes.

Both senior companions and foster grandparents receive a small
stipend and reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses while they
are working.

RSVP provides vclunteer opportunities to all elderly persons
over age 60.

RSVP volunteers serve in a variety of areas, including youth
counseling, literacy enhancement, long-term care, crime preven-
tion, refugee assistance, housing rehabilitation, and drug abuse pre-
vention.

That is a short list of the various things they are involved in.

I have always been impressed whenever 1 visit those people.
They inspire and re-energize me when I visit them.

The programs have a dual purpose.

On the one hand, communities benefit from the considerable ex-
perience and talents of these older people.

On the other hand, the older participants find opportunities for
useful participation through community contributions.

Today we will be hearing from program directors as well as vol-
unteers, and also from those who administer the programs here in
Washington.

1 want to emphasize that this is the Congress—not Mount Sinai.

Our laws can always be improved.

We welcome your suggestions as to how to improve these pro-
grams.

These programs are dynamic, and we can always find ways of
better responding to the ever-changing needs of our society and in-
corporating the new ideas that we gather as we gain experience
with these programs.

Before proceeding, 1 would like to recognize other members of
the subcommittee for opening statements.

We have a freshman Member of Congress and a fresh member of
this committee, but not someone who is new to Government, Con-
gresswoman Unsoeld.

Mrs. UnsoeLD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

1 would like to express my delight at being on this committee
and being able to work with you and my pleasure at being able to
learn from all of you who on a day-to-day basis are the ones who
are working with these issues and with these problems.

I am really looking forward to this hearing.

Mr. KiLbEE. Thank you very much.

I have always said that these hearings often are the equivalent
of a masters degree and I still say that.

1 am on the Budget Committee now and those hearings are like
getting a Ph.D.

Working on that committee and this committee really brings the
two together because we know there are budgetary implications in
all the programs.

Mr. Kiipgg. Our first witness is Ms. Donna Alvarado, Director of
the ACTION agerncy which administers the Older American Volun-
teer Programs.

Thank you for your cooperation with this subcommittee.
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I am also very grateful to Nora Manning back there who has
been very, very helpful to this committee, very cooperative, coop-
eration along with Nancy Denholm.

You have good ambassadors on the Hill for you.

You may proceed.

STATEMENT OF DONNA M. ALVARADO, DIRECTOR, ACTION; AC-
COMPANIED BY JANE A. KENNY, DEPUTY DIRECTOR, ACTION;
ROLAND A. GOODMAN, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR FOR MANAGE-
MENT AND BUDGET, ACTION; AND LOWELL B. GENEBACH, JR,,
PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT OFFICER, ACTION

Ms. ALvarapo. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am pleased to appear before the subcommittee today to discuss
the reauthorization of the Domestic Volunteer Service Act and to
share with you some of the exciting contributions that volunteers
are making in our Nation’s efforts to respond to critical needs of
individuals and communities, and particularly we will focus on the
contribution of older volunteers.

I would like to introduce my colleagues at the table: Jane Kenny,
the Deputy Director of ACTION: Roland Goodman, the Associate
Director for Management and Budget of the Agency; and Lowell
Genebach, the Director of the Planning and Management Division
within ACTION.

'The ACTION agency reauthorization bill for fiscal year 1993 is
currently being reviewed by the OMB and will be forwarded to the
Congress in the very near future, hopefully next week.

Our authorization levels for 1990 will reflect the Reagan Admin-
istration budget submission which includes $114,925,000 for the
Older American Volunteer Programs and $27,875,000 for program
administration with the understanding that those levels are subject
to negotiations with Congress.

From working in the vital area of drug abuse prevention and
education, to reducing illiteracy, to providing much-needed respite
services to family care givers, our Older American Volunteers are
demonstrating that the personal giving of time, of talent, and of
caring can truly make a difference in our communities and in the
quality of 1ifz for the senior volunteers themselves.

A January 1989 report published by the Independent Sector re-
ports that 80 million Americans provide a total of 14.90 billion
hours of voluntary service annually.

[Material supplied for the record follows.]
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Apral 26, 1989

Honorable Dale E. Kildee

Chairman, Subcommittee on Human Resources,
Committee on Education ang Labrr

House of Representatives

washington, D.C. 26515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

I nave already submitted the corrections of the transcript of
my testimpony at the February 24, 1989 nearing. In adaition, I
wish to clarify my testimony as to the total nunoer ot hours
volunteered by 80 millaion adults.

In my testimony I stated that “14.9 billion hours of voluntazy
service annually 1s given”. That figure reflects only tne
formal velunteering done annually and does not reflect the five
billion additional hours which are given on an ad hoc pasis.

To quote the Independent Sector 1988 annual report, "It 1S
estimated that 80 million adults gave a total of 19.5 ballion
hours in both formal and informal volunteering.”

As the federal Domestic volunteer Agency, ACTION wants to
expara and incluae all volunteezing, to encourage giving
service in all ways.

Therefore on page 8, line 156, 1 woula like to have the record
reflect those who also volunteer on an informal basis, ang have
the figure of 19.5 b1llion hours stana as che official number.

sincerely,

Donna M. Alvarade
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This underscores the vital role that ACTION, the Federal domes-
tic volunteer agency must continue to provide through its own pro-
grams to meet continuing emerging chailenges, as well as t¢ pro-
mote advocate and support voluntary effor.s of individuals and pri-
vate organizations.

For these reasons, we are requesting that the Domestic Volun-
teer Service Act be reauthorized for three years.

I would like to highlight some of the accomplishments and dis-
cuss the current status of our Title II programs.

In fiscal year 1988, almost 470,000 volunteers served in AC-
TION’s programs. The three Older American Volunteer Programs,
the Foster Grandparents, Senior Companions, and RSVP fielded
approximately 436,000 volunteers, which compromises 93 percent of
all ACTION-funded volunteers.

In 1,144 local projects in all states, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Is-
lands, and the District of Columbia, these older volunteers contrib-
uted over 100 million hours of service to their communities in such
diverse areas as lending managerial expertise to public and private
non-profit organizations and providing traditional tender loving
care to the so-called “boarder babies,” infants born with AIDS or
drug addiction who have been virtually abandoned in pediatric
wards and hospitals.

In furtherance of our mission, the agency has actively encour-
aged collaboration with ot™:r Federal agencies, state and local gov-
ernments, and the private sector.

In calendar year 1987, total non-ACTION funding sources con-
tributed $60.8 million to local projects of the Older American Vol-
unteer Programs.

This amount is an approximate 8 percent increase over calendar
year 1986 and represents the fact that approximately 55 percent of
the Federal funding for Older American Volunteer Programs is
matched by non-ACTION funding.

Within the Foster Grandparents Progrum in fiscal year 1988, ap-
proximately 26,900 Foster Grandparents in 252 projects across the
country provided their special kind of loving attention to over
68,000 children and youth.

In fiscal year 1989, we plan o fund approximately 10 new
projects with 700 volunteer service years. Foster Grandparents are
found in diverse projects, from tutoring young offenders in deten-
tion facilities to providing encouragement and rewards at a Special
Olympics event. For example, in Grand Rapids, Michigan and sur-
rounding Kent County, Foster Grandparents serve in 22 different
child care settings including elementary and special education
classrooms, Headstart and day care centers as well as group homes.

In December, the agency formally instituted a special program-
ming area when we signed an interagency agreement with the De-
partment of Defense. The agreement is intendcd to extend Foster
Grandparent services to military dependent children with special
and exceptional needs at a variety of DOD facilities nationwide.
Currently, an estimated 35 Foster Grandparents in 5 installations
are serving such children. With over 60 military installations locat-
ed within the service area of a Foster Grandparent project, the po-
tentiai for expansion of services is great and we are pleased with
the support this has been given from top leaders of DOD, and we

ERIC J
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hope they will utilize more of their resources in supporting the
Foster Grandparent Program.

In calendar year 1987, approximately $23 million from non-
ACTION sources enabled the program to support 2,500 volunteer
service years. 2.6 million hours of service to approximately 9,000
children, services that we could not provide if we relied on Federal
appropriations alone.

Regarding the Retired Senior Volunteer Program, Mr. Chairman,
older volunteers can do almost anything and the Retired Senior
Volunteer Program proves that. Congressman Tauke, the Ranking
Minority Member of this subcommittee, is particularly aware of
Just how capable RSVP volunteers are since his father is an RSVP
volunteer in a Dubuque project. In fiscal year 1988, over 397,000
RSVP volunteers in 750 local projects provided over 72 million
hours of service to approximately 43,000 local organizations. Count-
less individuals, from home-bound elderly and disabled persons re-
ceiving home-delivered meals to veterans being discharged from
medical centers, to school children reaffirming their commitment
to Just Say No to drugs have benefited from the service of RSVP
volunteers.

To illustrate, the RSVP of Louisville and Jefferson County, Ken-
tucky sponsors activities in the two critical areas of homelessness/
hunger and illiteracy: The St. Boniface Church Inner City Soup
Kitchen has expanded its operation since 1983, with the help of
RSVP, from sandwich handouts each noon to providing a sit-down
hot meal every day. With one paid staff member, a core of 15
RSVP volunteers serves over 36,000 hot meals a year to hungry
and homeless persons. Ten RSVP volunteers, assigned to the public
school system, tutor in inner city schools with students requiring
special reading assistance. In addition, another group of volunteers
prepare special introductory math kits designed by a local school
instructor for use in the first and second grades. Over 800 other
volunteers are serving in a wide variety of other activities.

In the intergenerational area, two projects in lowa represent dis-
tinct approaches. In Cedar Rapids, abused and neglected children
receiving treatment at Four Oaks, Inc. are served individually by
volunteers. In Clinton County, the communities’ schools, the police
department, and RSVP sponsor a child watch program to ensure
the safety of children going to and from school.

In an attempt to impact on the growing dilemma of child care,
an intergenerational library assistance project was established
through implementation of an interagency agreement '-stween
ACTION and the Naticnal Commission on Libraries and Iaforma-
tion Science. One-year seed grants were awarded to 14 RSVP
projects to place 300 volunteers to assist public library staff in pro-
viding services to the increasing number or unattended children
using the libraries during non-school hours.

Another intergenerational approach is in the drug abuse educa-
tion and prevention area. As the committee may know, ACTION is
in partnership with the Just Say Nc¢ Foundation. In fiscal year
1988, 19 RSVP projects received component grants to support over
300 volunteers working with Just Say No clubs in schools, public
housing and other setungs.

FATRY
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Committee members should also know that local RSVP projects
continue to receive overwhelming support from state and local
public sources as well as from the private sector. Non-ACTION sup-
port increased over 13 percent in calendar year 1987 to a total of
$27.1 million. Approximately $5.1 million comes from state govern-
ments. City and county governments provide over 35 percent of
RSVP’s non-ACTION funding, and $12.4 million is generated by
the private sector, which represents an increase in the private
sector contributions of 91.5 over a 5-year period, and 325 localities
have allocated $3.2 million from the United Way to local RSVP
projects. Non-ACTION resources equal 88 percent of ACTION fund-
ing for RSVP, truly a great success story in terms of public-private
partnership.

The Senior Companion Program experienced a 45 percent growth
in the number of local projects in fiscal year 1988. Forty-four new
projects with 1,800 volunteer service years were established. Over
30,000 adults received personal care and peer support from over
11,500 volunteers in 142 local projects.

Non-ACTION support for Senior Companions continues to
expand. In calendar year 1987, these sources contributed $10.7 mil-
lion. Over 60 percent is generated by state governments. The pri-
vate sector contributed $2.3 million. Non-ACTION resources
equaled 46 percent of the ACTION funding to senior companions.

I would point out that with Senior Companions and Foster
Grandparents, the required match is only 10 percent. For RSVP
the required match is only 30 percent. So these programs are doing
an outstanding job and great credit goes to the project directors,
the sponsors, the local advisory councils, and to the ACTION staff
who support them in these activities.

Daily these SCP volunteers enhance the capacity of older persons
to remain in their own homes by providing assistance with the ac-
tivities of daily living. The assistance can be dramatic at times.

In Houston, Texas, a 63-year-old Senior Companion provides res-
pite care to an older couple. Through the Sheltering Arms Senior
Companion Program, care-giving is directed to a 66-year-old wornan
who has suffered from Alzheimer’s disease for 5 years. The volun-
teer assists with feeding and dressing and provides companionship.
Her client’s daughter reports that the consistent caring presence of
the volunteer has reduced her mother’s episodes of night wander-
ing and agitation.

ACTION and the Veterans Administration executed an inter-
agency agreemenc on June 23, 1988. This agreement formalized a
close working relationship between the agencies for several years.
Both RSVP and Senior Companions are involved in providing in-
home services to older veterans. A total of 31 Senior Companion
projects with 179 volunteers are serving approximately 65 veterans
and 3 RSVP projects with 45 volunteers received funding to sup-
port in-home services to veterans.

Another partnership initiated during the past two vears is with
the Alzheimer’s Disease and Related Disorders Association,
ADRDA. The partnership has resulted in two-year component
funding for nine Senior Companion Programs with a total of 43 vol-
unteer service years annually. These volunteers are providing criti-
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cally needed respite care for family caregivers. ADRDA chapters
assist in training of volunteers and selecting clients.

I would like to close by providing the subcommittee with a per-
sonal observation. In the four years that I have served as Director
of ACTION, I have been very privileged to see first hand the count-
less ways that our older population contributes to the well being of
the less fortunate in our communities. Whether the volunteer is a
disabled nursing home resident nearing 100 years of age who is as-
sisting a fund-raising effort of a local homeless shelter, or an ath-
letic 60-year-old engaged in a foot race with an energetic four-—ear-
old, I have been continually impressed by the contribution our sen-
iors make to Americans in all walks of life.

Mr. Chairman, as you mentioned in your remarks, I too have
been personally marked in a very positive way by my experience
with the Older American Volunteers during my tenire as Director
of ACTION. I sincerely believe I have received 1auch more from
them than I have been able to give, and it has been a real privilege
to be able to come into contact with the many volunteers I have
met. The partnerships I have seen in the local communities be-
tween thc advisory councils, the local business community, the
project directors, the sponsors, and the ACTION staff, show me
that truly the Older American Volunteer Programs are among the
most successf1l Federal programs that we have operating under
the auspices of the Government today.

As was recently illustrated by a poster commemorating the Re-
tired Senior Volunteer Program, we firmly believe that “Some So-
lutions are Ageless.”

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KiLpgg. Thank you for your fine testimony.

[The prepared statement of Donna M. Alvarado follows:]
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OPENING STATEMENT BY ACTION DIRECTUR
DONNA M. ALVARADO

BEFORE HOUSE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES
Friday, February 24, 1989

I am pleased to appear before the subcommittee today to

to discuss the reauthorization of the Domestic Velunteer
Service Act and share with you some of the exciting
contributions that volunteers are making i1n our Nation's
efforts to respond to critical needs of individuals

and communities. From working :n the vital area of drug abuse
preventior. and education, to reducing 1lliteracy, to providing
much needed respite services to family caregivers, countless
volunteers are demonstrating that the personal giving of tire,

of taleat and of caring can rake a difference i1n cur ccmmunities.

In FY 1588, almost 470,000 volunteers served in ACTION programs
throughout the country. From Guam to Maine, teens to
centenarians from all races and ecoriomic backgrounds daily
demonstrate the tremendous power that individual and collective
voluntary actions help enable communities and individual
Americans to address a wide range of our national concerns
including child care, homelessness and hunger, illiteracy and

substance abuse, and "at risk" persons of all ages.

Y,

o

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

A January 1989 report published by the Independent Sector
reports 80 million Americans provide a total of 14.9 billion
hours of volunteer service annually. This underscores the
vital role that ACTION, the Federal domestic volunteer agency,
must continue to provide through its own programs to meet
continuing emerging challenges, as well as to promote,
advocate and support voluntary efforts of individuals and
public and private orgamizations. For these reasons, we

are requesting that the Domestic Volunteer Service Act be

reauthorized for three years.

At this time, I would like to highlight some of the accomplishments
and discuss the current status of our Tatle II Programs, which are of

particular interest to tne subcommittee.

In Fy 1988, the three Older American volunteer Programs,

the Foster Grandparent Program, the Semior Companion Program
and the Retired Semior Volunteer Program fielded

approximately 436,000 volunteers (93% of all ACTION funded
volunteers) in 1,144 local projects in all States, Puerto Rico,
the Virgin Islands, and the District of Columbia. These older
volunteers contributed over 100 million hours of service to
their communitie~ 1n such diverse areas as lending managerial

expertise to public and private
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non-profit organizations, and provading traditional "TLC" to
the so-called "Boarder Babies", infants born with AIDS and or
drug addiction who have been virtually abandoned in pediatric

wards of hospitals.

In furtherance of our mission, the Agency has actively
encouraged collaboration with other Pederal agencies, state and
local governments and the private sector. In calendar year
1987, tctal non-ACTION funding sources contributed $60.8
million to local projects of the Older American Volunteer
Programs. This amount is an approximate 8% increase over
calendar year 1986 and represents approximately 55% of the

Federal funding level.

FOSTER GRANDPARENT PROGRAM

In FY 1988 approximately 26,900 Foster Grandparents in 252
preojects across the country provided their special kind of
loving attention to over 68,000 children and youth. 1In FY 1989
we plan to fund approximately 10 new projects with 700

volunteer service years.

Foster Grandparents are found cradling failure-to-thrive
babies and abused children in hospital wards, tutoring young
status offenders at juvenile detention facilities and providing

encouragement and rewards at a Special Olympics event.
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For example, in Grand Rapids, Michigan and surrounding Kent County,
74 Foster Grandparents serve in 22 different child care
settings. Those include elementary and special education

clessrooms, Head Start and Jay care centers, and group homes.

In terms of creative policy, in December, the Agency formally
instituted a special programming area when we signed an Interagency
Agreement with the Department of Defense. The Agreement 1s

is intended to extend Foster Grandparent services to military
dependent children with special and exceptional needs at a

variety of DOD facilities nationwide. Currently an estimated

35 Foster Grandparents in five installa*tions are serving

such children. With over 60 military installations located

within the service area of an FGP project, the potential for

expansion of services is great.

Contributions from non-federal public agencies, the non-profit
and private sectors continue to be an important element of

Foster Grandparent Program. In calendar year 1987, approximately
$23 millaon from non-ACTION sources enabled the program to
support 2,500 volunteer service years, 2.6 million hours of

service to approximately 9,000 children.
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Retired Senior Volunteer Program

Mr. Chairman, volunteers can do almost anything, and the
Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), ACTION's largest
program, proves that. Congressman Tauke 1s particularly aware
of just how capable RSVP volunteers are since his father is one
with our Dubuque project. 1In FY 1988, over 397,000 volunteers
in 750 local projects provided over 72 million hours of service
to approximately 43,000 local organizations. Countless
individuals, from homebound elderly and disabled persons
receiving home delivered meals, to veterans being discharged
from medical centers, to school children reaffirming their
commitment to "Just Say No", have benefited from the service of

RSVP volunteeers.

To 1llustrate, the RSVF of Louisville and Jeffecrson County,

Rentucky sponsors activities in the two cratical areas

of homelessness/hunger and illiteracy:

- The St. Boniface Church Inner City Soup Ritchen has
expanded its operation since 1983, with the help of RSVP,
from sandwich handouts each noon to providing a sit-down
hot meal every day. With one paid staff member, a core of
15 RSVP volunteers serves over 36,000 hot meals a year to

hungry and homeless persons.

-2
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- 15 RSVP volunteers work with the local Day to Day program,
collecting private food donations from supermarket chains,
drug stores, churches, schools. etc,, for a central

warehouse where they serve the needy.

- 75 RSVP volunteers deliver hot meals to the elderly homebound,

Each volunteer delivers 8 to 10 meals a day, averaging
a total of 650 meals a day, 170,000 per year, The RSVP project
works in conjunction with the Visiting Nurses Association to

insure that total home care 1s provided,

- 10 RSVP volunteers, assigned to the public school system,
tutor in inner city schools with students requiring
spec:al read:ing accictance. In addit:icn, another group of
volunteers prepare special introductory math kits designed

by a local school instructer for use in the 1st and 2nd grades,

Over 800 other volunteers are serving in a wide variety of

other activities,

In the intergenerational area, two projects in Iowa represent
distinct approaches, In Cedar Rapids, abused and neglected

children receiving treatment at Pour Oaks, Inc, are served

O
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individually by volunteers and i1ndirectly through pacticipation
by volunteers on ar auxillary board and other support
activities. In Clinton County, the communities' schools, the
Police Department and RSVP sponsor a child watch program to

ensure the safety of children going to and from school.

Over the past several years, ACTION has entered into several
Interagency Agreements and public/private partnerships to
enhance and expand RSVP efforts in several areas. In FY 1988,
we concluded a three year effort supported by the Laubach
Literacy Action, the Dayton Hudson Foundation and the

National Association of RSVP Directors to establish an

RSVP Literacy Network. Seed Grants of $2,000 to $5,000

were awarded to 71 RSVP projects to recruit tutors for

adult learners and for other roles such as student recruitment,

public awareness building and administrative support.

Another inlergenerational approach is in the drug abuse education
and prevention area. As the committee may know, ACTION 1s 1in
partnership with Just Say No International. In FY 1988, nine RSVP
projects received component qrants to support over 300

volunteers working with Just Say No clubs in schools, publac

housing and other settings.

O
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FY 1988 also saw the initiation of the RSVP "Veteran

Companion Service” implementing provision of our Interagency
Agreement with the Veterans Administration, whicn I will
detail later. Three RSVP projects with 45 volunteers received

funding to support in-home services to Veterans.

Committee members should also know that local RSVP projects
continue to receive overwhelming support from state and local
public sources, and from the private sector. Non-ACTION
support increased over 13% in calendar year 1987 to a total of
$27.1 million. Approximately $5.1 million comes from state
governments; city and county governments provide over 35% of
RSVP's non-ACTION funding; $12.4 million 1s generated by the
private sector (an increase of 91.5% over a five year period);
and 325 localities nave allocated $3.2 million from United Way
to local RSVP projects. Non-ACTICN resources equal 88% of

ACTION funding.

<0
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Seaior Companion program

The Senior Companion Program experienced a 45% growth in the
nut ser of local projects in FY 1988, Forty-four new projects
with 1,800 volunteer service years were established. Over
30,000 adults receive personal care and peer support from over
11,500 volunteers in 142 local prejects. Non-ACTION support
for SCP continues to expand. 1In calendar year 1987, these
sources contributed $10.7 million. Over 60% is contributed by
state governments. The private sector contributed $2.3
million. Non-ACTION resources equaled 46% of the ACTION
funding. Daily these volunteers enhance the capacity of older
persons to remain in their own hcmes by providing assistance

with the activities of daily living.

This assistance can be dramatic at times. In Bouston,

Texas a 63-year-old Senior Companion provides respite care

to an older couple. Through the Sheltering Arms scp,
caregiving is directed to a 66~year-old woman who has suffered
from Alzheimer's disease for five years. The volunteer assists
with feeding, and dressing and provides companicnship. BHer
client's daughter reports that the Consis.ent, caring presence
of the volunteer has reduced her mother's episodes of night

wandering and agitation.

oo
bk
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As I mentioned earl:er, ACTION and the VA executed an Interagency
Agreement on June 23, 1988. This agreement formalized a close
working relationship between the Agencies for several years.

Both RSVP and SCP are involved in providing in-home services to
veterans. A total of 31 SCP's with 179 Semior Companions are
serving approximately 625 veterans. Over the past two years, 11
SCP projects have received component funding for a two-year

period to support 66 volurteer service years annually.

Another partnership during the past two years is with the
Alzheimer's Disease and Related Disorders Association (ADRDA).
The partership has tesulted in two-year component funding

for 9 SCP's with a total of 45 volunteer service years
annually. These volunteers are provading craitically needed
respite care for family caregivers. ADRDA Chapters assist

in training of volunteers and selecting clients.

I would like to close my remarks by provading the

subcommittee with a personal observation. In the four years

I have served as Director of ACTION, I have been very
fortunate to see first hand the c'funtless ways that our older
population contraibutes to the well being of “e less fortunate

in our communities. Whether the voltu.teer is a disabled
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nursing home resident nearing 100 years of age who is assisting
a fund raising 2ffort of a homeless shelter, or an athletic
sixty-year-old engaged in a foot race with an energetic four
year old, I have been struck by the contribution cur seniors
make to Americans in all walks of life. As was recently
illustrated by a poster commemorating the Retired Senior

Volunteer Program, "Some Solutions are Ageless.”
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Mr. KiLpez. We look forward to receiving the Administration’s
reauthorization bill next week and we will pour over that and put
our own considerations into that and meve a bill out fairly soon.

In the last reauthorization, the Senate put in a provision for per-
mitting non-low-income people to serve as Foster Grandparents and
Senior Companions in a non-stipended capacity, while receiving re-
imbursement for expenses.

In conference, we agreed that the funds for reimbursement had
to come from ron-federal sources. How many non-stipended volun-
teers are currently participating in the Foster Grandparent and
Senior Companion Programs?

Ms. ALvarapo. Curren:ly, there are 82 non-stipended volunteers
performing services under this provision.

Mr. KiLpee. How many were participating before this provision
was put into the law? How many were involved on an informal
basis? Do you have any numbers on that?

Ms. ALvARrADO. Since it wasn’t really legal for them to do so, we
do not have specific numbers on that, Mr. Chairman. We do contin-
ue to believe that this is a good provision, and even though there
are some restrictions on the utilization of these volunteers in the
statutory language passed during the last reauthorization, we feel
that the basic concept underlying the non-stipended p:ovision,
which is to enable older Americans who may not qualify under the
income requirements, but who are motivated and able and willing
to participate, to be allowed to serve. As demonstrated by the fact
that we have come before the committee with constant levels of
funding for the low-income volunteers, it is not intended that this
provision would ever detract in any way from the levels of funding
or from the opportunities for low-income volunteers to serve, but
would rather supplement their activities.

We know that some of the unanticipated benefits from this provi-
sion include older volunteers being able to continue to serve as
non-stipended volunteers when they are no longer able to serve the
mandated 20 hours per week. They also include low-income volun-
teer husbands and wives who are able to serve in the same project
with one in non-stipended status and the other in a stipended
status.

Mr. Ku.pee. I think the Senate anticipated a larger number par-
ticipating than 82 didi't they?

Ms. ALvarapo. We had certainly hoped so, Mr. Chairman, but as
I mentioned, there are certain statutory restrictions which have
had the effect of building in a disincentive if you will, to promoting
the expansion of these numbers. These include the fact that no
Federal appropriated funds can be used to help offset transporta-
tion costs, recognition events and other non-stipended portions to
these volunteers ..nd that sends a double message to the projects.
According to some of the directors—on the one hand, it is author-
ized, but on the other hand, it is not important enough to authorize
expenditure of funds. They can only use locally generated funds to
support these volunteers. There has been some ambiguity, and I
think this has resulted in the lowering of numbers.

There is a provision requiring that any person in the community
who does not meet the low income levels, who is interested in serv-
ing with a child or with an elderly person, must be referred to the

L4
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local RSVP project first and where that project can place such an
individual in those kinds of settings, that is the preferred method.
So it may be that some of these individuals are going into RSVP.

I think that is a positive direction. If they do go into RSVP, we
would like to increase the number of older Americans in intergen-
erational activities no matter what they are called. The numbers
and the involvement is what is important to us.

Mr. Kipee. I have another question and then I will turn to Mr.
Grandy here.

It has been brought to the committee’s attention that the stipend
for Foster Grandparents and Senior Companion volunteers has not
increas~d in the last few years.

Do you support any increase in the volunteer stipend?

Ms. ALvarapo. We are not requesting an increase in the stipend
at this time, primarily because of budgetary constraints.

We do know that it would take $9.3 million in additional appro-
priations to support a 30-cent increase in the stipend, which would
raise the stipend from $2.20 an hour to $2.50 an hour. If the agency
were required to absorb such a stipend increase without additional
appropriations, it would require us to terminate approximately
4,000 of these low-income volunteers. If such an increase were
given to the agency, it could be utilized to increase the stipend, but
I would point out that such an increase could also be utilized to
support 4,000 additional new volunteers who are low-income, and
we do know that there are approximately 6,000 low-income appli-
cants on waiting lists to participate in these programs.

It is a difficult choice to make between either bringing low-
income volunteers into the program who currently are unable to
serve, or increasing the stipend of existing volunteers.

Mr. KiLDEE. You mentioned $9 million, was it?

Ms. ALvarapo. $9.3 million.

Mr. KiLpee. To raise the stipend to $2.50—why not put in some
language that if the appropriation reached a certain level, then at
that point it would trigger an increase?

Would that be an acceptable way of perhaps addressing that?

Ms. ALvARrapo. 1 would have to review that, Mr. Chairman. 1
cannot respond at this time.

Mr. KILDEE. You can get back to us on that.

Ms. ALvarapo. Certainly.

Mr. KiLpee. I am not sure what I would want to do on it myself,
s0 I can’t ask you to respond specifically right now.

[The information follows:]

Mr Chairman, my understanding 1s that there is not a formal proposal 1n writing
at this time for review However, one concept which has been articulated by the
subcommittee staff is the possibility of establishing some typc of threshold of fund-
ng for volunteer activities 1n the authorizing legislation. which once reached by ap-
propriations levels, would automatically “trigger” any additional appropriations
into a stipend increase for existing volunteers.

First, I must reiterate that due to budgetary constraints, the FY 1990 budget pro-
posal for the ACTION agency does not include additional funding for either stipend
increases or the expansion of the numbers of current levels of stipended volunteers.

Second, in the interest of making a fair and Jjudicious determination of whether 1t
would be preferable to increase the stipend of existing volunteers rather than to 1n-

crease the numbers of low-income volunteers in the programs, I would say that such
a determination should be made on the relative merits of priorities vis a wis the pro-
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grams and the participants, rather than enacting an automatic legislative mecha-
nism.

Mr. KiLpee. Mr. Grandy?

Mr. Granpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Alvarado, let me follow up on something. It is my under-
standing that the administrative levels have been rather constant,
$25 million over the last several years; is that correct?

Ms. ALvarapo. That is correct.

Mr. Granpy. This year you are asking for a $2 million increase
up to about $27 million.

Could you just explain the need for that in terms of delivering
services at a constant level?

Ms. ALvaraDO. Yes. As the subcommittee is aware, the ACTION
agency provides programs to grass-roots organizations that fre-
quently do not have the technical expertise or the ability to com-
pete successfully for some of the larger programs that are available
through such agencies as Department of HHS or through HUD and
some of the other social service agencies.

What is important for us, in order to be able to meet the needs
and to assist these local community organizations, is to have an
adequate level of staff to provide the technical assistance to enable
these individuals and organizations to participate fully in our pro-
grams. Inadequate program support dollars are vlacing a severe
strain on the agency’s ability to effectively administer our pro-
grams during fiscal year 1989.

When 1 came aboard four years ago, we had 511 full-time equiva-
lent (FTE) positions in the agency. During FY 87 we conducted a
management assessment of what would be the required number of
full-time equivalents to support the agency's programs at that time
and it was 448 full-time equivalents. However, our current situa-
tion is that we have been appropriated $145,412,000 in FY 89 pro-
gram funds, while program support, or administrative funding that
was given to the agency for FY 89 enables us to support only 416.
So we are very much understaffed.

We have heen trying to use our scarce resources to fill positions
in the field, which 1s the front line, but this has resulted in the fact
that now in our agency we don’t have enough funds to fill even
critical vacancies, let alone crucial top policy positions at headquar-
ters.

We do not have an Inspector General, a General Counsel nor a
Director of Legislative Affairs. We do not have a Director for our
Drug Program. We do not have an Associate Director for Domestic
Operations, which is a Fey Presidential appointee.

We have had to cancel the training that we were giving our
project directors this year, and the required monitoring visits that
we are mandated to perform to carry out our oversight responsibil-
ities of one site visit per project per year are not being accom-
plished.

We were c 1ly able to perform 48 percent of those site visits last
year and are hoping this year to improve that, but in order to do so
we will have to take scarce resources from other areas.

Mr. GranDY. In terms of the support that you can offer, are we
talking about offering support to communities that are applying for
these grants—in other words, technical - ssistance to communities
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that otherwise would not be able to compete for some of these
grants?

Is that included in that administrative component?

Ms. ALvarapo. That is the ideal situation when we are given
adequate funding. We have provided training to our state directors
and staff so that in addition to their basic mission, which is sup-
porting existing ACTION grantees and developing new projects in
undeserved areas, they also perform in a leadership capacity as em-
issaries of the volunteer agency, but they haven't been able to do
that effectively.

Mr. GraNDY. So am [ hearing you argue that increased funding
on the administrative side will in a sense occasion a greater out-
reach and allow more communities to become competitive because
they will have the technical support to make applications and sup-
posedly be more competitive in receiving them?

Ms. ALvarapo. Yes that is an important part of it

Mr. GraNDY. I bring that up because—you might be able to edify
me a little about this—I am always concerned about how these pro-
grams are delivered in rural areas.

In Iowa, for exarple, in Mr. Tauke’s district, there is a program
in Dubuque, Cedar Rapids and in Clinton.

In my area, Western Iowa and North Central Iowa, there are
two; one in Sioux City and Estherville.

Are there any barriers which rural areas face at this time in ap-
plying for these kinds of Federal funds that you know of?

Ms. ALvarapo. This was a real concern of mine when I came
aboard the agency. Every time we have gone out with announce-
ments of new funds for programs, we nave given special attention
to the needs of rural areas.

Actually, the agency has done very we!l. We know that, accord-
ing to the 1980 census for the population 60 years and over, 74 per-
cent are living in urban areas and 26 percent in rural areas.

In terms of ACTION's programs in Foster Grandparents, we
have 43 percent in urban areas and 57 percent in rural areas; for
Senior Companions, 34 percent in urban areas and 66 percent in
rural areas; RSVP, 54 percent urban and 46 percent rural. So we
certainly exceed the national average there.

Are there additional barriers to developing programs in rural
areas? Are there additional costs involved? Certainly there are.
Transportation is probably the paramount cost, and we do factor
this in when we are providing new monies or augmentation grants
so that the rural communities are able to have the resources they
need to carry out the programs.

There is no question that it is more expensive to deliver services
in rural areas, but that has not hindered us in reaching forward to
these communities.

Mr. GranDY. I am curious if in increasing your administrative
budget we are in a sense increasing the option for outreach to
these rural areas as well?

Ms. ALvarapo. We certainly would because one of the impedi-
ments we have had with the limited support budget has been the
inability of the staff to travel. They have only been able to conduct
one monitoring visit for 50 percent of our projects. Fifty percent

]
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have not been visited, and this doesn't include the necessary out-
reach to areas——

Mr. Granpy. I am sure you are aware this is a common problem
that rural communities have had—sometimes not knowing how to
apply and not being as familiar with the criteria for the onplica-
tion as larger communities. They don't have the support groups in
those communities with the technical expertise.

Mr. Chairman, could I proceed for another question?

Mr. KiLpEE. Yes.

Mr. GrANDY. There has been a proposal made to eliminate the
position of Associate Director of the Domestic and Anti-Poverty Op-
erations.

There has also been, I believe, a suggestion that the positions of
Director of the Older American Programs and VISTA be elevated
to presidential appointments.

Is your agency taking a position on this?

Ms. ALvarapo. We are. I will ask the deputy director to respond
to this because if this provision were to go into effect, she would
have 19 managers reporting directly to her as their first-line supe-
rior.

Ms. Kenny. Congressmar, the position of the Administration is
that we definitely would be opposed to this provision and I can
speak from first-hand experience what the disadvantages would be.

What I would like to provide for the record to the committee is
an organization chart which shows our current organizational
structure.

Mr. KiLpEe. That will be made part of the record.

[The information follows:]




Agency Organization Structure
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Ms. KENNY. Also an organizational chart which reflects the pro-
posal as the Congressman just described.

Mr. KiLbEE Any submission you wish to make will be made part
of the record without objection.

[The information follows:]
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Ms. KENNY. As the chart illustrates, there will be as a result of
this proposal 19 office heads who would report directly to the
deputy of the Agency. I would, in effect, be their first-line supervi-
sor.

From a management standpoint, I believe strungly that *his is
not the route to go. That there would be a disproportionate span of
control situation here and the number of subordinates reporting di-
rectly to me would be inappropriate.

As our current structure is set up, the management and budget
operations come under the jutisdiction of the current Associate Di-
rector, Roland Goodman, and I as Acting Associate Director of Do-
mestic Operations handle the operations in the field.

I think that is an appropriate distribution. I think the grade
level of the individuals serving in those positions is appropriate as
it now stands and 1 would strongly recommend that we retain the
current organizational structure and distribution of authority and
responsibility as it is now placed in the current positions within
the Agency.

Mr. GRanDY. Mr. Chairman, if it is a presidential appointment,
the Senate has to agree to this, correct?

Mr. KiLpEk. Yes.

Mr. Granbpy. In other words, I hope you don't have a drinking
problem. [Laughter.]

Ms. Kenny. For the record, sir, I don’t drink at all except for
Diet Coke.

Mr. GRanpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KiLper. Ms. Unsoeld.

Ms. UnsoeLp. No questions.

Mr. KiLbee. Another new Member of Congress and new Member
of the subcommitiee, hit not new to government is Glenn Poshard
from Illinois, who served in the State senate there. We are happy
to have him on this subcommittee.

Glenn, do you have any questions or observations? None. 1 will
go back to my second round and ask another question.

You may be aware that Senator Nunn has introduced legislation
to create a senior volunteer program independent of the ACTION
agency that would provide a stipend of $4 or $5 per hour to volun-
teers, providing many of the same services now provided by OAVP
volunteers.

What do you see as the possible impact on ACTION programs
should this legislation be enacted? Have you been made aware of
that legislation?

Ms. ALvarapo. I have knowledge of the general parameters but I
would like to defer specific comment for the record so that I would
be able to look at that closely and ensure that we were able to
come forward with an appropriate administration response.

Mr. KiLpEg. That will be fine with us. As a matter of fact, with-
out objection I will submit some additional questions for you to
answer for the record.

[The information follows:]

The “Citizenship and National Service Act of 1939" (S 3, HR660) sponsored by

Senatur Sum Nunn and Representative Dave McCurdy establishes a Senior Corps in
Title II The legislation does not appear to acknuwledge any competing programs
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within the ACTION agency such as Retired Senior Volunteer Programs (RSVP),
Foster Grandparents (FGP) and Senior Companions (SCP) Volunteers in the Senior
Corps may receive an hourly wage, yet to be specified, but projected by some to be
five dollars

With regard to the ACTION Older Amencan Programs, RSVP Volunteers devote
their time and energy for no remuneration or stipend FGP and SCP are mean-
tested programs which offer their low-income volunteers a stipend of $2 20 per hour.

Although the Senior Corps does not directly affect ACTION's programs, it has the
potential of drawing from our current and potential pool of senior volunteers.

Mr. GRANDY. One more, Mr. Chairman, if I could. This was occa-
sioned by what you were talking about, the problems with trans-
portation in rural areas and specific kinds of problems.

Is that an argument for earmarking any funds? We sometimes
get into this and did when we were reauthorizing the Oider Ameri-
cans Act last year.

Is there an agency position on earmarking funds for special em-
phasis areas and what effect would this have on existing programs?

Ms. ALvarapo. We would be opposed to earmarking specific em-
phasis areas or specific geographical distributions. We feel as the
statistics would indicate that we have done a goo job in ensuring
good geographical distribution. That will continue to be a priority
for the agency, and therefore feel it is unnecessary and counterpro-
ductive to have specific set-asides directed within the legislative
process.

Our basic philosophy. and the important ingredient in what has
made the ACTION program so successful at the local community
level, is that we believe as much flexibility as possible should be
given to the local communities to identify what their priorities are,
whether it is in programming literacy, drug abuse prevention,
homebound eiderly needs, these communities know what their pri-
orities are better than we do. So we would advocate giving them
the flexibility to determine that.

At the same time we recognize that a large number of individ-
uals and organizations have been very concerned about the prob-
lem of illiteracy, about the problem of substance abuse, about the
problems of homebound elderly, and at the national level, the
agency has reinforced their capacity to address these needs by pro-
viding appropriate training to project directors.

e anticipate that, with the levels of funding we are requesting
for 1990, the agency would be able to carry that out. But earmark-
ing special emphasis areas, I feel would be detrimental to the {lexi-
bilitdy we would like the local communities to have to address their
needs.

We give technical assistance and training in those areas of great-
est concern to the nation at large. We feel that is a role for the
ACTION agency to perform, bu: we do not recommend specific ap-
propriations set-asides because the needs are constantly changing.

Mr GranDY. Could you comment a little bit about the eligibility
of applications what the criteria are when you make a grant to the
ACTION agency” Is there a standard application when an organi-
zation wants to apply for funds? Is there a kind of standardized eli-
gibility, certain things that you require when an organization
makes one of these requests?

Ms Awrvaravo. I will ask Ms Kenny to respond in more detail,
but the answer is yes. We do have standardized applications We do
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have regulations which mirror the legislative intent and param-
eters in the Older American Volunteer Program.

Mr. Granpy. Could you make those available for the record?

Ms. ALvarano. Yes.
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OMB Approval #3001-0069
Expires December 30, 1989

PROJECT GRANT APPLICATION*
OLDER AMERICAN VOLUNTEER PROGRAMS

*For use by prospective and existing sponsors of alt OAVP programs including
Foster Grandparent Program, Retired Senior Volunteer Program, and Senior
Companion Program. Please follow instructions in the appropnate Operations
Handbook available through ACTION State Program Offices. Please prepare
a signed application and 2 copies for your submissiori. The submission of
a grant application does not assure the receipt of a grant award.

ACTION Form No A 1424
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

This 12 » standard form used by applicants s * required facesheet for p 1 and d in accordance with OMB Lircuwar
A-102 It will be used bv Fedeial agenvies o obtain applicant certification that States which have extablished a review and comment procedure 1,
response to Executive Orde 12372 and have selected the proyram to be invuded in cheir process have been given an vpportunity o review the apph
cant 1 submission

APPLICANT PROCEDURES FOR SECTION |

Apphcant will complete all items in Secteon 1 with the exception of Box 3 State Application {dentifier I an item 13 not apphcable wnte NA Y
If additiona! space 13 needed insert an as'ernk * and use Section IV An evplanation follows for each item

ltem ltem  of an existing NTant tarevivion or augmentation under item 1) ir
1 Mark appropriate box Preapplication and application are describod dinate o v the amount of the change For decreases enclose the
11 OMB Cirgular A~102 and Federal agency program instrucions wmourt in parenth I buth basic and { amounts are
Use of this form a3 a Notie of Intent 13 at State cpt on Fedcral (miuded breakeut in Section IV Fer multiple pregram funding use
agencies do not requirs Netices of Intent totals and show progrzm breakotts in Section IV 122 amount re
2 Appli,ant « own control number { devired quested frera Federal Govenment 12b—amount apphicant will con

tribwre 12¢-amount from State 1f apphcant is not & State 12d-
2 Date Section | 13 prepared (at apphcant a optinn amount from local government, of ap, ficant 13 not a bxcal govern
3a Number assigned by State ment 12e—amount from any other sources expiain 1n Section IV

3 Date assigned by State 136 The dustrict(s) where most of action work wiif ke accomplished If
ats wide or State wide covenng several districts wnite aty wice

4a-4h  Leyal name of apphicant rame of primary ornanuational unit which or State wige

will undertake the aagistance activits complete address of appht
cant and name and telephone number of the forenn whoan pro- 1 A New A cubmittsl for projct not previously funded
vide further information about this request

B Renewal A extensien for an acditional funding budset period
5 Emg'over fdentification Number (EIN 1 of applicant as des ned by tor a project having no propected completion date but for w hich
the Internal Revenue Service Federal support must be ranewed each year
6a use Catalog of Federal Dometic Asststance 'CDFA: nunner ay € Revision A modification to propct nature or scupe whivh may
sumed to provrsm under which assistance 1s requested If maew than result 1n funding change licrease or decrense!
onepregiam e g wint funding) check  multip'e and explainin
Section 1Y If upknown «ite Public Law or L S Code D Cuntinuation An extens on for an additions! funding budget
ried (o1 ¢ pragect with a projected completion date
66 Presram utle frem CFDA Abbreviate if recessary e 4 provee proxe i
A A Tor addn 1 funds for a proy
e S, . X
7 Use Section IV Lo{pruvldr l&un:\mlrv dr:ltnpuo'\ of t?r projec 'l! oct presiousiy awarded funds in the same funding budget period
appropriate  f proyt affects particular wtes as for exampls Fejmt nature snd «cops unchangea
constructisn eal property propxts attach a map showiny, thy prog
<t Ixcation 1% Appenvimate date propct expacted to bagin tusually awociated with
[ City inciudes town township o1 other mumcipality esnimated date of asarlabihty of funding!
< 16 Atimat t: A l
9 List only largest unit or units afected vuch as State  ounty or Gty f"”:":ll‘::,‘:’“ er el months to complete prryect after Federal funds
Ftimg from proy -
10 Estimated number of persons directh benefiling from project 1 Comp'ete onlv {or reviunns iitem L3¢t or augmertatiynsiitem el
u Check the typeeut of asuistance requested 19 Date preappucs v apphicas i must be s abhitted to Federal aguncy
A Bauc Grant -an orsg nil request fer Frderal funds in mider to be ¢ lyible for funding, <>nuderation
B Supplerrental furant -4 request 1o increase a bayic xmant in ot 1% Name and add s of the Federal agency to which (hic ivquest 1y
30 cases whev (he | jab » appl cont €26 10l su,ply the reqasred Mdieawd Tedicate as choarly gy pastible the aame of the office ©
matchir g shme of Lhe base Federal program e (rants which the appheation will be delivercd
‘-;'ude?"bv ‘1’“ :pf:r::;hl:‘: lr(:.wnll Commstan fpron 20 Fanting Federal rant identification namber if this 1s pot 3 new
Appicant 3 matching, tha requvst zrd directiy e Litea tu 2 proviou Federal action (RFermise
E Other Fyplain in Section IV write NA
12 Amubt siquest 1ot o be ontpbuted duting e first furd a1 Chek JPRITETEAL DX as o whithir sxaton IV O frm ntains
1y, budaet period by each eontriburrr Value ol i kind reatribu 1emarks andar additicoal remarhs are Ptached
tione should be irrtuded 1fthe actiin s a thange in dollar imaunt
APPLICANT PROCEDURES FOR SECTION 11
Applicants will alw ays ormplete cither 1tem 222 or 22b  nef verrs 25y and 230
222 Complete if applicaticn is subwt o Exetutine Urder 12475 ate 2 Cheat gl nasn ket B O 1IT2
review and comments 232 Name iad tir e of autharized reprewntinine ot loyal appheant
FEDERAL AGENCY PROCEDURI S FOR SFCTION HI
ABP cant completes onh Sections T and I Section HE o rp'etad by Fetvral anencies
26 Useto denti® ama~d atwns e N e f gplonti et VSt 2xd amount fram Tl govern
" ‘e s . ., el i pEaArUiny o 1 eal gnsermirent JRes innunt finm am
i U« Section IV to amphfs whers approprive re e e
28 Ameunt to b €ontr bated dariey the firet tunding budpet pu od by “ M s e i
cach wontributor Y aue of n kind ceniributicas will e i ded - Date o was tiken am this rquest
I the actinn 18 a change in doHar amount of an existiog urint 3 n Day furds wi me wattable
rev wi0n or aukmertanon unds e rem 1 1 indiate Anly the arwunt 0 Nt i ghr i rumter o ang e on AR I F1o de ore
of change Frr decreases enulond the amount in parentheses Itherh N emanan 1o A ding this asis snce
bas ¢ and suprfemental an ounts are included bre vk utip St e o ) , i
I8 For multiple program fundieg use totals ~nd «hew proays r H Dt e whik fond wotl na inga bea arlabe foe cbination
breakous in e 1RV 283 amoant awarded by Foderaloer e i Eherk approp st hovas ' abither Scten 1Y f fiim containg,
ment  Zeb—amount a,plrant wili cortnbule  Z-annuct Evitoval temadrks asd > a1t3 Fmant of additonad re nares
~
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PART II
PROJECT APPROVAL INFORMATION

ltem 1.

Does this assistance requcst require State, local,
regional, or other priority rating®
Yes

Name of Goverming Body
Prionty Rating

Item 2

Does this assistance request require State, or local ad
visory, educational or health clearances?

Name of Agency or
Board

Yes No (Attach Documentation)
Item 3
Does this assistance request require State, local, Namc of Approving Agency
regional or other planning approval® Date
—_ Yes No

Item 4

1s the proposed project covercd by an approved com-
prehencive plan?

Yes No

Check one State
Local
Regional
Location uf Plan

Item 5

Will the assistance requested serve a Federal installation”
— Yes _______No

Name of Federal
Federal Population benefiting from Project

liem 6

Will the assistance requested be on Eederal land or
nstallation”

Yes

Name of Federal | il
Location of Federal Land
Percent of Project

won

Item 7

Will the assistance requested have an impact or effect
on the environment”®

Yes No

Secanstructions for addutional information to be provide d.

Item 8
Will the assistance requested cause the displacement of
dividuals, families. b s or farms”
Yes No

Item 9,
Is there other related assistance on this project
previous, pending, or anticipatrd?

e Yes No

O

ERIC
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Number of
Individuals
Famihes
Businesscs
Farms

Seeinstructions for additional ;nformation to be provided
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR PAGE 5

Part Il

Negative answers will not require an explanation unless
the Federal agency requests more information at a later
data Providc supplementary data for all “Yes" answers
in the space provided in accordance with the following
instructions

Item 1-Provide the name of the governing body
establishing the priority system and the prority rating
ussigned to this project

Item 2=Provide the namc of the agency or board which
issued the clcarance and attach the documentation of
status or approval

Item 3-Furnmish the name of the approving agency and
the approval date

Item $~Show whcther the approved comprehenstse plan
15 State, local or regional, or If none of these, explain the
scope of the plan Give the location where the approved
plan s avatable for examination and state whether this
proje. isin conformance with the plan

O

RIC
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Item 5—Show the population residing or working on the
Federal installation who will benefit from this project.

Itcm 6—5how the percentage of the project work that wall
be conducted on federally-owned or leased land. Give the
name of the Federal installstion and its Iocation

Item 7—Describe briefly the possible beneficigl and harm
ful impact on the environment of the proposed project.
If an adverse enwir {impactis d, explain
what action will be taken to mintmize the impact Federal
agencies will provide separate instructions if additional
data 18 nceded,

Item 8~State the number of individuals, families.
businesscs, or farms this project will displace Fedcral
agenc #< wiil provide separate instructions if additional
data 1s needed

Item 9—Show the Federal Domestic Assistance Catalog
number, the program name. the type of assistance. the
status and the amount of each project wherc there 1%
rclated previous, pending or anticipated assistance Use
add:tional sheets, if needed.
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PART IHI-BUDGET INFORMATION

SFCTION A -BUDGET SUMMARY

Grant Program, Funetion
or Actiity
{a)

Federal

Catalog No

Estimated Unobligate.' Funds

Federal

T Non Yederal
{d

TFoderat

New or Revised Budget

Non Federal
n

s

) — —_ e e RS Y
3 SN O S G (NS S RN U S
P - s IA..*,, [ e e

5 ToTALS I o s T T T T s s s

SFCTION B-BUDGF1 CATFGORIFS
Federal Non Federet
5 Obect a::(:w:m:: o T Vet suppt |77 Valumteer | Vel Suppt | Velunteer Totat
Fxpenses Fxponses Fxpenses Expenses

o Personnas T I T T )
b Ponge Beneie B o I
T S R S o B
"4 Equipment - I T I
e suppes h e - T
't Contractwal Services a N N

® Constructon R S I
b oowme T S ) I
1 Total Irrect Charges ) T ’ I T T
J Indweet Charge S } T

s s I s T
7. Program Income B H ) s o ) I ;”'V‘M__—-
—_— - - e e L L VOSSR,

~~ ‘/'l ﬂ

98
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SECTION C—NON-FEDERAL RESOURCES

@) Grant Progeam @ APPLICANT © STATE | OTHER SOURCES () TOTALS
8 T T s T s T s s
. N h L
10 T T
n ) - I
12 TOTALS - o s s I I )

SECTION D-FORECASTED CASII NEEDS

1 for-;\t_Yur Ist Quarter 2nd Quarter ‘[_7 7;!:erunmr dth Quarter
N R T s
N — e
RIS £ £ IS O

SECTION E-BUDGET ESTIMATES OF FEDERAL FUNDS NEEDED FOR BALANCE OF THE PROJECT

FUTURE FUNDING PERIODS (YEARS)

(@) Grant Program ®) FIRST (c) SECOND ) THIRD () FOURTH
16 T I T r S T T
v T oo T T T
e JE R S —_— B
e I
20 torars T T D I T T s T Is :

SECTION F—~OTHER BUDGET INFORMATION
(Atiach Addionsl Mheets if Necesasryt

21 Ihrect Charges

22 Indirect charges a  Indirect rete type

1 Provisienal 1) Predetermined Fual 1 Fixed

b, Attach current negotiated agreement with name of Federal

agency snd date

¢ Based on 1/ S&W 1ADC BRase Rate “
23 Remarks

PART IV PROGRAM NARRATIVE (Attach per instruction)

(11
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR PART II1, BUDGET INFORMATION

Genera) Iustructions

In preparing the budget, adhere to existing ACTION guidelines which prescribe how and whether budgeted amounts
ahould be separately shown for different functions or gctivities within the project For some projects. ACTION may re-
quire budgets to be separately shownby functionor activity For other projects, breskdown by function or activity may
not be required Sections A, B. C and D should include budget estimates for the whole project except when applying
for assistance which requires Federsl suthorzation 1n annuasl or other funding period increments In the latter case.
Sections A, B, C and D should provide the budget for the first budget period ususlly a yesr) and Section E should pre
sent the need for Federal assistance in the subsequert budget periods All applications should contsin a breakdown
by the object lass categories shown in Seetion B Note Section B musl Le completed prior to preparation of Sections

A through F of Part 11}
SECTION A. Budget Summary
Lines 14, Columns (a) a1 d ()

In column (a) enter the title of the ACTION program
for which you are applying, as listed in the Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance.such as FGP, RSVP. VISTA,
etc

In column (b) enter the Federsl Catalog number
corresponding to that program If not listed 1n the Catzlog
of Fedcral Domestic Assistance, leave columns iv1and &)
blank

Lines 1—4, Columns (c) through (g)

For new applications. leave Columns (c) and (d) blank
For each line entry in Columns (a) and (b), enter in Col
1mns (e), (), and @) the appropriate amounts of funds nced
ed to support the project for the first funding period (usu
ally a year}

For continuing grant project applications, submit these
forms before the end of each fund:ng period as required
by ACTION Enter in Columns (c) and (d) the estimated
amounts of funds to be carried over from the current
budget period

Line 5—Show the totals for &l columns used
SECTION B Budget Categonies

NOTE A DETAILED NARRATIVE. IDENTIFYING
FULLY AND JUSTIFYING EACH LINE ITEM
AND COST INCLUDED IN THE BUDGET, MUST
ACCOMPANY SECTION B

1 VOLUNTEER SUPPORT EXPENSES

A SPONSOR PERSONNEL EXPENSFS (Persons
currently employed or to be employed by spplicant
organization). Enter the total amount of Federal and non
Federal funds estimated for salaries and wages of cach
indlvidusl ofthe appiicant’s staff who will be charged to
the grant project

B FRINGE BENEFITS List the Fringe Benefits and
Total Costdollars inratio to the percentage of time spent
on the project

C SPONSOR STAFF TRAVEL EXPENSES This
item 12 only for staff as histed unde: >ponsor Personnel
in A above Any travei in this itens must be for the pu)
pose of supporting grant activitics a¢ described in the ap
plication Any antitipated travei away from the project
site should be explaned in full, along with cost calcutation

ERIC 42

D FQUIPMENT Attach itemuzed hst
E. SUPPLIES Seif Explanatory

F CONTRACTUAL SERVICES Includes consul
tart’s costs

G CONSTRUCTION ACTION grants ordinarily are
not appropnate for construction costs If construction
costs are involved. give full and complete narrative ex-
planation. inchuding 1termzation of material costs

H. OTHER Include the total of all other budget items
not included in A through G, above Attach itermized hist

I TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES Enter total Volunteer
Support Expenses listed in A through H

J INDIRECT CHARGES 1If applicable. enter total
indirect charges applicable to Volunteer Support Ex-
penses Explain rate and base 1n Section F and attach sup-
porting documentation for overheaa rate

h TOTALS Enter the sum of the Total Direct
Char,os plus ,he indirect Charges applicable to Volunteer
Support Expenses

2 VOLUNTEER EXPENSES

A VOLUNTEER PERSONNEL EXPENSES Enter
the tetal cost of Stipends and allowances that are pard di
rectly to volunteers

B FRINGE BENEF'TS Enter the c.st of Fringe
Benefits such as Volunteer Meals, Incurance. FICA,
Uniforms. Physical Exams, Recognition, etc Itemize the
costs 1n narrative explanation

C TRAVEL. List all volunteer transportation costs
including the costs of vehicles, leased or purchased 1n
surance, maintenance costs applicable to those vehicles,
and drivers' salaries and fnnge benefits chargeable to the
grant Attach anitemized hst

D EQUIPMENT Attach itemized lList
E  SUPPLIES Self Explanatory
F CONTHACTUAL SERVICES _.f Explanatory

G CONSTRUCTION

H OTHER Includes the total of afl other budget items
notincluded 1n A through G, above Incdlude VISTA and
UYA voluntecr training in this line Volunteers training
costs include pre<eivice lodging and per diem 1nservice
trauning and cosis to attend conferences Docs not include
trmning matenals included in | B above

S




I TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES. Enter total Volunteer
Expenses listed in A through H

J  INDIRECT CHARGES. If applicable. enter total
indirect charges applicable to Volunteer Expenses Ex-
plain rate and base in Section F and attach supporting
documentation for overhead rate

K. TOTALS. Enter the sum of the Total Direct
Charges plus the indirect Charges applicable to Volunteer
Expenses.

Line 7—-Program Income

ACTION grants do not gencrate income, therefore,
enter zero on the line

SECTION C. Non Federal Resources
Lines 8-11

Enter amounts of non Federal resources that wil be
used on the grant

Column (a)~Enter the program's titles 1dentical to Col-
umn (a), Section A, A breakdown by function or activity
is not necessary

Column th}~Enter the total cash and in-kind contnibu-
tions to be made by the applicant as shown in Section A

Columa (c)~Enter the State contribution if the apph.
cant 18 not & State or State sgency Applicants who are
a State or State agencies should leave this column blank

Column (d~Enter the amount of cash and in kind con-
tnbutions to bs made from all other sources

Column (e)~Enter totals of column (b), (c), and (d)
Line 12—Enter the total for each of columns (bl—(e) The
amount in column (¢) should be equalto the amount on

line 8, column (f), Section A

SECTION D Forecasted Cash Needs (Required only ot
new grant applicants)

Line 13—Enter the amount of cash needed in total for the
first year and by quarter during the first year

Line 14—Enter the amount of cash and in-kind contribu
tions necded in total for the first year and by quarter dur.
ing the first year

Line 15—Enter the totals of amounts on tines 13 and 14

SECTIONE 73udget Estimates of Federal Funds Needed
for Balance of the Project.

Lines 16-19- Enter in column (a) the same grant program
titles shown in column (a), Section A. A breakdown by
function or activity 13 not required. For new applications
and ¢ uIng grant applicati enterin the proper col
umns amounts of Federal funds which will be needed to
complete the program or project over the succeeding fun-
ding periods (usually in years) This Section need not be
comyleted for d ts, changes or suppl tsto
funds for the current year of existing grants. If more than
four lines are needed to list the program titles, submit ad-
ditional schedules as necessary

Line 20—~Enter the total for each of the columns (b)~e).
When additional schedules are prepared for this Section.
annotate accordingly and show the overall totals on this
line.

SECTION F-Other Budget Information

Line 21—Use this space to explain amounts for individual
direct object cost categories that may appear to be out of
the ordinary or to explain the details as required by
ACTION

Line 22a—Enter the type of indirect rate (Provisional.
Predetermined, Final or Fixed) that will be in effect dur-
ing the fund period.

B Self explanatory
C  Enterthe typcof base~Salary and Wages or Total
Direct Cost. the estimated amount of the base, and the rats

to be applied,

Line 23—Provide ary other explanations required herein
or any other comments deemed necessary

ERIC
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IV. PROJECT NARRATIVE

SECTION A — BACKGROUND INFORMATION

I Briefly describe in general terms the sponsonng organization s purpose and major program
activities, if not previously specified, and, as appropnate, 1dentify the largest umt of
statellocal government or nonprofit multi-purpose orgamization with which the sponsor 1s
affihated.

EXAMPLE The Millw ood Bureau of Aging 1s a subdivision of the Millwood County
Human Resources Administration The Bureau's major functions are to pro-
vide coordination and technical assistance to other public and private agen
cies dealing with aging problems, to act as a cleaninghouse for information on
aging services within the community and to administer the Thtle 111 Nutntion
Grant

Brief deseription:

2. When was your organization established?
3 How many members are on the govermng body”

4 Total finaneial resources of appheant. if private non profit orgamization

a. Current Annual Funding Level

Source of Funds Dollar Amount.
Federal —_—— Name of Ageneyfies)
State

Local Government

Other (Specify)

Are any of your resources presently provided by ACTION”

Will there be a major change 1n your funding level over the next twelye months” If so,
please explain

5 Documentation
a New Applications~if priy ate non-profit orgamzat) n

¢ Copy of articles of yncorporation

* Tax exempt status, either IRS determination or copy of application to IRS for exemption

* A statement, certified by a CPA or Public Accountant (dated within the previous ¢
nonths) that the organization’s accounting system 1s capable of ace urately accounting for
and safeguarding Federal funds

b. Renew als

¢ Proof that the charter of incorporation remaias valid (non profit onlyv)

¢ For grants that have heen 1n operanon with ACTION £ ading for at least two years, cer-
tification by the grantee that their accounting syvstent hae been audited within that
peniod

ERIC
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SECTION A - BACKGROUND INFORMATION
{Continued)

6. How would your proposed project fill a specific need, one not being addressed by other
organizations?

Clearly identify the proposed service area(s) in geographic terms, 1 ¢ city. town. county, etc

Include information on appropriate senior population of projcct service area. For FGP. also
include population information on children with exceptional and special needs

Renewals: No submussion is necessary if no change has occurred. Check box to indicate
no change.

O

7 last the names of public agencies and private nonprofit oi1ganizations which have expressed
willingness to utilize volunteer assistance New applications attach letters of support from
potential volunteer stations Renewals attach summary of volunteer stations. histing name of
station. number of volunteers to be placed. kind of station, and brief description of volunteer
services provided in each station SCP Attach copies of all current Memoranda of Under
standing FGP sponsors are requcsted to identify the kinds of disabilities o1 special needs of
the children to be served

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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SECTION B —~ PROJECT MANAGEMENT

I Attach a chart which shows all major or, tonal comp ts of the sp g organiza-
tion; include the proposed project staff and its reportir relationship to the sponsoring
organization (For more complex, multipurpose orgamzations, ;,nclude separate organizational
charts for the project and the sponsoring organization ) Show how the proposed Advisory
Council wall function independently of the sponsor's Board of Dircctors Attach list of current
Board of Directors showing their name, address and orgamzational or commumity affiliation

Check here D if you have attached the requested charts and list.

»

Attach the job descnption of the project director, the person who will have the major respon
sibility for managing thys roject on day-to-day basis Note., ACTION must concur on selection
of the Project Dhrector When the Project Director 1s nominated, forward the resume to the
ACTION State Office.

Check here D 1f you have attached the job description
Renewals. No submission 1s nceded if position descnption has not changed —_
Check box to indicate no change L]

3 Describe plans for the daily supervision of volunteers. (Please do not give names of persons )
Renewals No submission s necessary if no change has occurred Check box to indicate
no change D

4 Describe here, or attach, sponsor plan for volunteer ortentation

Renewals No subbussion, s necessary if no change has occurred Check box to indicate
no change O

ERIC '
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SECTION B — PROJECT MANAGEMENT
(Continued)}

5 Hdentify applicant’s plan to meet the transportation needs of volunteers and how these will be
or are being met The full vaniety of meaus should be reviewed with respect to costs and’
availlability Consider public transportation, vans or minibuses, school buses, charter buses,

car pools and taxis

6 Explain what provision or arrangements the sponsonng organization will make for s olunteer
meals and insurance Descnbe plans for prosiding FGP and SCP physical examinations.
Renewals No suhmission is necessary if no change has occurred Check boa to indicate no D

change

7 Descnibe sponsor plans for creating or mireasing public aw areness of the project

ERIC
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SECTION C — COMMUN TY INVOLVEMENT

1. Identifly how potential volunteers, or persons to b : served, ot their representatives, were in
volved i1 the development of this application Rer ewais No submission 1s necessary if no
change has occurred. Check box to indicate no ch inge D

2 Specify the composition of the project’s Advisory Courcil Membership should reflect the
population charactenstics of this project service area and include volunteers, persons served
or their surrogates and representatives from cthnic and minority communities, the handicap
ped, and community leaders For renewal applications, attach a list of current members show
ing their organizational or commumty affihation

3 Describe sponsor plans for regular appraisal by th ¢ Advisory Counal of the effectiveness of
project management and of the progress of the project in meeting its goals and objectises
Renewals Attach a copy of current Advisory Council evaluation

. \
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SECTION D —~ PROJECT WORK PLAN

The Project Work Plan outlines precisely what 15 to be accomphished. when it 1s to be ac-
comphished, 2nd an estimated achiesement level against which progress is to b measured The
Work Plan 13 to be prepared in terms of Goals and Objectives A GOAL 1s your intended annual
achievement lvve! for each major pioject aclinity GOALS must be achievable, measurable, ume-
phased and generally long term 1n duration. OBJECTIV ES are actions or steps leading to the
achievement of a goal and must be achievable, measurable, time phased and short term 1n
duration.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROJECT WORK PLAN — First.identify yous {noyect s specific goals
— the quantitative level of achiesement you intend to attain by the end of the funded period
Second. outline on a quarterly basis the intenim achiesements to be attained or exceeded in
order to assure that cacn goal will be met The Project Work Plan should be a twelve month
Plan fcr all of the project activities below required by .our program guidelines Other actisities
m3y be outlined in the same manner to serve as a management guide, and for measuring
progress

The format on the following page 15 to be used in prepanng the Project Work Plan. Attach as
many reproduced copies as necessary to fully convey the goals and objectives Begin by cnter-
ing Goal #1 in column A, and then enter tn column B the date when the goal will be accom
plished Return to column A and hst your objectives, and in column B, the dates w hen the objec-
tives will be completed, usually at quarterly intervals throughout the twelve month period begin-
ning with the project funding start date

GOAL #1 Volunteer Assignments — Plan a vanety of volunteer assignments w hich are mean-
tngful to the volunteers and which will address basic human needs of the community through
speaific volunteer stations Busic objectives would be to (a) contact a given numbey of potential
volunteer stations, (b) explain the program concept and their obligations 1 support of
volunteers. (c) identifs the basic human needs to be addressed by each volunteer station and
deselop volunteer ussignmients in response to each of those needs. and (d) complcte a Memolian-
dum of Understanding with each prospective volunteer station to define the woi king relations
ship betwcen the sponsor project and the volunteer station On going projects will need to in
clude an objective for annual update of existing Memoranda of Understanding

Traditionallv, ACTION identifies a number of project activities as program emphasis areas
These emphasis areas tcnd to be specific to each OAVP program and may change wath time as
national circumstances warrant The ACTION State Offices w1ll provide information on current
emphasis areas for each OAVP program

U volunteer assignments arc expected to address any of these areas. the Project Work Plan
should include specific goals and objectives relating to sumber of volunteer stations. numbers of
volunteers to be assigned and volunteer hours to be generated in these areas The Project Work
Plan may also include developing assignments to meet local “Program emphasis” areas such as
transportation needs of sentors

GOAL #2 Recruitment and Placement of Voluntevrs — Specifs the number of volunteers to be
recruted, oriented and placed. consistent with the number of voluntees station assignmants
alrcady develcped as well as those planned to be developed Guthne specific monthly o1
quarterly objectives Develop a plan for periodic orientatiun sessions for newly 1¢crutted
volunteers, as well av a plan for in-ervice instruction for assigned volunteers. In additon on-
g0Ing projects may need to develop goals and objectises to decrease the number of inactive
volunteer., to develop special asaignments for retired piolessionals or other highhy shalicd
volunteers, etc.

The objectives relatin, to the number of voluntcer hours to be generated i each of the ereht
basic human nec” categonies should be shown RSVP only Spedific ieciutment actinines such
as pre Retireins nt Semanars mas alse be induded

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




ERI

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

46

GOAL 13 Project Advisory Council — The evolvement of a representative and well-developed Ad
visory Council must be one goal of the project. The sponsor should make ¢very effort to atiract
persons to gerve who can help guide the project by providing information and advice on com-
munity needs Continuing objectives of advisory councils are the ma.ntaining of permanen:
working subcommuttees with regularly scheduled meetings. improvement in the project’s local
financial support. appraisal of project management efficiency and v« ' inteer satifaction with
assignments, development of methods for recruitment of low-income and minonty persons. ar-
ranging for publicity — These are a few of the tasks of the project’s advisory council

GOAL # Volunteer Recognition — Public recogmition ceremomes should he scheduled
periodically to honor volunteers and other persons from the community for their services to the
project. Objectives could include setting up an Advisory Council committee to consider where
and when the ceremonies are to be held, determining which persons are to be honored. re-
searching financing and fund-raising sources, scheduling contacts with community leadets and
volunteer stations for their assistance,

GOAL #5 Management or Administrative Goals — In order for your Project Work Plan to serve
as an eff cive management tool, admimstrative goals may be included relating to

a Public Awareness — Include such objectives as contacts with media. National Volunteer Week
or Sentor Citizens Month activities, project newsletters, shde shows. and recognition of special
and disabled children, etc.

o

Generation of Local Support (both to meet projected commitment and for project expansion) —
Includes project and Advisory Council activities as well as requests to local governments
United Way, private foundations, private sector, etc.

3

Volunteer Station Relationships — On-going projects mas wish to write objectives for impios
ing relations with volunteer stations. dealing with such areas as provision of assignment
descriptions. training and broader opportunities for volunteers, incieast in project suppoit.
station visits or contacts by staff or Advisory Council members.
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PY'88 SCP NEW PROJECT GRANTS
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EXCEL GOOD FAIR WiEN

GENERAL CRITERIA [ () () (
1. Exclusive project focus on service

to the homebound elderly.

Comment (s):
2. Project located in areas with () ) ) )

concentrations of the homebound

eloerly.

Conrent(s):

3. Project applications conteain a « )
minimum of two volunteer statiors
that contorr tO empnasis area categories.

Comment(s):

Elagabilaty
1. The sponsor has prior experience ()

with nealth ang social service
programs that affect older persons.

Comment (s) :

Selection

1. Goals and objectives are reasonable, ( )
feasible and measurable and rerlect
written criteria contained in RAFF
(Notice of Availability of Federal
Funas).

Comment (s):
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1. The Service Area 1s manageabdle (
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0
t)‘ft




O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

[

TrarncpOrtetllon arranzements
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p.1ate to the service

area.
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6. Pre-service orientation
objectives reflect
reasonable and achiev-
avle time-frames.
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an Adgvisory Courncil.
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1. Capacity of potential
volunteer stations to
provide meaningful assign-
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Mr. GranDY. if you want to comment——

Ms. KENNY. I would reference the fact that last year when we
had additional funds provided for the Senior Companious Program
which resulted in the award of 44 new grants, we had a competi-
tive process included in announcement in the Federal Register.

Our state offices provided assistance to all eligible applicants and
there was a standardized application form which put heavy empha-
sis on the professional qualifications of the organizations applying.

There was a three-tiered process we used to ensure that we were
giving very close scrutiny to the services that would be provided
and to ensure that the recipients of the services would receive abso-
lutely first-rate care provided through our volunteers.

Mr. GranNDY. And this is uniform whether you are in an urban
or rural area?

Ms. KENNY. Yes. There is no distinction made.

Mr. KiLpEg. Mr. Poshard.

Mr. PosaarD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Forgive my ignorance about the way the program works from
the Federal level to the local, but can a local agency at a communi-
ty level apply for a grant directly to the Federal Government or
are these flow-through funds through state agencies?

Ms. KEnNy. It is a combination of both. For a Federal agency, we
have a comparatively small amount of bureaucracy compared to,
say, HHS. We have 47 state offices and they are able to provide
technical assistance, as Congressman Grandy had mentioned, to
local grass-roots organizations.

We have competitive grants that are published in the Federal
Register. We also have unsolicited grants whereby organizations
can apply without going through the competitive process.

Mr. PosHARD. I just completed a round of town meetings in my
district. I represent a rural district in southern Illinois. I was
amazed at the outcry from the senior citizens throughout my dis-
trict, because the Federal flow-through monies that come
through—we have an agency on the aged in the State of Illinois
and then we have regional agencies which administer the state pro-
grams By the time the money gets to the local level, about 35 per-
cent of it goes to administration.

Is that typical of your program or 1s your program atypical in
that sense, because these are important programs for the seniors
and especially in the rural areas. They need all of that money for
fundamental operations and 37 percent seems to be a high amount
of administrative fees.

Ms. KEnNY. On that point, Congressman, 1 don’t think I could
really comment because we are involved in what 1 would say is the
final chapter of tne distribution of the funds, not the first chapter.

I can tell you through the data we have as to where monies that
have ccme in through the Older Americans Act have come into our
prcgrarns, but percentagewise in comparison to where else they are
going and what other agencies they are being funded through to
get to ibe actual recipients, I can’t comment.

I can comment on ours. We have in approximately 24,860 hours
of volunteers. we are providing service and long-term care services
at at risk older progtams—they are directed primarily to chrono-
logically homebound clients affiliated with area agencies on aging.
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For example, the Michigan state agency on aging channeled
$106,000 to the Detroit senior companion pre ect to support respite
services, but the other money I can’t comment on.

Ms. ALvaraDpo. I have heard time and time again from senior cit-
izen organizations and individuals that it is much easier for them
to break into the ACTION arena than with the big departments
that have major block and formula grants where they feel there is
a lot of bureaucracy.

Because they develop a personal relationship with the ACTION
staff person in their state an individual goes directly to them if
they know of a good organization that wants to do good things for
seniors. The ACTION staff encourage them to apply, give them
technical assistance on how to fill out the grant proposal. That
doesn’t always happen with flow through funds.

In terms of administrative support compared to program dollars,
at ACTION we have found that the ideal ratio is 20 percent for
program administration to 80 percent program dollars within Fed-
erally appropriated funds.

Currently we are underfunded in the program admimsiraiion
area. We have about 17 percent and what we are asking for 1990
will get us up to 20 percent. The problem we have had is that fill-
ing vacancies in the states and providing support from headquar-
ters has been hampered because our support dollars have been in-
sufficient.

On the other hand, the problem has been exacerbated because
our program dollars have continued to increase. The number of
grants that we have has continued to go up since I have been there
for four years, while staffing levels have gone down.

If we don’t fix that, we won’t have the capability to provide criti-
cal technical assistance. We won’t have the capability to provide
that outreach and only the big organizations who have the bu-
reaucracy in place, who read the Federal Register, who have the
money to hire grant writers, proposal writers, will be able to com-
pete for our funds. We think that would be totally wrong and total-
ly inconsistent with the mandate of this agency, which is to serve
the grass-roots level community.

Mr. PosiarD One more question. How is your program translat-
ed in terms of informational activities down to the local level? I
don’t even know whether there are any ACTION programs in my
district, for instance.

Hogv would someone in my district know about the ACTION pro-
gram?

Ms. ArLvarapo. Well, of course the first line there would be our
state personnel who have the responsibility to be in contact with
senior citizen organizations and with social service delivery sys-
tems within the stcte aud within the local communities. But these
offices are very small There are usually four people in them when
fully staffed and they are overextended.

In addition, we have a public affairs function within the agency
which has, again, because of lack of resources, has not been able to
do as much as we would like in that area, but we are able to put
out na‘ional posters and informational brochures on our programs.

Finally we can sometimes suffer from something that 1s at once a
curse, and a blessing the fact that it is important the loca! organi-
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zations receive the primary publicity and community support. The
result can be that RSVP volunteers will frequently think of them-
selves as volunteers for the local homeless shelter, for example,
rather than being an ACTION volunteer.

Certainly we aren’t looking specifically for the credit as a fund-
ing source or national visibility as a Federal agency, but we do be-
lieve it is important to increase visibility for our specific programs
such RSVP, FGP, and SCP. The primary ways of getting the word
out are through our state offices with the support of the public af-
fairs office at headquarters.

We do provide a briefing book for each Member of Congress on
projects in their district, and we would be happy to provide you
that and have a member of our Illinois staff talk to your district
staff. Also, we would be pleased to escort you on site visits to
become personally familiar with these programs

Mr. Posuarp. Thank you.

Mr. KiLpee. If in my lifetime a member of my party ever gets
elected President, and I am inclined to leave Congress, the one ap-
pointment I would like would be director of ACTION because I
think it is a very important post and a post where you can really
touch people’s lives.

Ms. ALvarapo. Thank you. You would make a great director of
ACTION.

Mr. KiLpee Thank you for your testimony this morning. We will
be submitting some other questions in writing.

Our first panel this morning will consist of Betty Pate Manley,
president of the National Association of Foster Grandparent Direc-
tors, San Jose, California; Dwight Rasmussen, secretary treasurer,
National Assoc’ation of Senior Companion Directors, Salt Lake
City, Utah; Winifred Dowling, president, National Association of
RSVP Directors, El Paso Texas; and Marian Williams, project di-
rector, RSVP, Dubuque, Iowa.

You may proceed in that order or any order you want.

STATEMENTS OF BETTY PATE MANLEY, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF FOSTER GRANDPARENT DIRECTORS; DWIGHT
RASMUSSEN, SECRETARY TREASURER, NATIONAL ASSOCIA-
TION OF SENIOR COMPANION DIRECTORS:; WINIFRED DOWL.-
ING, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RSVP DIREC-
TORS: AND MARIAN WILLIAMS, PROJECT DIRECTOR, RSVP

Ms Mantey. Thank you very much, Congressman Kildee, and
other Members of the committee. I am Betty Pate Manley. I have
been a director of the Foster Grandparent Program in Santa Clara
County, California, for 16 years. I also have the honor of being the
president of the National Association of Foster Grandparent Pro-
gram Directors for the past three years, and we do represent a ma-
Jority of the programs in the nation.

I have submitted a prepared statement for you which I ask be
made a part of the record.

Mr KiLpee Without objection, it will becume part of the record
and you may summarize.

Ms. MANLEY. | have one more thing that I would like to request
be made a part of the record This is my own program's latest news
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letter, and it has articles in it by the foster grandparents telling
:ivhat the program means to them and their work with the chil-
ren.

Mr. KiLbEE Without objection, it shall become part of the record.

Ms. MaNLEY. Thank you.

I will go on then to highlight a few of the matters that I ad-
dressed in my written testimony. You will have to excuse me, I am
a little nervous.

The first matter that I wanted to speak about was the suggestion
that I have made that a provision be included in the reauthoriza-
tion of the domestic volunteer act to mandate ACTION to under-
take public awareness activities. Those activities have decreased a
great deal in the last few years and what we have now is sporadic
and infrequent.

We need posters. brechures, videos, slide presentations that are
specific tc each program and that depict our programs directly and
appealingly to the local communities. We are badly in need of
those things for recruitment purposes, for general information pur-
poses to let the community know that we are there.

Another section on—a new section, to provide a program that
would be of national significance and that is to place foster grand-
parents with special needs children in day care. There are many
children in day care who do have special needs. We have large
numbers of children who are developmentally delayed, we have
family situations of silence, we have child abuse and neglect, in
general lack of parenting skills, and situations of alcohol and/or
drug abuse.

The grandparents can have a real impact on those children at
such an early age, and I speak from experience. We have some
foster grandparents in Moffet Field Naval Air Station Child Devel-
opment Center in my county and the change in the children in the
chiidren is immediate because they are so young and so malleable.
These are children who will be identified later in school as special
needs children that our foster grandparents are serving in schools.

The third item is the need for a stipend increase. $2.20 an hour is
getting to sound pretty low even to a low-income senior. 1 have
seen many disappointed faces when I interview people. I try to tell
them all the good things first and save that one. The stipend hasn't
kept pace with inflation.

We have other programs coming along. I have n.eard of one that
is paying $8 an hour, another in Connecticut paying $10 an hour, I
think that if we do value the work of the foster grandparents as
much as we say they do, and I know we do value it, that they cer-
tainly deserve a stipend raise. )

Then the final measure I want to talk about is that we are
asking you in Congress to consider including in the Domestic Vol-
unteer Service Act a mechanism to provide an annual COLA to the
programs. This is a subject that is very dear to my heart.

We have had years and years of no Federal increase until last
year, when Ccagress gave us a COLA, which I thank you for from
the bottom of my heart. And so, with inflation, that has been like a
cut for us every year.

The reason I know that we had no increases is because the
amount of money I got—was for our program, was $189,281—was
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in the pathways of my brain. It never changed. I never had to
change things. That was the good thing about it. I could almost tell
where I was in the year by looking and seeing how much money I
had spent. I would know if I were right on target.

Mr. KiLpEE Would you take the 51 percent proposed for Con-
gress?

Ms. MANLEY. Do you know someone in Idaho wrote a letter to
Congress about that and the Foster Grandparents signed it.

Mr. KiLpee. Good for you.

Ms. MaNLEY. I was stuck. It made the bookkeeping a little easier.
I was stuck with trying to figure out how to raise money to make
up for this cost, this cost-of-living increase we didn't get because, of
course, as we know, costs do go up.

I know that if we had a cost-of-living adjustment all along—and 1
do know there are Federal programs who get this—we would have
avoided some of the problems that have come from not having a
strong administrative system. For instance, I am not really serving
the entire community. I am serving as I best can with the money
that I have.

We have a number of Foster Grandparents in a school for handi-
capped children. As we move those children out, mainstream them,
they literally beg me to send Foster Grandparents with them.

I did that for as long as I could, but I can no longer do that be-
cause | don’t have the administrative structure to do it and don't
have the transportation money to pay for those grandparents going
to many different sites. I place them some place. They can get
there on a bus.

Now, I don’t want to deny our responsibility to raise the local
share. I do think that sponsors and directors have a strong respen-
sibility and, of course, the total grants do show that we have raised
a great deal of money ourselves. But you may know that the re-
quired local match is 10 percent for the Foster Grandparent pro-
gram. In my own program at the present time our match is 26 per-
cent; and in the administration, our match is 40 percent. If it had
not been for the COLA, it would have been up to 45 percent. That
is why I am thanking you for the COLA.

I feel so strongly about this and I know how much programs are
suffering. I hear this all the time from other directors.

My term as president will be up at the end of this year. If I can
leave no other legacy, I would like the legacy to be that Congress
would pass a COLA during my presidency of the national associa-
tion.

Mr. KiLpee. Thank you very nuch.

[The prepared statement of Betty Pate Manley follows.]
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Subcommittee, thank you for inviting
me to testify today on the reauthorization of the Domestic
volunteer Service Act. My name is Betty pate Manley. I am
President of the National Association of Foster Grandparent
Prcgram Directors and Director of the Foster Grandparent Program
in Santa Clara County, California, whose sponsor 1s Catholic
Charaities.

The National Association of Foster Grandparent Program Directors
was formed in 1971. We represent a majority of the programs in
the nation.

The purpose of this organization is to provide a unified body to
deal with the concerns facing older Americans and to work
together toward improvement of the Foster Grandparent Program and
the betterment of life for the Foster Grandparents. I have
incluced with my testimony a fact sheet on our association, and I
ask that it be made wart of the hearing record.

As you know the Foster Grandparent Program is nearly twenty-five
years old, having begun in 1965 with twenty-one programs funded
by the Office of Economic Opportunity. The Foster Grandparent
Program is recognized as the first federally sponsored
"intergenerational program," one benefitting both seniors and
children. It is also cne of the first "productive aging"
programs -- which is a new term referring to programs that
recognize and utilize the contributions that older persons can
make to their communities.

The Foster Grandparents Program is much different today than when
it started in 1965 as an income supplement program for low income
seniors. When the first twenty-one Foster Grandparent Programs
were initially funded, groups of Foster Grandparents (35-40) were
placed in large institutional settings where they were assigned
to provide one-to-one, ongoing and consistent relationships with
mentally and/or physically impaired, emotionally disturbed or
dependent and neglected youngsters. This, then, became the
“traditional™ type of program and remained so for several years
with the senior volunteers, all of whom are low income, and sixty
years of age or older, serving twenty hours per week, usually
every morning, Monday through Friday. Management of the programs
was fairly simple as a small staff could readily supervise the
seniors assigned as they were in large groups within one or two
volunteer stations.

There have been spectacular and exciting changes in the Foster
Grandparent Program since those beginnings, and there are over
250 federally funded programs in cperation today utilizing the

talents and skills of over 18,000 foster grandparents. The
program has gradually taken on a mich broader, community-based
structure. This has enabled foster grandparents to serve

children with a wide range of special and/or exceptional needs
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and has also served to demonstrate the true versatility of the
senior volunteers and their ability to adapt to youngsters of all
types, in a variety of setting and exhibiting many levels of
behaviors.

As an example of the above, and using my own program in San Jose
as demonstration of these changes, we currently have 85 foster
grandparents placed in community settings in assignments that
vary and include: working with teenage mothers and their small
children, substance abusers, juvenile delinquents, run-away
youth, abused and neglected children, infants born to addicted
mothers and therzfore addicted themselves, non-English speakers,
and other children and youth who are non-literate for a variety
of reasons.

These changes have brought with them many new challenges.
Supervision that was adequate for groups of Foster Grandparents
placed within one or two settings can nc longer b. effective when
that same staff must cover the same, or an increasing number, of
seniors assigned to 6 - 15 settings.

It is important to stress that the provision of good, strong
supervision for the Foster Grandparents is a key element in <he
success of these programs. This includes not only giving needed
direction and support to the volunteers in their relationships
with their assigned foster grandchildren, but in also assisting
them in any other way that can aid in enriching their lives, and
providing the support they need as they grow older to continue to
volunteer as Foster Grandparents -- personal and/or family
problems, housing and medical difficulties, legal needs, etc. I
might add that the average age of volunteers in my own program is
now 75 years.

The training needed by the Foster Grandparents must be as varied
as the types of placement utilized. Current program budgets
stretched to the limit and providing minimum supervision contain
no provisions for much needed training of foster grandparents.

Recruitment goals mandated by regulations cannot be met under
present budgets. Because of lack of funds, the tendency of
directors is to enroll into the program people who contact them
on their own initiative. The cobligation to reach the hard to
reach - thprse most in need of our services - those with lowest
incomes, the isolated, ethnic minorities and the disabled -
cannot be fulfilled under present budget constraints.

Program resources are presently stretched far beyond their
limits, and the majority of programs are finding it extremely
difficult to survive and/or to maintain quality operation. The
needs of the programs must be addressed if they are to contlnue
to provide the very fine services to seniors and children that
brought the Foster Grandparent Program to national prominence.

3

c oy Rv

“l)

RIC :

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




62

Foster Grandparent Program sponsors and directors have long
recognized and acknowledged their role in, as well as the need
for, seeking local and private sector support. It is wvital,
however, that we all are aware of the fierce level of competition
for such resources and of the fact that the availability of such
funds continue to diminish. Communities are experiencing
cutbacks of their revenue sharing allocations, state and local
agencies have rfewer dollars for programs, and private sector
resources can be stretched only so far. Although Foster
Grandparent Programs have been successful in obtaining monies
from the above sources to augment their budgets, no existing
program can continue to operate without the support received from
ACTION.

A graphic example of the difficulties facing programs because of
frozen federal budgets is that my own sponsor, Catholic
Charities, after sixteen years of meeting all COLAs by increasing
their contribution to the program, informed me that for Fy 1988,
they not only would not be able to provide a COLA but would also
have to cut their current support by $10,000. T™e alternative
was that they would have to drop the progi.m.

This 1s an indication of the extreme financial situation local
non-profit agencies find themselves facing. In talking with
other program directors, I find others who report similar
situations with sponsors saying for the first time and with
obvious reluctance that they are considering whether or not to
continue sponsoring the programs.

Wwith this background, I would like to go on to our suggestions
fer legisiative change.

1. Deletion of the non-stipend volunteer provision in the
current law. As you know, cur national association opposed this
provision at the time of its legislative enactment on the grounds
there would be a dearth of people who would want to participate,

and this proved to be true. Some programs had done this on a
limited basis before the enactment of the legislation, and we
were not opposed to this. However, we did not want to be

pressured to spend a lot ¢f time and effort looking for non-
stipended volunteers when sur experience had taught us finding
them was not realistic. We would like the provision stricken
from the books.

2. Increase in the authorization for the Foster
Grandparent/3enior Companion stipend from $2.20 to $2.50 per
hour. The stipend has not kept .pace with inflation. The last
raise was in 1985.

There are now a number of programs providing employment and
opportunity for service to seniors.. It is not unusual for these
programs to pay the seniors $8.00 - $10.00 an hour. 1t is very

4
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difficult for the Foster Grandparent Program to compete with
these other programs.

Since we place seniors with the lowest incomes, they have the
greatest need for an increase in their hour stipend. If we value
so greatly the work they do with the children, they certainly
deserve a stipend raise.

3. A provision mandating that ACTION undertake public awareness
activities to promote the Older American Volunteer Programs.
Current activities are infrequent and sporadic and not helpful to
local programs. We need an ongoing effort by ACTION with such
items as posters and brochures which are specific to each program
and which are designed to depict our programs directly and
appealingly to our local communities.

4. A provision that will encourage the Direction of ACTION to
work with private sector organizations and associations such as
the National Associaticn c¢f Foster Grandparent Program Directors
in their efforts to promote the Older American Volunteer
Programs. Currently, there is a policy discouraging the work of
the associations which needs to be overridden. Our national
association has accompiished such things as spearheading the
execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of
Defense and raising local monies.

In 1987, 29% of Foster Grandparent Program funds were non-ACTION
funds. These are funds raised by directors who consult and
advise each other on this subject through the association. For
example, in California the Foster Grandparent Program obtained
funds for state supported foster grandparents through the work of
the association with the state legislature. The funding level is
currently $366,000. This has happened also in a number of other
states. We also provide technical assistance to directors. With
the encouragement of ACTION, the association could work with
ACTION to strengthen the program for the greater good of the
seniors and the children they serve.

5. A new section to be entitled: Programs of National
Sigrnificance, which would include a new component focusing on the
assignment of Foster Grandparent volunteers with speclal needs
children in day care centers. This Subcommittee’s work on a
comprehensive child care bill underscores Congressional concern
about the child care dilemma in this country. There is a role
that Foster Grandparents can play here. Many of the children
being placed in day care have special needs, such as
developmental delays; others are at risk because of family
situations of drug and/or alconol abuse, vic 2rce, etc.

5. Upgrade the Older American Volunteer Procgrams Director
position at ACTION to a presidential appointment in order to
liighlight national attention and commitment to cenio:

5
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volunteerism. Also ensure that there is a separate program
office responsible for each ¢f the three Older American Volunteer
Progranms. This haa always been the case until recently.

Currently, the Foste- Grandparent and Senior Companion Programs
are combined with one person responsible for both programs. Each
program has a need for a separate identity. The focus of each of
these programs is very different; each is concerned with a highly
speclalized field. There are different recruitmeat needs and
different training needs. Each program deserves the visibility a
separate head would bring.

7. Four years reauthorization with a 5% increase in funding
levels each year would provide for priority concerns of the
National Association of Foster Grandparent Program Directors

which are:
a. A stipend increase within the four year period.
b. A mechanism to provide a COL increase for QAVP
grantees.
c. A minimum amount of program expansion.
d. Funding for a program of national significance

involving Foster Grandparents in day care.

To come back to the need for a COL increase, if we had had this
annual adjustment since the beginning, as many federal programs
do, and for some reason we did not get, some of the problems I
have discussed earlier would not have happened. The ability of
programs to recruit, train and support the very low income
elderly has been handicapped because we do not have strong enough
administrative systems due to frozen federal budgets. ACTION has
not given us the administrative support needed to do the job
well.

Many of the concerns I have brought to your attention can be
addressed through these suggested legislative changes. Other
concerns may not include a legislative remedy, but because of
your oversight responsibilities for ACTION’s programs, 1 wanted
to take this opportunity to bring them to your attention. The
National Association of Foster Grandparent Program Directors
stands ready, as always, to work with your Committee, with the
Congress, and with ACTION to seek solutions that will result in a
Foster Grandparent Program that can continue to thrive in the
years ahead.

Thank you.
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The National Association of Foster Grandparent Program Directors, Iac was

cre «ed in 1971 in Washington, D C at a meeting of Directors fror across the
country attending a natfonal training conference It developed trem a need
felt by Directors to have an orpanization to address itself to chelr collective
nceds and concerns relative to the betterrent of the progra~s ard enrichment

of the lives of the foster grandparents Officers were elected and charged
with developing by-laws and operating practices

The purpose of NAFGPD, Inc 1is to provide through a national tocus

vis1bilitv and advoracy for FCP, a network of ce~runications arong FUP Birectors
and preje (s, a vehicle for expression of majoritv opinion on behalf of FGP

and oldei americans to Congress, ACTION, the Administration on Aglmw, and

other appropriate governmental and national units, to act as a reswurce and

make available techn :al assistance to FGP Directors and sponsors, ACTI(H and
other community groups as nceded and deered appropriate

Active merbership is copen to all FOP Directors, coordinators and supervisors.
Active rerbers have voting priviieges Associate rembership is open to all
non-prograT staff and to all other interested persons or groups

NAFGPD is operated throurh a Board of Directors composed of nationalis
elected officers (President, Vice President. Secretary. Treasurer) and a
Reglonal Representative elected bv the paid merbers of each ACTION ocutlined
reglon The Board of Direc ors meets twice vearly im Washington, D C

REPRESENTATION tor those served by FGP speaking on their behalt before
national govern~ent bodies.

ADVOCACY for older Arericans 1s a national resource
COMUNICATION on {ssues ano ideas relvvant to FuF

RESOLRCE DEVELOPMENT through networking with both the private secter and
public agencies.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT of PGP Directors throush workshops and trainimy
proyrarms of technical assistance

SURVEYS AND DATA BASES to afd FGP Directors ranare their projects

For more intormation, ontact

Betty Pate Manlev, President Frances Butler, hashimitin Vepresentatise
195 E “an Fernarde Street letl Binvham Terracc
San tose, CA 95112 Reston, VA 22091

{«38) 28n-555%3 (703) 860-9570
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MANY WAYS TO MOTIVATE CHANGE

Four years ago when I joined the Foster Grand-

parent Program, I thought 1t was an
opportunity to help sore kids. to make their
confinement more bearatle and to change their
lifestyle. Of course, 1 should rmention the
stipend which comes in so useful vhenever

I receive it

Today, after four years, I still enjov my
participation in the program I feel so
happy being with those kids four hours every
day, and when I can’t make it to the Wright
Center I miss them so much that I often am
amazed at how ruch I get out of the progran
syself,

One day a supervisor told us that she wu
sending one of the girls to spend some tire
with us and cautioned US not to let “er out
of our sight. The girl came and sat down
with us lookhing very sad. I said to her,
"You do not laok verv happv  Let's play a
game or pool." She quietly said,
“Grandpa, I am a bad girl " Then she told
re vhat she had done. : said, "Honey, I
think that vou are a good girl who did a
bad thing  You must thank of yourself as a
good girl and try to do onlv £0od things."
The look on her face warmed mv heart

There was another girl who wanted to g0 to
college when she got out. Fverv day she
would talk about going to coliege, One dav
I told her she should try to get sore A's
and B's in schoel to help her enter collexe
A couple of months after our conversation.
she care to us FGs on a happv note. ''Grardp
1 got an A+." I was so happv tor her and I
congratulated her Just then her fricnd whe
was standing nearoy said to her, "Why don't

you tell Grandpa what you got an A+ in."
Troudlv she replied, "Sex Education.“

1 encouraged her to pick another subject
ond strive for some morc A pluses.

Then there was the girl who was very good
c1 the video machine She would make
12,000 to 14,000 points while I usually
stiuggled to make 9,000 or so  One day
vhe made 23,000 poirts and cooly told re,
‘trandpa, don't even try." But 1 did try.
Toen one dav I nade 24,000, When she
cane with us, T i1nvited her to go with me
and see what the machine had recorded
latelv  When she saw 24,000 with my
wnit1als, she vas amazed  She asked
¢xcitedlys "Grandpa. Fow did vou do it?"
I quoted H W, longfellow

The heights great ren reached
and kept were not attained by
sudden flight but thev, while
their companions slept, were
toiling upwards through the
right

Thea I peinted out to her, "Whatever
vou want to achieve vou can, if vou
trv hard enocugh "

Grandra Leonard Surrey
N;)\ wright Residential Certer
Jec
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OUR SPECIAL MILLIE

Milne katemopoulos 1s a spe.ial person

11 the s1ght of the ¥Gs, and we "thank you'
again, Millie, for the Pre-holiday
Beutique vou sponsored for the benefit

ot the KP

We are deeply prateful for the gener .
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proceeds which mean ruch o our progra~
Thanks a thousand times over and ray
God bless you, Millie.

Rk kkkkx

A _FG DAY AT DELLA MAGGIORF

When asked, ''What does a FG do”" Mv reply
is, "We help children with special needs."
Our day begins about 9 15 a » when the
busses start arriving with the children

¥e tahe the chiidren to their roors in
wheelchairs The tedcher ane airdes chanee
and pottie then, They are given a drink,
then we gather around the table 1n a (ircle
and we sing songs,

After mornming circle tue children ha o

therr exercises. The FGs ruth thear chiluren
or take them out for a walk  When we pet
back we start feeding them, When thev
finisn, then we eat lunch After luwh scme
of the children 10 home and so,u others

core. Sorte of these need to be walked or
roched  And scre we just plav with  Then
we go home feeling we have done Some fuod to
these unfortunate children

Grandra Sally lappin
Della Magygiore Center

AFRERKK

“Auntie Agnes, what kind of redicire are
you™", asled the curicus tet  ™icdicane™,
Aunt Agnes said in surprise  ''ves," her
niece replied "Muommy «0id vou're a pali

Jacgueline Schatf

HRA L kR

"I wncw this 1s the f1ish

Diner to warter
of the day -- but what dav

Davad harbaugh
in "Cosropolitan™

Ak kR k

When wu pot o-'r leng distance phime Pill we
tound t=at our daughter had been ~arin., 60
rinute calls to a b .friend awav at culleze
'From now on," her fatac Poarnlv, "vour
calls are limited to § mnutes "
“Dad, what can I say in S minutes””
warled  "(all me back M ohe anwwered,
Frleen ¢ Oaeny
Dalton, I1l

(athy K\
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BEING THERE WHEN 1'M NEEDED

1 have been a FG for the past year. It
his been a pleasure woihing with the
stulents  The needs of the students are
~many. Thev need help emotionally as well
4o with thear studies, My being there
when taey need to talk to somecne means so
nuch to them The nelp I have given 1is
appreciated A hug occastonally works
both wavs

The voung mothers necd encouragerent and
suppurt  The growth I've seen in the
students 1s very rewarding

Bein, a4 FG has giver re a new way of Iife --
fecl.ng needed ane worthwhile once ape n.

It 15 a pleasure to eventually sce the
students graduate, knowing I had a part in
their accomplish=ent The love and
consideration shown the FGs by the students
and staff 1s appreciated 1 am grateful for
the pleasure of worhing at Broadway High
School

Grardma Helen Haanah
Rroadway High School

KRKKKK

A MZEW FOSTER GRANDMOTHER

As a new FG I have bevn working with the
older bovs and girls at McKirnon School

1 enjoy ©v student verv much e 1s very
pelite and cooperates with me to get things
dene

The teachers and aides have been very good to
re 1 rcally enjov ©v etk a~d the children,
and « hope to te tvre tor a while

Grandra Pauline Brochu
McKinnon School

FRRKAR

“What de vou lo.e rost abour re?

ZVV the worn asted her husband "My

aatural besuty or my gorgecus body?"
Husband®  "Your scnse f hurer

({- Vil Chadwica Bay oy
Aot otk boateres




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

68

FROM BETTY MANLEY, DIRECIOR

We can all treathe a big sigh of contentment
and relief for a trerendous Job over and
well done. Fund raising efforts this fall
were enormously successful, raising a

total of more than $1,700 for FG

recreation and for program needs. Of course,
without the tremendous talent and hard work
of Millie hatercpoulos we would not have
dnone nearly so well Millie's boutique

was fantastic A special thanks to her
fron e and also to all you FGs whe
crocheted, ¥nitted and sewed and baked
wonderful goodics that people bought so
eagerly. Our boutique at John xXIIl was
also great  Thanks to all of vou for your
contributions, to the FGs who worked, and

to all who bought. It was fun und a job
well done

We are off 1into a busy December with all
our parties. One of the new FGs last vear
saild Christmas was really Christmas for her
now because there were parties with caring
people sharing with each other.

This year will bring a sad goodbye for

all of us as we wish Lorraine Actor
Godspeed Lorraine will be retiring sore
tire in early 1989  Atter eleven years
with FGP as ficld superviser/progrim
coordinator, Lorraine's contrrbution has a
value that w11l be hard to maten  She
anows everything abcut how PGP worns at the
heart of tae action -- there at the hoet
site  dShe w.ll be sorely =f«sed

etz
ORANDPARENT
PROEXAN
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ALL IN THE FAMILY

We welcome bach the FGs who have had
surgery, a fall or {llness. Art Kenmore,
Barbara Davey, Ann McConachie,

Mary Lachmansingh. Sol Soxol,

Doris Winget, Lila Newhall, Theluwa
McCluskey, Leonard Surrey, Margaret
Dougherty, Charlotte Crawford and

Ruby Pvrro

Lillian Schroeder had an unfortunate
accident and was badly burned. She is
bome now and doing nicely.

Christine ward is recovering and
naking good progress. We are happy to
know that she 1s well enough to move
in with friends at Seaside.

Eva Davey and Lucille Jordan, tvo former
FGs are at Skvline Convalescent kospital
(2065 Forest *ve , San lose) and would
love to have visitors.,

@innic Beil s still recovering from heart
surgerv and is espected back soon.

RAKKFK
MEET VI p’LIMA

We very happilv welcored Viola D'Lira to
Our propram staff In October. A Semfor
Communitv Service frployrent Preoect employee
and otticially our Progran Assistant, Vi

T1ngs with her a wealth of background in
education and social services in Indfa.

I~ addition to teaching, sne was Head-
mistress of a hirh - ~Yool for 26 years.,
Her activities have included work with the
cub scouts, those ecnom Lally and socially
underprivileged, the handicapped, the
abandoned and the aged. She was deeply
involved 1n Church and Woren's issues,
being active in groups in India that help
fight discrinination against women in
Church and society In her words, ‘(1 am)
delighted to be t.re ¢t John XXIII Senior
fenter and especa {1y in the FGP which seens
s0 much like a continuation of the work that
f1res my Ufe meanirg
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ARGTLS IN DISCLISE

It's 4 vears nov asince 1 began working at
Juvenile Hall and I hope 1n scme small way
I've made a difference in the lives of the
young people there. At first I worled .n
the boys' units The boys were alwavs kind
and respectful to the ¥Gs. Some of the
younger boys would tell me their problers
and even kiss me when they left for school,
They made me feel so wanted, that when I was
told 1'd have to change to the girls' unit,
although 1 loved doing crafts, I was no: at
all happy. 1 had heard such nepative things
about them, and, yes, they do swear a lot
rore than the boys but I soon learned they
could be just as nice and even rore
affectionate.

Tne other day I feil and Lurt my hand while
running for a bus, and oh, what a fuss they
and the staff made when I went in to work

"Are vou all right, Grandma®" "We'll pet

your chair for you, Grandma.” "Sit Grandma
I'11 get vour tray " "Please, Grandra, be
careful. Don't run for busses, ro matter

what " "We love vou Grandma W don't

want to lose you

Yes. these are the sa~e girls that somctires
give the staff a very hard time  But when
you think things over, they dare really

ittle woren and woren on the whole like
things their own way, be 1t in dress, kvering
the home or cooking the meals, so it's
natural there will be clasnes with th. aft
and each other but with the FGs, they a-o
simply little angels May (od help and
bless then

Grandma Mary lachransingh
Juvenle Hall

LEE 1T

Emplovrent agenev clerk to job-hunting

The plumber arrived several hours late for
an emerygency cail He apologized and
asked  "Did you have any trcuble while
y0U were waiting”"

"Oh, n~" sarg en - .
"wriie we were waiting. we taught the
children how to swi= "

“Yargaret Faith
~den, hew Jersey

AXKKKK
S MG MEMORIES TOGETHER

The FGP has a twofold putpose == to reet the
various needs of cnildrern and to give older
pecple a chance to share their love of
children and keep active and therefore
healthy  Our children are our country's
greatest asset, and our retirees the
freatest link to the past =-- a chain that
rust not be orcken.

have been a part ot the chain fer several

vears == very happy and rewarding ones It
is such a plezsart surprise to meet forrer
pupils and share remories with them, Then
rou realize hew much you and vour family
are cherished by ther. Little things to vou
but so 1rportant to them It's the greatest
boost to rerale you can get
It's a wonderful program. and deserves the
ccoperation and help of the entire comrunity,
1 only hope more retirecs will join and
share our enjevrent

Grandpa Al Dolbec

Chandler Tripp School

KRKKK X

Tcacher "Hea meav days are there 1n
ear "

Student Tkt

Teacher "oy mary weeks fpoa v M

student e

Teacher "How "ary ceccnds arc tuerc in
a year™"”

Ctudent e

Teacher
Studeat

wan Znd, Peb 2nd, “ur

Marian Vao Fosser
weot Vir,ima

client "We'll have to hianlight vour 5 od
points "
Client "I was fired 15 timcs,"
Clerk "what's gocd about that®
Client "I'm a0 quatier M

Dorotny Gracey

Db, New rorh

IR 22221

O
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GRATITUDE AND COMMITMENT

I az a FG and I say that with pride. I
have many reasons to say that, all of
thea "Students”. This is =y third year
at Stipe School and I am looking forward
to many more in the future,

I joined the program at a low point in

my life. My wife had passed away and I
found it very difffcult to be alone I
wasn't alcne for very long after gettin,
into the program. I met a wonderful group
of Grandparents I could relate to and
enjoy their comnanionship 1 enjoy worening
with and relating to the gtudents I am
assigned to All the Grandparents know
the great feeling we all have at the end
of each terr, real:zing ve have contributed
in som¢ small way to every student who wa1ll
move up t> his next class, ready to reet a
new challenge

I a=m grateful to the program for allowing
~e to be a part of ft. It 1s a nice
feeling to be working with tne dedicated
tcachers who work at Stipe School., I have
the pleasant task of workirg with Ms. Carol
Bish ~ho teaches her class with hu~or,
nowledge und corpassion tor all her
students.

I ould like to acknowledge tne help and
direction ve receive from cur Director,
Betty Manley, and her staff,

I regret that many of our seninr citirens
who ¢ould rake our progra~ ri “er don't
realize hew =uch richer 1n sp.-1i they
would be 1f they j..zed us

I close this knowing tnat the FGP s one
of the rost pleasant comritrents I will
ever rake

rondpa Ar: Keamore
Stipe Schonl

L3 12
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RIENTATION

WEEK

{

I vant to write a few words about our FG
Or:iertation Week. It was without a doubt

_ac of the best weeks I've spent since coring
My experience was a little
different than rost because I had been
working almost 2 months before I had the
orientation. I took over for a grandfather
when he had to leave. I felt like I went In
the back door so to speak.

I never fully understood all tne things
about the progran I never felt like I
really belonged, or was a part of everything
until I spert the week with the new group
of FCs.

We were 3 small group, but everyone was so
thrilled to be needed Wwe all wanted to be
doinyg something useful with our tire  Th:s
week of ortientation helped me to better
underatand ry 2 ronths previous expevrience
and to know what to erspect 1n the futire

7 hope rv "classmates' will all rerain
good friends and keep in touch

Isma Hidde
Child Care Center

Grandra
Moffett Fieid

FARFRK

Ducerber 9, 1983 Annual Christras Party
Dece~her 19, 1988 Mercury Savings Luncaeon
Lecemner 23, 1388 Pre-(rrist~as Holaday
Decerter 2h, 1988 Chrisi-as Poliday

KAKS R

I AR



HAPPY YET SAD

Having had 1 heart surgery and being
of f work si .uly 1, it was a happy
day when the doctor satd 1 could
return to wotrk the 19th of September.

Upon returning and entering oy

Intermediate Boys Unit, it was a happy
day when 1 was greeted with, "Grandma'"
"Grandma, you're back!” "I nmissed you!"

"Are you all righe?”

It did oy heart good to know that I had
been missed, and they were happy to see
=e back, But {t was also sad to know
that some of them were still there and
had not been released. However sose
had gone, and others had tz' ~n thelr
places. It {s always good to see them
go permanently, whether {t's returning
home, going to a foster home, I'm
happy for the=x.

_ Grandma Doris Winpet __
Children's Shelter

KARKAR
HELPING "SPECIAL" KIDS

As I began my 2nd year at Blackford
School I was touched again by the warzth
extended to the FGs by the teachers,
aides and therapists. They rake us

feel that we are an {mportant part of a
team, all there for the sazme purpose—-
to give help, love and support to all our
special kids It is very gratifyirg to
see the progress cach child has wade snd
to feel that you may have helped {f

enly a litele.

My "special" child this year i3 a girl
that I probably could not have worked
with last year. Because of the progress
she has made {n corzunicating and
because I have grown in the program and

feel more comfortable, we are able to work

well together, share s few laughs and
cach day take a srall step forwar.
together.

It {s vonderful to have a place to g0
everyday where vou are needed and winted

and knew that you will be missed {f you are

not there

Grandm« Phyllis Foster
Blackford Schocel

ERIC
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WHAT 1 HAVE LEARNED ABOUT
ThESE CHILDREN

This {s my second year with the FGP and
believe e {t’s been a very nice

experience. The children I see every day are
hard of hearing but they are very sweet

and nice. Soze have big, bright blue

eyes, some have tousled hair, but they

all haye a big smile for all of us,

My little one {s only 3 years old but

at tizes he acts all grown up and helps
take the chairs off the table where they
were left the night before is litele
fellow does 1t on his own, nobody asks him
to do {t. When we thank hia he just
smiles and ruckers his nose.

These kids are all very special to ze.
Each one of them shows his love and
appreciation {n his own way for what we
do for them.

The first week I worked with my litcle
friend he was very shy and didn’t

speak at all Later he was able to say one
word (more). Mow he {s doing very, very
well. It gives me satisfaction to see

the {rprovement.

I often sec the li{ttle boy I worked with
last year. He always runs up and givec
re a big hug that nmakes me feel warm
instde.

I thank the FGP, also Mrs. Shipe, the
teacher. Laura and Donna her helpers

for making me feel at ease. 1 hope to
stay in the Progrum for as long as I cen.

frandra Fernina Olivas
Faman School

Rk hkkk
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A TIME FOR PARTING

1 have been in Juvenile Hall over 9
years. When I was i{ntroduced in oy
unit, the boys were just that, "boys"
with preteen antics, never 2 dull
monent. I look back with a little
sadness when I recall so many, their
unique personalitizs, their reasons
for being in our care. How happy I
was when they could return hoze.

Life is made of changes and so 1t is
-- no more preteens  Our boys are in
their late teens, soon will become
adults.

Once a week we have Adult Education
classes which seem to be beneficial
because of the question and answer
part of the discussion.

Soon they will be leaving Juvenile
Hall because of the:r age -- never
to return, Each will gb his owm way
Some, honme to their parents, scome
have jobs waiting for them and sore
have youn~ farilies they have plans
for.

when they leave, all we can do is
wish thez well and hope fcr the
best.

Granama Annette Davidsor
Juvenile Hall

L1331 13

Wile, “Why do you always go
outside vhen I sing”"
Husband  "So the neighbors wiil

hnew 1'm not hitting sou'”

[12.3.17]
Y
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CHRISTMAS REMINISCENCES .
FROM THE FOSTER GRANDPARENTS AT
IHE CHILDREN'S SHELTER

Doris Winget: One thing I remember about
fhristmas in Missouri is the one room gchool
house with the big Christmas tree that the
kids decorated. There were candles on the
tree because we didn't have electricity. We
hung our long black stockings at heme for
Santa Claus. Dinner was across the field
at grandma's.

Wils We got everything we asked for
(I asked for 2 pairs of shoes, a dress and a
doll) because my father was & reai family man
and he wanted to do for his family of 7
children. A fresh coconut was 8 treat we had
avery Christmas in Texas.

Janet Watson: One Christmas in Oregon we were
very poor because my father had died in the
flu epidemic in World War I. The Salvation
Arzy gave us a box--we woulen't have had
Christmas witnout ft. It hed oranges in it.
It was the biggest treat I ever had--1 will
never forget those oranges.

Betty Glassman: I was raised 19 an ortuodox
Jewish home in Boston. We celebrated seven
days of Channukah. We 1lit a candle every
night  We lined up every night and &y father
gave each of us (tnere were 7) & penney.

The meals we had during the 7 days were gefilte
{ish, chicken soup, borsch, potato pancakes

ard brisket of beef.

Fran Mantooth: We had a big family Christmas
of a faro in Oklahora, There were 16 children.
ke cooked and cooked for days--cakes, salads,
beans, chickens, haxm, turkey. We had 8 big
crowd with friends and relatives. Our table
wvas 18 feet long. The adults ate first,

then the children.

kay Incardona. What I remesber the zost were
the Christmas parties at the church in Oroville,
California. First we had a prograz where all
the children recited. I aluays 1liked to

recite and felt so proud. Then we sang--oy
favorite song was "Away in the Manager'.

The ladies at the church made tarleton
steckings and {illed them with an orange, an
apple, nuts a~d hard candy, and 3 cuudy
cane at the top.
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Mr. KiLDEE. Mr. Rasmussen?

Mr. RasmusseN. Thank you for inviting me to testify.

As noted, my name is Dwight Rasmussen. I am the Senior Com-
panion Project Director in Salt Lake City, Utah, and am currently
the secretary-treasurer for the National Association for Senior
Companion Directors. I am here on behalf of Berryl Thompson,
president of the National Association for Senior Companion Project
Directors. She is recuperating from some recent surgery, and was
unable to attend today.

I appreciate the opportunity to be here. I, too, have submitted a
written statement and ask that it be made part of the hearing
record.

Mr. KiLpee. Without objection.

Mr. RasmusseN. I will take a few moments and summarize and
highlight some of those things.

First of all, to reiterate some of the things Ms. Donna Alvarado
spoke about. The Senior Companion Program is one of the fastest
growing and one of the most needed programs in the nation.

We have a dual-purpose role. That is to utilize the low-income
seniors who need to work, who want to work, who want to contrib-
ute in society but without the opportunity of this volunteer oppor-
tunity, they would not be able to. They are placed and matched
with the homebound, with the frail, with individuals who are in
some institutions and they serve these individuals to help them
continue to have some type of independence along with the care of
respite and providing that service to the primary care giver. We be-
lieve that this program is probably the program of the future.

As you are well aware, the population of the elderly is increasing
at a very, very high rate and within 10 to 15 years, we are looking
at almost an astronomical number of elderly. That includes those
who are 60, 70, but it also includes those who are 80, 90 and reach-
ing that 100-year mark. These individuals will need care. There are
a lot of programs, there are a lot of good, substantive programs
that will help care for these people. But I believ. the Senior Com-
panion program can play an integral part in assisting that.

Home nursing services, home health aides, all of those programs
are very beneficial and very helpful Cne thing that lacks in those
programs is the ability for that nursing aid, that nurse, whoever it
might be, to sit down and visit and to have a socialization contact
with the outside world. That I believe is one of the biggest things
that the Senior Companion Program can provide.

They go in the home once, twice, maybe as many as four or five
times a week, depending upon the need of the individual and they
are there for four hours a day. They do the essential chores of gro-
cery shopping, getting them te and from medical appointments,
those kinds of things that help them stay independent, but they
also have an hour, two, sometimes three to sit and visit and talk
Sbout older times that usually somebody doesn’t have the time to

0.

That we believe is one of the greatest benefits of the Senior Com-
panion program That can contribute as much to independence as
all of the other services available.

They also assist with advocacy. It is very difficult for a home-
bound individual to be able to get to social service agen. es or tu be

ERIC 7
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aware of the other programs that are available. Senior Companions
act in that role as an advocate and help them find out what is all
about medicare, what are all these forms all about.

When it says, when you get 26 copies of something that says
“this is not a bill,” that doesn’t mean anything to that senior who
is looking at the thousands of dollars after a recent hospital stay.
So they help. They take that to the Social Security office or call the
medicare office for them and they do those kinds of things.

They receive the stipend of $2.20 an hour, transportation and
meal reimbursement, which for someone who is living on, in my
area, $300, $400 a month, if they can get that additional $100, $200,
$300 for reimbursement, that ups their ability to maintain their in-
dependence also.

So 1 reiterate that there is a dual purpose here on independence.
One, for the client to help them stay independent and out of a
long-term care institution for as long as feasibly possible, but also
the Senior Companion. That is who we can’t forget, that individual
who has the ability to contribute and we allow them to do that.

I have submitted to you some recommendations also along the
lines of Betty Manley’s from the Foster Grandparents program, so
I respectfully submit these recommendations to you.

First of all, the stipend increase, the deletion of the non-stipend
and volurteer provision, encouragement of the expansion of the
older American volunteer programs through part D of Title 111 of
the Older Americans Act, increased public awareness of the Senior
Companion programs, a provision encouraging the director to work
with national associations of older American volunteer programs,
the inclusion of a section entitled “programs of national signifi-
cance,” upgrade the position of OAVP director and sepasate pro-
gram offices for the Senior Companion and Foster Grandparents
programs, and a four-year reauthorization.

I would like to take just a few moments and talk about a couple
of those recommendations and expound on them without reading
because I know it is before you.

First of all is the future stipend increase. Yesterday 1 was able to
attend the Vista hearing. I heard Sargent Shriver talk and every-
one at that hearing spoke very highfy of Vita and the kinds of
things that those volunteers do. He related that there is neier
enough money to be able to do what Vista can do, what Senior
Companions, Foster Grandparents and Retired Senior Volunteers
can do. He brough. together, “Is it more important to put money
into defense and build an extra B-1 bomber or is it more important
to be able to serve the social needs of what we are talking about
here, the elderly?”

I firmly believe—being new, fairly new, this is my fourth year as
a Senior Companion Project Director. theze four years have taught
me a lot. I believe we have the national resource as volunteers and
the clients that we need to serve, we can do the job with a little bit
of extra money. that is why we are asking for a future stipend in-
crease. It may not be next year. It may not be the year after. But
when there are funds available, I believe it is important for that
Senior Companion, Foster Grandparents to have that.

As Ms Alvarado said, the decision is tough. Do you put 4000 new
programs in or 4000 new volunteers into other areas? Or do you
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allow those that have the opportunity to continue to serve now an
increase in their stipend?

I submit that we find it for both because of the increase that has
happened the last few years in Senior Companion programs, what
should happen with Foster Grandparents and the continued growth
with Retired Senior Volunteer Program, I believe it is there. I
would like to help and the association stands ready to help you find
that dollar.

In addition to that, I would like to go to recommendation No. 5,
which is coordination efforts. We ask that appropriate language en-
courage the director to work with private sectors and also to work
with the three national associations.

We as directors have been around for many years; myself, again
I am the freshman I believe as a director. But we are there. We are
on the front lines. We want to work with ACTION. We want to re-
alize, make sure that ACTION utilizes our talents as directors of
these programs in working directly with these volunteers that we
feel as though we can have an impact with ACTION and we can
work together.

We realize there are budget constraints for them as well as for
us. I think a working relationship together can further the efforts
of ACTION, of the individual programs, and of ourselves as direc-
tors and our volunteers and the clients that we strive to serve.

Basically I think if we work together including Congress and the
subcommittee we can have the impact that we need to have on
today’s growing elderly and the nation's charge to help serve. 1
don’t think it is the government's responsibility totally. I don’t
think it is the family’s responsibility. I think it is everybody's
working together that will allow us to meet this challenge of the
elderly coming up in the nation.

I believe the last thing I would like to say is in recommendation
No. 8, in reference to the cost-of-living increase, in my testimony, it
states that there was a 29 percent admi.iistrative support increase.
This I believe can be misconstrued in that it was 29 percent of the
total budget of that.

The amount of money that was received by my project directly
for the cost of living was $5000. Tv-enty-nine percent of that $5000
was able to be used in administrative funds. This amounted to the
amount of $1,218 as tow hat we were able to use for the cost-of-
living increase for support in administrative services within our
program.

In conclusion, we ask that these letters also be made part of the
hearing record It is correspondence discussing the cost of living in-
crease and the complicated system in which it was implemented on
the local lev<]l. There was a request by the Appropriations Commit-
tee that it be re-evaluated, which it was, and then again it was sub-
mitted back tc Congress, that the restrictions would stand. So we
ask that this be made a part of the hearing record also.

Mr. KiLpEe. Without objection.

[The information follows:]
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April 22, 1988

Denna Alvarado, Director
ACTION

806 Ccnnecticut Avenue, N.W.
washington, D.C. 20525

Dear Ms. Alvarado:

We want to erghasize the sexio.s ccncern we have about the restructicrs placed
on the Foster Grandparent ast Senior Companicn Project Sponsors with respect to
the expenditure of the FY88 cost of living allocation for Tlder Volunteer
Programe. Thus issue was ralsed at cur subccmmuttee's hearing en April 18 by
Chairman Natcher, and we wish to join with hunm in requesting that ACTICN take
the apprepriate steps to remcve these restrictions.

The intent of Congress :n allocating the cost of livang increases to the Older
American Volunteer Programs s clearly del.neated in the FYE8 appropriaticns
report language and does not require a corplex and complicated systenm to
irplement.

we hepe you will review these restricticns which have been i—pesed en the
evpendatures of these funds, agree with us that they are not necessary and
proceed €0 remove ther.

We look forward to your prorpt decisicn on this matter.

o0 Gt

VIO 0.CUIE, M.C.

Suncerely,

O
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ACTION Ry

WASHINGTON, D C 20525 , C@/'l/
l./(//y G\‘
Se, é
May 23, 1988 <
Yy &, . /956

op
JUN §'fe1988-
Honorable Edward E. Roybal

United States House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 29515

Dear Representative Roybal:

Your letter to ACTION Director Donna M. Alvarado regarding the
allocation of the fiscal year 1988 cost-of-living allowance to
the Older American Volunteer Programs has been referred to my
office for response. Both before xnd since receiving your
letter, the Director considered a varirety of factors in making
this allocation. I appreciate this opportunity to provide you
with the details of the allocation of these funds to existing
OAVP projects.

The House Appropriations Commaittee's report language serves as
the basis for the Agency's decision on the allocation of these
funds: )

" The 1increase in the Committee's recommendation 1s
intended to provide across-the-broad cost-of-living
increases for each of the existing projects in the three
programs. The additional funds will enable these projeccs
to better meet the needs of the currently-enrolled volunteers.
The Committee recognizes the administrative problems faced
by the projects that have received no increase in Federal
support 1in recent years. Thus, the Comm:ttee expects that
funding increases will be allocated to project administration
needs of each project, as well as to increasing
opportunities for volunteer service.”

In establishing the policy for the distribution of the ccst of
living funds, two primary factors were considered:

1. The needs of the low income senior volunteers both in the
programs and currently on waiting lists tnroughout the
country; and

2. The needs of the projects to achieve their legislative
mandates to provide opportunit:ies for low incOme senior

cirtizens.
In weighing these factors, ACTION considered such things as:
1. Historical data on project costs;

2. Input gathered from both project managers and the
volunteers themselves; and

FOSTLR GRANDPARLNT PRUGRAM ® YOUNG VOLUNTEE®S IN ACT!U + ¢ SENIUR COMPANION PROGRAM
RETIPED ScHIOR VOLUNTEER PROGRAM o OFFICE OF VOLUNTEER LIAISON ® VOLUNTEE R DRUG LSE PREVENTIC
VIETNAM VETERANS LEADERSHIP PROGRAM » VISTA ¢ NATINNAL CENTER FOR SERVICA LEARNING

&1

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

78

-2-

3. The acnievement of parity among the three Older Americr-
Volunteer Programs after the significantly varied FY 1988
increase had been realized.

With regard to the first factor, ..e needs of the low income
senior volunteers in both stipended programs, ACTION solicitec
the views of project directors. The top priorities cited
regarding the needs of volunteers were volunteer transportation
and recognition. These two items were included as priorities in
the ACTION policy guidance regarding the augmentation of the
exlsting projects.

Furthermore, based on ACTION personnel site visits to projects
around the country, and meetings with low income volunteers, it
was determined that funds for low income volunteers' meals, and
low income volunteers' physicals should also be designated as
priority considerations for additional funding to expand
volunteer services. The income eligibility ce:ling for a low
income senior volunteer to serve in an stipended program 1s
$6,875.00 for a single adult and $9,250.00 for a married adult.

With regard {» the second factor, tne needs of the projects .o
achieve their leqislative mandates of providing opportunities

for low income senior citizens, again ACTION solicited the

views of the projects. The priority cited was salaries. In
factoring 1n this need, the Agency considerec data regarding

prior expenditures and budget requests for existing projects.
Belween FY 1985 and FY 1987, there was a 12% 1ncrease 1n support
monies for the Foster Grandparent Program, 21% for the Senior
Companion Program, and 9% for the Retired Senior Volunteer Program.
All of this was prior to the appropriation by Congress of additional
cest-of-living increases 1n project suppo-t 1n the FY 1988
appropriation.

Another significant consideration in the~e deliberations was
the 1ssue of parity among OAVP Programs. In allocating these
new resources, ACTION deliperately sought to equalize the
amount of cost-of-living increases for all OAVP programs.
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The fiscal program allocations and priorities that were

sub: equently established properly weidned the needs ot both

low 1ncome Senior volunteers and the projectsS. They also fully
aa. ..”"ed the concerns descriabed above.

Again: tuanh You tor the opportun %y to provide tnis
1ntormatic.. Please do not nesitate to contact iue ix I may
pe or further assistance.

Sincerely:
QMMVV\LM
Maciahne Klink ;

ssistant Director
Older American Volunteer Prograns

(!

A
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Mr. RasmusseN. In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, members of the
staff, I would like to thank you for the opportunity to present this
statement. I do appreciate the strong support of this committee and
as I stated, the national association stands ready to work with Con-
gress, with ACTION, and with our volunteers tu serve this nation’s
elderly.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Dwight Rasn.ussen follows:]
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SECRETARY /TREASURER
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INTRODUCTION

Mr. Chairman, members or the Subcommittee, thank you for
nviting me to testify *way on the reauthorization of the Domestic
Volunteer Service A~..

iy name 1s Dwight Rasmussen, Senior Companion FProject Director
1n Salt Lake City, Utah, and I am the Secretary/Treasurer for the
National Association of Senior Companion Project Directors. 1 am
here today on behalf of Berryl Thompson, President of the National
Association of Senmior Companion Project Directors, who 1s
recuperating from recent surgery.

I am proud to say that in the Association's history we have and
are oontinuing to further the wvolunteer efforts and secvices of
Senior Companion Programs in our commnunities. With the addition of
the forty-four new programs made possible by Congress in Fiscal Year
1988, we have approximately 7,000 volunteer service years 1in onhe
hundred and twenty-four projects across the nation. Senior
Companions provide assistance to over 24,600 frail elderly and other
functionally impaired adults.

PROGRAM INFORMATION

Tne Senior Companion Program 1 the newest and most rapidly
growing of the three Older American Volunteer Programs funded under
the Domestic Volunteer Service Act. As you are well aware, the
Senior Companion Program was authorized by Congress 1in 1973 under
Title II of the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973 (Public Law
93-113).

The Senior Companion Program (SCP) offers volunteer service
opportunities for low-1ncome people age sixty and over to provide
personal assistance in daily living activities to older people with
physical, mental or emotional 1impalrments. Through direct health
care providers and social service agencies assisting chronically
impaired older persons, Senior Companions serve those at risk of
institutionalization and persons within institutional settings 1n
order to help them achieve and maintain their fullest potential for
independent living. Senior Companion Program volunteers provide
services to :

Nursing home residents:

Hormebound elderly persons;

Acute care patients discharged from hospitals;
Families needing respite care;

victims of Alzheimer's disease;

Older substance abusers;

The developmentally disabled;

Veterans; and

The terminally ill.

L L
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Senmwor Companions assist older persons to remain as independent
as possible for as long as possible. Typically, volunteers provide
their clients with companionshlp, help with light housenold tasks,
transportation to and from medical facilities, food preparation,
advocacy for social servioes, personal grooming, and assistance with
other needed tasks. Volunteers receve training in how to 1dentify
and solve problems, how to provide minimal first a1d care, and how
to provide advocacy service.

Senior Companions serve twenty hours per week. 1In order to
offset expenses, volunteers receive a small hourly non-taxable
stipend, transportation and a meal on service days, an annual
physical  examination, accident and liability coverage, and
recognition for their activities. Perhaps the greatest benefit of
all is the opportunity to "help someone" - to share their talents
and experiences and opportunities that foster another person's
independence. an amount equal to ninety percent of the fpederal
funds of a project's total budget goes to volunteers as direct
benefits.

When you consider that the average annual ocust for nursing home
care 1s about $22,000 per year, and the average cost for a Senior
Companion Volunteer 1s about $3,000 annually, the fiscal value and
cost effectiveness of this program becomes unquestionable.

LEGISLATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS

On  behalf of the association, 1 respectfully submit the
following recommendations to you:

1. tipend 1ncrease;

2. Deletion of the hon-stipended volunteer provision;

3. Encouragement of expansion of the Older American Volunteer
programs through Part D of Title III of the Older Amer:cans
Act;

4. Increased public awareness of Senior Companion Programs;

5. A provision encouraging th: Director to work with the
National Association of Older American Volunteer Programs;

6. The inclusion of a section entitled "Programs of National
Significance”

7. Upgrade the position of GAVP Director and separate program
offices for Foster Grandparent and Senior Companion
Programs; and

8. Four year reauthorization.

.\
~J
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Recommendation #1:
Future Stipend Increase

An 1ncrease in the authorization for the Senior
Companion/Foster Grandparent stipend from $2.20 to $2.50 per
hour is needed.

This 1increase in the authorizing legislation would allow
for a future stipend increase needed because the stipend he not
been keeping pace with inflation over the past years. che
Congress 1s addressing the need for an increase 1n the num
wage for employees, it is appropriate to also address tue need
for increasing support for those low-income volunteers who give
so much.

Recommendation #2:
Non-Stipend Volunteers

We are recommending that the provision in the current law
which allows non-stipended volunteers who are to provide the
same services without reimbursement be deleted. It has not
sucoeeded 1n expanding the avallable pool of volunteers and has
taken precious, limited administrative time from the needs of
the stipended volunteers.

We feel this allowance 1n the author1zing language strays
from the original 1ntent of Congress to utilize low-1nocome
seniors to provide services to others 1n need of assistance.
The low number of non-stipended volunteers currently being
utilized thioughout the country does noct justify the additional
staff time needed to recruat and train these individuals.
Projects have found it alawst impossible 10 obtain a twenty hour
per week oommitment on the part of these non~stipended
volunteers.

Recommendation #3:
Coordination Activities

We recommend the addition of a new provision to encourage
ocoordination between ACTION's volunteer programs, particularly
Senior Compenions, and the frail elderly servaces program
provided through Part D of Title III of the Older Americans Act.

This new provision should allow for expansion of Senior
Companion services to the ocommunity while enhancing the Older
American Volunteer Program's role 1n addressing the need for
comnunity based services. This provision oould also open the
door for the develomment of a Memorandum of Understanding
between ACTION and the Administration on Aging to involve Sen:ior
Companions 1n Part D acclvities at the local level. This type
of coooperation has already been successfully addressed and
implemented with the Veterans' Administration.

-3 -
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Reocommendation #4:
Public Awareness

A provision mandating that ACTION undertake more extensive
public awareness activities to promote the Older American
Volunteer Programs should be added.

This provision would increase community visibility for all
the Older American Volunteer programs while enhancing the local
project's probability of developing a working relationship with
the private sector and i1ncreasing our non-Federal funding
Support. Some of the kinds of assistance we need include
generic program brochures which are adaptable to local projects:
program posters for placement :n the community: pre-recorded
public service announcements: and program videotapes to assist

in both volunteer recruitment and private sector fund-raising
efforts,

Recommendation £5:
Coordination Efforts

Appropriate language to encourage the Director to work with
private sector organizations and associations like the three
National Associations of Older American Volunteer Programs.
This provision will enhance Older American Volunteer Programs
and ensure maximum utilization of program resources.

Currently, the:c 1s an ACTION policy discouraging work wisn
the National A..sociation of Senior Companion Project Directec:s.
This policy is not oonducive to a constructive work g
:lationship with ACTION's Aaministration nor to the growth =nd
improvement of the Senior Companion Program. If included, thi.
provision will enhance the Senior Companion Program's visibility
across the country and promote a stronger worvking relationship
between ACTION and the Older american Volunteer Prograr
Association.

In Calendar Year 1986, Project Directors assisted 1n
securing State and other non-Federal resources of $9,400,000 for
activities and expansion of Senior Companion Programs. In 1987,
37% of Senior Companion Program funds were non-ACTION dollars.
These funds were raised by local Project pirectors to help
support their programs.

Recommendation £6:
Programs of National Significance

We recommend the 1inclusion of a section entitled "Programs
of National Significance”. This section 1s to 1list new
components focusing on expanding the role of Senior Companion
Program volunteers 1n the area of respite care and assistance to
the developmentally disabled. We are requesting 1initial funding
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of $2,000,000 to be appropriated for each new component. The
recently completed OavP Family Caregiver Evaluation supports the
critical need and demard for respite services. Thc need for
respite care has also been demonstrated by ACTION's efforts to
fund grants through the National Alzheimer's Association.

For example, 1n Salt Lake City we have a Sen:ior Companion
who 1s helping a family take care of their 88 year old mother, a
victim of Alzheimer's Disease. This relationship is benefic:al
In two ways: 1) 1t provides a Companion tO the mother wi.d> 1S
unable to care for herself, and 2) the Companion also provides a
valuable respite service to the primary caregiver and the
mother's faraly. The Senior Companion assists the client by
helping with her activities of daily living such as personal
grooming, helping with the noon meal, assisting with walking
exercise when the weather permits, and fulfilling her constant
want for an ice cream treat. Aside from assisting the client,
the Senior Companion has also helped the daughter by providing
respite care to her so that she can get away from her awesome
responsibility cf providing twenty-four nour a day, seven day a
week care to her mother. Whenever the client 1S napping, the
Companion visits with the daughter and anse.rs questions that
she may have about Alzheimer's Disease and offers suggestions
for coping with her caregivi.g role. The husband and sons have
also benefited by geining an increased understanding of hands-on
careqiving of a dementia patient. Tms has also allowed a
greater chance for all the family members to participate in the
care of their aged mother and grandrother, while at the same
time providing a better quality of life for the client..

A new program SelviweS Cuwgolene that 15 gaining national
attention 1S service to the developmentally disabled
population. -~enior Companion Programs ate providing services to
thi1s group to enhance their independence and self-sufficiency.

These are two examples of how wc envision this new section
furthering the devilopment of new program ideas which expand the
variety of techniques available to help serve our target
population - those in the comwunity «who are most in need.

Recommendation £7:
Older American WYolunteer Progcam Director Position/Separate
Prgram Offices For Foster Grandparent, Senior Companion Program

Congress should upgrade the Older American Volunteer
Program Director position at ACTION to a Presidential
appointment in order to highlight national attention and
commtment to senior volunteerism. In addition, Congress should
ensure that there ;5 a separate program office responsible for
each of the three Older American Volunteer programs.

O
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Currently +he Foster Grandparent and Senior Companion
Program offices are combined. We feel very strongly that
although there are similarities between the two programs 1n
terms of eligibility and benefits, each Program needs to retaln
1ts own independence and national visibility separate and apart
from the other. Due to the recent increase 11 the number of
Senior Companiorn Programs 1n FY-88 and the apparent continued
growth of the Senior Companion Program, we believe that a
separate program office for Foster Grandparent and Senior
Companion Programs is essentlal! to ensure that each program
continues to receive the full level of attention that they
require from ACTION staff. Although there are many similaritles
between the two programs, the programs differ greatly 1n their
purpose, 1intent, and objectives and they are also diverse enough
to require ACTION staff's undivided attention for the special
needs arising from working with children separate and apart from
the special needs of working with older, more frail adults.

Recommendation £8:
Length of Reauthorization

Thanks to the actions of a sympathetic Appropriations
Committee, Fiscal Year 1988 was the first 1n many years that
Senior Companion projects received a cost of living adjustment.
While this increase was needed and greatly aprreciated, trere
were problems in the manner 1in which the Programs received the
cost of living adjustment. Restrictions placed by ACTION on
these funds limited the amourt of administrative costs which
occuld he paid with these additional funds. Only 29% of these
New funds could be used for administrative support.

For example, the Ssnior Companion Program 1n Salt Lake
County, Utah, with a total grant amount of $275.495, a Federal
share of $202,964, that supports sixty Senior Companion
volunteers, only realized a total of $1,218 for administrative
support costs.

OQur experience has led us to the conclusion that we need a
mechanism in our authorizing legislation to provide a minimum
annual cost of living increase to Older Aperican Voiunteer
Program grantees. The Association recommends a  four year
reauthorization with appropriate increascs of at least five
peroent per year ih the authorization of appropriations to allow
these programs to keep pace with inflation, to ensure reasonable
program growth, and to provide an appropriate increase 1n tne
Senior Companion stipend during the four year reautnor1lzing
period.

ERIC
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CONCLUSION

Mr. Chairman, members and staff of the Subcommittee, thank you
for the opportunity to present this statement. I appreciate the
steong support of this Committee. The National Association of
Senior Companion Project Directors stands ready to conlinue to
assist you and ACTION in the promotion and expansion of the Senior

Companion Program.
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Nativnal Assocation of Jeror &ﬂyﬁa/uo/z& ﬁ*g&c& Directors.

Lroxdent Yoo Provudow .MM

Fhompeon Ao Baverpore Qe Ratoussion
3 L3 Loo 1510 208 S Moawn S2 125 S 3100 Jouih
" il Cpelouias, Lowssrne Y0571 Wtarbury, Shomont 02856 Jok Lake Uiak E3t75
ISTORY

The National Associatfon of Senior Companfon Project Directors (NASCPD) vas ereated at
the 1978 Natfonal SCP Directsrs Training Confereace. Offfcers were elected and charged
with developing By-Laws and Cperating practices. NASCPD has actively represented the
needs served by SCP natfon-wide since that time. The organization is incorporated in
the State of Utah and has applied for 501 (c) (3) status.

PURPOSE
NASCPD provides through a naticnal focus:

Professional Developzent of SCP Directors through workshops and training programs of
technical assistance.

Advocacy for Older Americans as a Natifonal Resource.

Resource Development through netuorking with the private sector and public agencies.
Representation for those served by SCP. speaking on their behalf before National
governoent bodies.

STRUCTURE

Active cesbership (s open to all SCE Directors. Active mesbers have voting priviledges.
Associate membership {s available Lo other SCP project staff and to all other interested
persons or groups. ‘

OPERATION

NASCPD is operated through a Board of Directors. The Board >f Directors is conposed of
the Naticnal Officers (President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer and aine Regional
Representatives). The Board of Directors seets at least once a year in Washington D.C.
Regional meetings are held once a year in conjunction with ACTION Regicnal Trainings.

SUCCESS~-AREA OF INVOLVEMENT

Instruzental in preserving the current level of funding for SCP when cuts were pruposed.
Bringing about changes {n the ACTION re-authorfzatfon legislatfon that enhance tie
direction of the Senior Companfon Program and the operatiom of the ACTIGH agency.

Played a tajor rele in securing stipend {ncreases for volunteers, and significant
general program increases.

Played a major role in securing cost of living allowance in FY 88.

Successful in securing new prograa funding for 44 new projects in FPY 88,

FOR MORE INFORMATION , PLEASE CONTACT:

Berryl Thompson, President or Frances F. Butler,

P. 0. Box 1510 ¥ashington Representative
Opelousas, Louisiana 70571-1510 11481 Binghao Terrace
(318) 947-1903 Reston, Virginia 22061

(703) 860-9570
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OLDER AMERICAN VOLUNTEER PROGRAMS
NATIONAL DIRECTORS ASSOCIATIONS

—
@P\ Retired Sentor Volunteer % Foster Grandparent Senior Companion
finvd Program Directors Program Directors oo W Project Directors

PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS

RSYP, Foster Grandparents, and Semior Cornpanions are federally funded Older

A~ rracan Volunteer Programs authorized by Title II of the Domestic Volunteer
Service Act of 1973 and admnistered by ACTION, the federal volunteer 2gency In
addition to federal support, many States, loca' gove nmeats, and private sector
organizations also contribute to the support of these successful programs

The National Older American Volunteer Programs Directors A3s30Ciations are
private, non-profit membership organizations of project directors working
together to enhance and build the three prograns.

Betared Sensor Volpnteer Prograsn (RSYP) provides corrun°ty volunteer
opportuniaties for all persons 60 and over RSYVP volunteers serve part-tane,
several hours per week In fiscal year 1988, the 16th year of the program, therc
were nearly 400,000 RSVP volunteers serving 11 745 projensts around the courtry,
assigned to volunteer statiors ranging £r-, courts, schools, hospices, nosp.tals,
nursing homes and other cowwunity serv.ce ~enters Nearly one-halt of Rsve
volunteers are low-income Persons Aanuax fed .al Support for RSVP 13 1n the $30
mllior range

Tgster Graadparent Rzogram provides opportun cies for low-income Persons 60 and
over to werk with children with specaal neeas toswer Grandparents work 20 hours
pes week, and receave a stapend of $2 20 per hour for thear efforts In faiscal
year 1988, the 23rd year of the program, there were 18,000 Foster Grandparent
volunteers 3erving in 250 federally-supported projects acros® the nation, wOrking
with approximately 68,000 children and young people (under the 3age of 21) beset
by such problems as abuse and neglect, Fhysical and emotional handicaps, drug and
alcohol abuse, mental retardation, 1lliteracy, juvenmile delinquency, Or teenage
pregnancy Federal support for Foster Grandparents 13 approvimately $60 million
annually

Sepior Companicn Program, modeled zfter Foster Grandparents, also provides
stipended volunteer opportunities for low-income seniors Senior Corpanions work
with those over the age of 21, but particularly with the frail, home-pound
elderly In fiscal year 1968, the 13th year of the program, 7,000 federally-
sponsored Senior Tompanion volunteers served in 140 projects nationwide, matched
with 21,000 clients volunteer stations include acute care hospitals/dischazge
planning, home health agencies, senior centers, nursing homes, hospices, and
corrrunity mental healtr agencies. Federal support for Senior Corpanions is
approximately $25 million annually

i 88

Frances F Butler Washmingion Representatve
11481 Bingham Terrace
Reston Virgainia 22091
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Mr. Ki1Lbee. Ms. Dowling

Ms. DowLiNG. Good morning.

Members of the committee, thank you for inviting us here today.
My name is Winifred Dowling and I am the president of the Na-
tional Association of RSVP Directors and the director of the Re-
tired Senior Volunteer Program in El Paso, Texas.

We have written testimony to be submitted. I would like to sum-
marize it here.

Mr. Kiupee. Without objection your entire testimony will be
made part of the record. You may summarize.

Ms. DowrinG. In its 18 years of existence, the RSVP program
has grown to 750 projects with over 400,000 volunteers. Member-
ship in the National Association of RSV® Directors includes 70 per-
cent of those projects. Our essential purpose is to support the im-
provement of RSVP programs and to advocate for older Americans
as a vital national resource.

I wish I could describe for you a typical RSVP volunteer. It is
one of the hardest things. When people ask what is a Senior Com-
panion or a Foster Grandparents, and we work with both pro-
grams, it is easier to answer; but the 400,000 RSVP volunteers
probably have 50,000 different job descriptions. It is really hard.
One of our board members says, “Well, RSVP is a 400,000-pound
gorilla that can go anywhere and do anything.”

I thought I would just give you a thumbnail description of my
project in El Paso just to give you a brief idea. Sixteen-hundred vol-
unteers The minimum age is 60, of course. Our oldest volunteer is
104. People always gasp when they hear that. They work at 121 dif-
ferent sites. Of course, many volunteers do very traditional kinds
of volunteer work like working in hospitals, schools, day-care cen-
ters, museums. But there is also some, in my project, in all the
projects, some uniquely designed volunteer roles.

In our city, we have some very complicated roles—people work-
ing with the police department, with the sheriff's department. We
even had a volunteer for a while who was a cook in the county jail.
But we have retired Ph.D.s that do historical research, and we
have people who have—particularly because El Paso is on the
Mexican border, there are people who don’t speak English, some
who have never been to school. Yet we have been able to find some
really valuable volunteer opportunities for them.

What is important about RSVP as a purely volunteer program
with no stipend is that we make a special effort to recruit people
who might not otherwise volunteer. That means men who are less
apt to volunteer thar women. It means retired professionals who
have maybe a notion of traditional volunteerism.

They say I don’t want to work in a hospital gift shop. They think
there is nothing else available.

We have a lot of handicapped people in RSVP. We make a spe-
cial effort to involve as many handicapped people as we can be-
cause e feel that even severely handicapped and frail people still
want to have a chance to be RSVP volinteers.

The association completed a survey recently. We have for the
first time some estimate in incomes of RSVP volunteers. 41 percent
are low income, 49 percent middle income, 10 percent are upper
income.
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We think it says a great deal about this program that there are
some 160,000 low income volunteers who are willing t¢ serve with
no recompensation at all. And in many cases, out of pocket ex-
penses for themselves.

We would Jike to go into several recommendations we have for
changes in the Domestic Volunteer Services Act.

First, we would like to see the RSVP purpose clause clarified to
refiect the significant considerations made by RSVP volunteers,
and the benefits to their communities and to themselves.

We also recommend that the entire subsection on nonstipended
volunteers be deleted.

The plan is simply not working. We understand that nationwide
there are currently 82 nonstipended volunteer:. There are many
RSVP projects that alone have 80 or more people doing what
action calls nonstipended wourk, foster grandparent or companion
type work.

All three otder American volunteer program associations agree
that the nonstipended vclunteer provisions is not an effective way
to either expand volun.eer opportunities or improve client services.

I was glad to hear the director say essentially the same thing
this morning, when she said the bottom line is that Action wants
to have more older Americans in intergenerational programs and
serving the frail elderly no matter what they are called.

Well, that has been our argument 3ll along. All three associa-
tions from the very beginning felt that this nonstipended provision
was something that did not make a lot of sense.

That RSVP is indeed the “nonstipended’” program and that we
will continue to make every effort to expand our intergenerational
and frail elderly programs.

We—especially RSVP—are concerned about the lack of national
public awareness support for RSVP.

Public information is particularly essential for RSV'P projects
particularly because of our continuing recruitment efforte and be-
cause of RSVP’s size and complexity.

It helps a great deal for a local project to have people understand
what RSVP is all about. If we could get more national support,
they would- people would understand better what RSVP was, par-
ticularly since RSVP makes up 84 percent of all Action volunteers,
and the amcunt of time and effort that public affairs puts into sup-
porting Action with public relationship is very, very small.

There is no cohesive national policy to support RSVP. We hope
that that will change.

To try and fill the void in the meantime, the National Associa-
tion of RSVP directors has designated » national promotional
theme.

Last year, the publicity that we had during + 'unteer week re-
sulted in over 300 newspaper articles. National :V coverage, and
dozens of leccal TV and radio stories.

This year the theme will be hats off to volunteers. We will also
horior the 22 volunteers who are over 100 years of age.

I wanted to add concerning long terms care, we applaud you,
Congressman Kildee, in taking the initiative in the new part D of
title 3 providing in-horae services for the frail elderly.

46
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As you know, RSVP volunteers were already widely involved in
allcli kilnds of friendly visiting, companion type programs for the frail
elderly.

They helped, but in some cases they substitute for other home
care. We feel that in providing long terms care alternatives, there
should be a formal role for volunteers. We are very happy to work
with senior companions in this capacity.

We believe that Action should be encouraging the work of pri-
vate sector organizations and associations that promote serior vol-
unteerism.

A case in point is our own association.

I would just like to briefly tell you some of the things we have
been doing in the last couple of years.

We have been responsible for two significant public private part-
nerships.

The 1irst was in collaboration with Laubach Literacy Action with
the Dayton Hudson Foundation and Action and the second was
with EXXON and Action. We were responsible for getting those
two partnerships underway.

We published a how to manual for the RSVP project, developed a
national awards program.

We are providin,, training sessions at state and national aging
conferences.

We are entering into an agreement with the AARP talent bank
to recruit skilled volunteers. We have been especially active in the
last year in addressing national issues in the areas of volunteerism
and aging with the Red Cross with the Public Health Service, the
White House Conference on Aging, among others.

The association supports individual RSVP projects by offering 37
different kinds of recognition items, something very important for
volunteers who don’t receive pay.

We offer computer software and volunteer management books
and tapes. We are a member of the Leadership Council of Aging
organization and many national aging organizations.

We feel that despite all these positive activities, that Action still
has a policy of not approving the use of Action resources to facili-
tate project directors meetings.

I'm not talking about money, but just supporting us in giving us
the time to do it.

Th.s is the kind of policy that does not further the goal of achiev-
ing the best possible RSVP projects.

We think there needs to be a congressional mandate to preclude
policies li} e these and overturn the present restrictive policy.

As part of RSVP’s ability to respond to urgent community needs,
the associa.ion recommends the authorization of three programs of
national significance in the areas of literacy, respite care and li-
brary programs for latchkey children.

In terms of literacy, we collaborated as I said before on the very
successful national RSVP literacy project.

However, it was discontinued by Action on December 31st of last
year.

As we believe the tremendous need for programs in adult liter-
acy should continue to involve RSVP volunteers, and we should
build on the clear success of the national RSVP literacy project.

Q  96-999 0 - 89 - 4
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Respite care is an area where volunteers can very uniquely serv-
ice.

The National Association worked with Action on the recently
completed evaluation of family caregiver services.

We very much agree with the general conclusion that using vol-
unteers in respite care is something that should be increased.

We also support a much expanded involvement of RSVP volun-
teers working with latchkey children and and libraries.

We would like to recommend an authorization level of $2 million
for each of these three national initiatives.

We estimate that the full authorization would enable RSVP
projects to add another 66,000 volunteers.

In one respect, we would like to see Action go backward. I am
referring to the staffing of the older American volunteer programs,
as Donna Alvarado said, 93 percent of volunteers in the agency are
older Americans and yet the staff of OAVP has been—as OAVP
has continued to grow, OAVP standing for Older American Volun-
teer Programs, the staff has been cut back.

We would like to see the OAVP director position reelevated to a
presidential appointment, and the reinstatement; of three separate
positions for foster grandparents, senior companions and RSVP.

We recommend a 5 percent annual increase in funding levels. I
did want to address something that Mr. Grandy and Mr. Poshard
were asking about.

You were asking from a rural point of view how can your—how
can some of your nonprofit organizations get Action grants.

The fact of the matter is that for seven of the eight years of the
Reagan Administration, the administration never asked for any in-
creased fundings, so that the only—for seven of those eight years,
not including the last year, the only increase in funding, therefore
the only increase in availability of grants, has been through Con-
gressional support.

But even with that, there have been very few new projects
except for the—senior companions.

There are 44 new projects in senior companions. It doesn’t
matter how many Action people you have in Chicago or Des
Moines, the chances of somebody in your district getting a new
Action grant is virtually nil at this point.

There is no money.

RSVP projects have had real hardships over the past decade be-
cause Action grants have no mechanism to deal with inflation or
with the growth of project.

I can tell you that, for instance, my project has grown from 500
to 1500 volunteers in the last six years with only one little increase
last year from the Federal Government, but nationwide in the last
eight years, RSVP has grown by 100,000 volunteers, from 300 to
400,000 volunteers with virtually no increase in federal funding.

I think that’s terrific.

RSVP projects did receive a 3.4 percent increase last year after
more than a decade without any inflationary increases.

We feel there needs to be a provision built into the authorizing
legislation to insure that grantees receive a minimal COLA each
time their annual grant is renewed.

Qg




I am also so proud to be associated with RSVP. I enjoyed so
much what you said, Congressman Kildee, about the possibility of
being a director of Action.

I feel I have one of the best jobs there is, too. I also have lived in
several countries. I know that particularly in the Western Europe,
for instance, social services are often frankly ahead of what we
manage to do here in the United States.

But when it comes to volunteerism, particularly when it comes to
senior volunteerism, we are so far ahead of the rest of the world, it
is extraordinary.

I really am proud to be part of something that is such a national
movement, that is just barely begirning to be part of other coun-
tries’ aging programs.

I would like to thank you, especially Congressman Kildee, for
yourl awareness of the great nationa! resources we have in olaer
people.

We ar2 very grateful for your commitment and for your legisla-
tion that encourages the increasing involvement of seuior volun-
teers.

Thank you, Congressman Kildee, Members of the Committee, for
the opportunity to appear here today on behalf of the National As-
sociation of RSVP directors.

{The prepared statement of Winifred Dowling follows:]
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Congressman Kildee and Members of the Committee, thank you for Invitirg us to
present testimony on legislation to reauthorize the Dorestic Vulunteer Service Act.
My name is Winifred Dowling. I am President of the National Association of RSVP
Directors and the Director of the Retired Senior Volunteer Program in El Paso, Texas.

In its 18 years of existence, the Retired Senior Volunteer Program nas Zrown to
750 projects with over +00,000 volunteers. Membership in the National Association of
RSVP Directors includes 70% of those projects. Our essential purpose is to supPort
the improvement of RSVP programs and to advocate for older Americans as a vital na-
tional resource.

I wish 1 could describe for you a typical RSVP volunteer. But the scope and
range of their activities is so great tnat it 1s impossibie tu provide a capsule de-
scription. One member of our Board has described RSVP as a "400,000 pound gorilla

that can go anywhere and do anything." We u.no work with RSVP vclunteers have no doubt
they can go arywhere and do anything.

Perhaps a brief outline of the RSVP project ip El Paso, Tevas, can give you some
ideas of the wonderful complexity of RSvP. There are 1,600 RSVP volunteers in Fl Paso,
ranging in age from 60 to 104 years old, Although most of the volunteers are in their
60s and 70s, close to 200 are in their 80s and 90s.

Their backgrounds include retired truck dra.vers, college professors, retired mil-
itary, housewives, nurses, accountants, farmers, teachers, secretaries, cooks, execu-
tives, etc., etc. Thelr education can range froz ThDs to people who have had no farmai
schooling at all. The volunteers work at 121 different sites, including nursing hormes,
senior centers, schools, museums, and day care centers. Volunteers oviten work in less
traditional ways, for example, with the Polics Departrwent, busidinug nousing for the
homeless, acting as role models for teenaged parents, helping organize a model progranm
for long-term care, acting as & watchdog for “ealth care costs, doing histor.ical re-
search, tutoring illiterate adults, and so on

That same story cculd be repeated 750 times with a hreathtaking varietv of vnlin-

teer job descriptiors The RSVP program [s meant to provide meaningful opportunities
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the best

for volunteer service. We do not Just fi1ll slots, but rather try tu fashior

Job for each volunteer. We make a specidl effort tc recruit those who might not vther-

wise volunteer That includes trving to involve more older men, more minorit, volun-

teers, moye retired professionals, more handicapped people It 15 not well knowr that
RSVP volunteers can be in wheelchairs, or use welkers, they can be blind or deaf, they
can be homebound or nursing home res.dents. Even severely handic.pped and frail el-
derly still want an opportunity to contribute, and RSVP 1s that channel.

1 have only briefly touched upon the major aspects of RSVP, but 1 think you can
see how difficult 1t is to explain who RSVP volunteers are and what they do. One
thing is clear: RSVP volunteers do not belong to the "Me Generation."

The Association completed a survey recently and we nave, for the first time, some

estinates on incozes of RSVP volunteers According to the survey, 417 are low inconme,
497% widdle income, and 10% upper incoze It says a great deal 4bout the volunteers
and the program itself that 160.000 jow-income neople are willing to volunteer their
gervices without recompense and, in most cases, at some cost to themselves,

With the greatly increased interest in national service, the National Associatlon
of RSVP Directors urges that older Americans be glven an apprupriate place in any plan
to expand volunteer opportunities.

The National Asscciation of RSVP Diiectors is grateful for the consistent support
of RSVP from Congress. we have several recommendations for changes in the Domestic
Volunteer Service Act that we believe will enhance the opportunities for volunteer
service, respond to pressing cozmaunity needs. and take into account the increasing
numbers of older Americans.

We would like to see the RSVP purpose clause clarified to reflect the significant
contributions made by RSVP voiunteers and the attendant benefits tc their communities
and to themselves.

There have been a nuzber of mrjor studies that attest to the health benefits of

volunteering--both comparing voiuntecrs and non-volunteers and comparing beginning

ERIC 102
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and long-time volunteers. Many evaluations point tc the cost savings tu agencies and
non-profit organizations where RSVP volunteers serve But to know RSVP at 1its best

is to hear stories that all RSVP directors can tell. .1 think of the retired execu~
tive in deep depression until RSVP gave him a new lease on life; the retired truck
driver whose management skills blossomed by running a se~lor center, the woman crip-
pled by arthritis who started a rhytha band at a nursing home; the volunteer with
cancer who served until the last dayc ot her life. Every RSVP director in tne country
could glve similar examples of the capacity of RSVP to tap the huzan potential.

To address specifics in the Domestic Volunteer Service act, we recommend that the
entire subsection on nen-stipended ivolunteers he deleted Our view has been that the
notion of non-stipended voliunteers in the Fuster Grandpareats and Senior Companion
progranss is simply duplicative of what RSVP prujects already are doing or could do. It
places unneceSsary administrative burders oa [uster Crandparents and Senior Companiors
projects. The plan has simply not worked. We understand that nationwide there are
currently only 80 non-stipended volunteers. There ure many RS\P projects that alcne
have more than 80 volunteers doing Foster Grandparent- or Senior Companion~-type ser-
vice. All three Older American Volunteer Program Associations agree that the nor=
stipended volunteer provisic .s not an effective wav to expand volunteer opportuni-
ties cr client services.

Regarding the promotion of the Older Americaa ,olunteer Programs. we would en=
courage ACTION to make a significantly greater etiurt to promote, support, and coor-
dinate the OAVP prograzs 1t the national level.

We are concerned about the lack of national public awareness support for RSVP.
Although RSVP volunteers make up 80Z uf all ACTION volunteers, it would be generous
to say that 20% of the time, money, and materials available to ACTION Public Alfairs
is actually spent on RSVP. During the past tew vears there has been no policy of
placing articles about RSVP volunteers im national publicat.ous, the last RSVP film

was made in 1979; the last RSVP TV spot wis aired four veirs ago, there have been no

1{} -
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new RSVP flyers or brochures for several vears; the Older American Volunteer Program
publication has been discontinued, and RSVD 15 scarcelv mentioned even 1n ACTION's
1n-house newsletter.

Public i1formation is essential for RSVP projects, particularly because of our
continuing 1ecruitment efforts ard because of RSVP's size and compleaitv. ACTION rec-
ognizes this and encourages ds much public relations as possible on che local level
Nonetheless, RSVP can be a much more effective program with « strong national identi-
fication, and ACTIOM has not lent .ts public affairs etforts towards this goai.

To try and fill tnis void, the National Association ot RSVP Directors has des-
ignated a nationwide promorional theme everv year to recognize RSVP volunteers. last
year the publicitv during volunteer Week resulted in over 300 newspaper articles,
national TV coverage and dszens of local televisior and radio stories. This vear the
theme will oe "Hats Off To Volunteers” and we will also honor the 22 RSVP voluatcers
who are over 100 years of age.

The National Association of RSVP Directors recommends the coordination of L :i.-
tern care iritiatives and the frail elderly service program ot the (liwr Americars
Act. This s the kind of coordination that venefits all participants.

We applaud Congressman Kildee in taking the i-it.ative in the new Part D ot
Title il7 providing in-home services for the frail elderl’. RSVP volunteers are il-
ready widely 1nvolved in services to the frail elderly, volunteers can perform .er-
vices whicn augment--or in some cases. substitute for--other home care. we fee, th it
ir providing long~term care alternat.ves. there should be a furmal role for velunteers
Further, we believe that a defined working rclationshlp shouid be established hbet.seen
the Administration on Aging and ACTION to promote i{nteraction between these tw, pr.-
grams.

We believe that ACTION should be encourdping the work of private sector wvrganiza-
tions and associatiuns that prumote senlor volunteerism. A case in polat is vur «wn

RSVP Directors Association. The Assuciatlon has been responsible for twe ignificant
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pudlic/private partnerships--the first in collaboration with Laubach Literacy action,
Dayton Hudson Foundation and ACTION and tne second with Exxon Corporation and ACTION.
We have published a how-to manual with the #nerican Associ{ation for International
Aging t) show interested persons around the world how to start an RSVP program. We
developed a natforal awards program to honor both ACTION employees and private organ-
{zations whn support RSVP; tne Association provides training sessions at state and
national aging conferences, such as the Delaware Conference on Aging and the National
Council on the Aging.

We have entered into an agreement with the American Association of Retired Perw
sons Volunteer Talent Bank to recruit skillcd volunteers. We have addressed national
issues {n the areas of voluntcerism and aging with the Public Health Service, Year 2000
Health Objectives Consortium, the American Ked Cross Volunteer 2000 Conference, the 1991
White House Conference on Aging, anong others. The Association supports {ndividual
RSVP projects by offering recogn‘tion {tems, computer software and volunteer @dnagement
books ana tapes. We are a member of the Leaderst., Council of Aging Organizations,
Generations United, the Long Term Care Campaign, Advccates Senior Alert Process, and
the National Association of Families Caring for their Elders. We work closely with
AARP, NCOA, American Associacion for International Aging to name a few.

Despite all these positive activities by the National Association of RSVP Di-

rectors, ACTION has a pulicy of not approving the use of " ON resources to facilitate

Preject Directors Assocfation meetings. This is the kina of policy 1at does not fur-
ther the goal of achieving the best possible RSYP pre, cts. There meeds to be a
Congressional mandate to preclude policies like th.se and «verturn the present re=-
strictive policy.

As part of RSVP's adility to respond to urgent community needs, the National
Agsoclation of RSVP Directors recommends the author{zation of three "Programs of
National Significance" to include components that further involve RSVP volunteers in

literacy programs, respite care, and librarv programs for latch-key children. Many
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RSVP projects have experience in these areas, but it 1s not an exaggeration to say that
every one or the 750 projects could successfully natch volunteers with positions in
literacy, respite care, or latchkey programs

In terms of literacy, ACTION collaborated in the very successful National RSYP
Literacy Project in partnership with the National Asscciation of RSVP Directors,
Laubach Literacy Action and the Dayton Hudson Foundation. This notably popular project
(over $0Z of RSYP Projects asked to receive information through joining the RSVP Lit-
eracy Network) was discontinued on December 31, 1988. We belleve the crushing need
for programs in adult literacy should continue to involve RSVP volunteers, and we
should build on the clear success of the Nat{onal RSYP Literacy Project.

Respite care Is an area where velunteers can uniquelv serve. It is recognized
that the need for help to family caregivers has increased beyond the community's
ability to respond. The Nation;l Association of RSVP Directors werked with ACTION on
the recently completed evaluation of family caregiver services. ve heartily agree
with the gencral conclusion of the study that "ACTION's family caregiver services are
much needed, high-return volunteer activities, warranting both appreciation and ex-
pansion,"

The third national initiative {s in the area of intergenerational programming.
We have discussed the 1ibrary after-school program with Congresswoman Olympia Snowe's
office, and we support the wide involvement of RSVP volunteers working with latchkey
children {n libraries. RSVP volunteers have been working with a variety of programs
with latchkey children and ACTION has just launched a4 library after-school program at
13 RSVP project sites.

Ve are r.commending an authorization level of $2 million for each of the three
national initfatives. We estimate that the full authorization would enable RSVP pro-
jects to recruit as many as 66,000 additional RSVP volunteers.

We are very much in favor of elevating the position of Director of the Older

American Volunteer Programs (0AVP) to a Presidential appointment and of reinstating
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three separate positions to Jirect RSVP, the Senior Companion, and the Foster Grand-
pareat Programs. In the early years of ACTION, the QAVP Director position was a
Presidential appointment. It would certainlv enhance the program to return the
position to this level, and it would provide for rore focus. It is equaliy true that
each of the three OAVP programs desetves an individual chief to direct the national
efforts.

The National Association of RSVP Directors recommends a 5% annual increase in
funding levels. There are now over 400,000 RSVP volunteers, but there are 35 million
Americans eligible to join RSVP, The cost-effectiveness of RSVP is undentiable.
fielding one volinteer for an entire year has a federal cost of $91. We would ltike
to ask for a percentage increase higher than 5%, but given the reaiities of the budget
we will keep our rercmmendation at 5%,

RSVP projects have had real nardships over the past decade because ACTION grants
have no mechanism to deal with inflation. Congress tried to relieve some of this
pressure by allocatiug a one-tiz COLA for FY88. Thus RSVP projects received a 3,47
increase last year aiter more than a decade without inflationary increases. We feel
there needs to be a provision built-in to the authorizing legislation to insure that
grantees receive a minimal (OLA each time their annual grant is renewed.

We are proud to be associated with RSVP, and we look forward to working with you
as you develop your legislation The very notion of senior voluntarism has only
emerged in the last 25 vears. It stands on the threshold of much greater influence
in retired peoples’ lives. It fs ironic that the enthusiastic promoters of national
volunteer service have overlooked the vast contributions of older volunteers.

We would like to thank you, especially Congressman kildee, for your awareness of
this great resource. We are very grateful for your commitment and for the legislation
that encourages the increasing involvement of senior volunteers.

Thank you, Congressman Kildee and members of the Comnittees, for the opportunity

to appear here today on behalf of the National Association ot RSVP Directors.
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RSVP

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF RSVP DIRECTORS. INC

PRESIOENT

Winitred Dowding

2 Cavc Caorer Proza
E1Paso TX 19900
1531 27

VICE PRESIOENT
Maucson SAuligan (NJ}

SECREYARY
Sandral Guthens (LA}

TREASURER
GatryAnne Brown [MA)

IMMEDIATE PAST
PRESIDENT
James Sugarman (NY)

REGIONAL DELEGATES
Dotothy Ward 1 (CT)
£14n WEN HL(NY)
Pavicia S Reaner 1 (KY)
Bafty M Ruth 1V (AL)
Nancy K Jameson ¥ ()
Stephen Doerr Vi (TX}
Catotyn Randal VIl {UT)
Nancy Brand 1X {CA)
Cranyt Biack X (OR)
WASHINGTON
REPRESENTATIVE

Fran Ouber

HISTORY

The National Association of RSVP Directors, Inc. was created in 1976 in
Chicago, Illinois, at a meeting of interested °SYP Directors from across
the country. Officers were elected and were charged with developing by-
laws and operating procedures. The organization {g incorporated in the
State of Indiana and has 501(c) (3) status.

PURPOSE

The purpose of NARSVPD, Inc. is to provide visibility and advocacy for

RSVP; to encourage a network of comwunications among RSVP Directors and
projects, and to be a vehicle for expression of majority opinion on be-
half of RSVP and older Americans to ACTION, the Administration on Aging,
Congress, and other appropriate governmental and national organizations.

SIRUCURE

Active memb rship is open to all RSVP Directors. Active members have
voting priv.’eges. Associate membership is available to other RSVP pro-
Ject staff ad to all other interested persons or groups. NARSVPD, Inc.
is operated ihrough a Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is com—
posed of nationally elected of ficers (President. Vice President, Secre-
tary, Treasurer) and nine Regional Representatives. The Board of Direc-
tors meets twice a year. The fall meeting is held in Washington, D.C.

NATIONAL AGENDA

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF RSVP Directors through workshops and training
prograzs of technical assistance.

RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT through networking with both the private sector and
public agencies.

ADVOCACY for older Americans as a natfonal resource.
COMMUNICATION on issues and ideas relevant to RSVP.

REPRESENTATION for those served b, RSVP, speaking on their behalf before
national government agencies and ither national organizations.

MANAGEMENT of RSVP- to aid in RSVP project management through he devel-
opment of surveys and data bases.

FOR MORE INFORMATION, CONTACT.

Winifred Dowling, President trances F. Butler, Washington Rep.
2 Civic Center Plaza 11481 Bingham Terrace

El Paso, TX 79901-1196 Reston, VA 22091

(915) 541-4374 (703) 860-9570
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RSVP DIRELCTORS ASSOCIATIONS ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Developed public/private partnership with B. Dalton Booksellers, Laubach Literacy Action,
and ACTION to fund RSVP components in adult literacy,

Developed public/private partnership with EXXON and ACTION to recruit more men into RSVP,

Developed and published "how-to" manuals with the American Association for International
Aging to show interested persons around the world how to start RSVP. Supported
the "sirter cities" concept of RSVP projects in Mexico. The first was estab=
lished in 1988.

Assists Directors across the country in securing State and local funding of RSVP. In
one State, Alabama, the State Directors Association is the recipient of State
funds for allocating to projects.

Promotes the Glder American Volunteer Progiams during National Volunteer Week, with ac-
tivities such as tle national balloon launch organized in 1988.

Developed nationwide agreement with the V.lunteer Talent Bank of the American Associa-
tion of Retired Persons.

Developed national awards programs, such as the annual award to an exemplary ACTION
employee.

Presents training sessions and workshops at annual corferences of volunteer and aging
orgarizations, such as the Delaware Conference on Aging and the National Council
on the Aging.

Addresses national issues in the area of voluntarism and aging in the Public Health Ser-
vices Year 2000 Health Objectives Project, the American Red Cross Volunteer 2000
Conference, the 1991 White House Conference on Aging, among others.

Conducts association surveys to inprove programming, such as the surveys on computeriza-
tion of projects, salary and benefit levels, and {nformation on volunteers and
Sponsors.

Supports individual projects with recognition items, computer software, and public rela-
tions aids, including press releases and radio spots.

Members of the Leadership Council of Aging Organizations, Generations United, The Na-

tional Association of Families Caring for their Eluers, Yea:r 2000 Health Objec=-
tives Consortium.

Q ‘i 4 9

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




106

Mr. Kipee. Thank you very much for your testimony. I think
volunteerism in this country probably finds its roots back in the
barn raising type of attitude we had as a pioneer country.

Most of us probably have rural roots. I know I do, although I was
born in the big city.

It is a very strong phenomenon in America; volunteerism is part
of our greatness.

I am glad you mentioned part D for the frail elderly. I think that
is one of the greatest accomplishments of this subcommittee, that
part D.

I wish the appropriations committee would fully fund that.

It was a great accomplishment. It was absolutely bipartisan. We
had support on both sides in this committee and on the Floor, too.

I am glad you mentioned that.

Ms. Williams.

Ms. WiLLiams. This is a great honor, to be here. I think Congress-
man Tauke for assisting and thank you, Chairman Kildee, for
having me here.

As you know, I am Marian Williams, from Dubuque, Iowa. I have
been with the Retired Senior Volunteer Program for 15 years. Con-
gressman Tauke’s mother I'sther was real active in this field of
aging and helped start and was on my advisory council for many
years.

You mentioned that his—Congressman Tauke’s father, Joe is
also a volunteer at the law enforcement center.

In my 15 years with RSVP, I have seen him change both in the
direction and concept of volunteering.

At one time volunteers were recruited to help with meal pro-
grams, do mailings, and other things, and it was set up to help full
the needs of the senior volunteer.

As a Member of the National Association of RSVP Directors, I
feel this group has helped change the concept of volunteering.

We are recruiting the handicapped. One lady in the nursing
home does phoning regularly to remind people of meetings and to
remind them for the YW {hat their membership is expiring, et
cetera.

Another volunteer had a stroke iast year, was very active and is
now confined to a wheelchair. Quite an alert man. Fortunately, the
stroke did not affect his speech. So he—I talk with him. He was
quite depressed. About the same time I was talking to a middle
school principal. He said ..e had a need to nave some books put on
tape for some of his students with reading disabilities.

So Carlton jumped at the chance. He is now doing a lot of that
from the home. He can do it in between his therapy and it is just a
tremendous opportunity.

A lot of times we have to go out and create these volunteer op-
portunities, but it fills certainly the community need as well as the
volunteer need.

The senior volunteers have as diversified backgrounds as any
other group. They include the retired professionals, the blue collar
workers, the low income, the middle income, the upper income, as
was brought out earlier. men, women, minorities, handicapped, the
educated and the uneducated.

I have a problem with “un” or “non.” I feel like a nonperson.
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We have such a wide variety of volunteer opportunities and a
wide variety of volunteer needs from the community. So we are
able to place most all volunteers, the widowed men are interesting.

Myd testimony I presented earlier, which I would like put on
record——

Mr. KiLpEk. It will be made part of the record.

Ms. WiLLiaMs. I talked about two men whose family members
had called me. They were very depressed. The one man gave the
shells of his gun to his daughter so he would not kill himself.

The wife had taken care of everything. The other man was in
mental health. Now they’re volunteering together. They patrol the
grounds of the hospital because they were having a lot of trouble
with vandalism. They have cut vandalism 70 percent.

They stay at the hospital. They have supper at night together,
and they have also joined support groups and they are helping
bring in other men.

They have brought in three other recently widowed men to vol-
unteer. So it is really a great experience and the man is out of
mental health.

RSVP have given many volunteers a new beginning in life. They
are helping in the parks with natural resources, crime prevention
in museums, in schools, hospitals.

A lot of the men are visiting nursing homes, playing cards with
residents in nursing homes. A few years ago, you couldn’t get a
man to go in there except to visit a family member.

Now we have them doing it regularly. As we all are aware, Mrs.
Bush is concerned about feeding the hungry. Without RSVP in
many areas, and the senior volunteers, this would be almost impos-
sible to accomplish.

Volunteers are helping in the meal programs. In food pantries in
Dubuque alone, they are feeding almost 100 a day to a sit down,
hot dinner that is prepared strictly by volunteers.

It is just a tremendous thing. I stop in and eat with them occa-
sionally and I think it is so nice to see the volunteers sealing one
on one with the hungry and there’s families that come in. Many of
them are homeless, this is in conjunction with a mission so they
always can stay ¢ here.

There are about 300 volunteers in the Second Congressional Dis-
trict of Iowa, giving respite care. This is not necessarily 20 hours a
week, but it is several days a week. They are giving time to the
primary care giver. So they can leave the home. They can go gro-
cery shopping. They can get their hair done, whatever. They are
helping with the cancer patients, through the cancer mound group
and so forth.

They are helping with other debilitating diseases. This is keeping
this patient possibly out of a nursing home for a longer period of
time because the primary caregiver can have the opportunity to
get out and away from it.

The retired senior volunteer program, contrary to some thoughts,
some people’s thoughts, is not a wealthy person’s program. Volun-
teers as well as directors come from all walks of life.

There’s no income guidelines to be a volunteer. They do not re-
ceive a stipend. In many of our cases, they are not receiving reim-
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bursement, because there is not enough money to reimburse them
for their mileage or transportation expenses.

This is very sad. As I said, we are recruiting persons from all
walks of life, but we do make a special effort to find the low
income, the handicapped, minority persons. If we have the senior
companion program or foster grandparents program in our commu-
nities, we make the referral, the same as they make a referral to
us.

In our case, we dn have a foster grandparents program, but
many times they will work 10 to 15 hours a week. They do not
want to commit to the five—or the 20 hours a week because they
don’t want to give up their quilting group at church or something.

Funding is a concern. I was so careful when I did my written
report for watching typos, I made a major one. I put in there 4.3
percent COLA increase. It is 3.4

Mr. KiLpee. We will make that correction.

Ms. WiLLiams. Thank you. Of all of them I could have done——

Mr. KiLpEE. It is better to err that way.

Ms. WiLLiams. That is our first increase from Action in the last
ten years. Currently we are trying to maintain our programs which
is being done with great difficulty. We feel there is a need to be
growing. There is a need for additional programs and additional
money could help the existing programs expand into other commu-
nities.

Mr. Grandy asked before, as did Mr. Poshard, about going into
rural communities. In my area I have had to close two other coun-
ties near me because of lack of funding. We are touching five coun-
ties. I would love to be able to go into all five of then. But there is
no money in thosc and these small communities could not give
local support to it.

It was one of the most difficult things I have ever had to do. The
one was able to continue on their own. The other one just closed up
their volunteer program.

With very minimal monies, we could expand into other commu-
nities with satellite programs.

In Iowa currently, we are covering 35 counties out of 99. That is
a sad ratio. I understand that that is ~bout the same ratio as it is
nationwide. One-third of the counties have a retired senior volun-
teer program in them.

The cost of RSVP, I feel, is quite minimal. Other ones are getting
the same amount of the grant as I am.

So I think we could do so much more with expansion if there
were monies available.

We really would like to offer our volunteers reimbursement and
we try to reach the low income and offer them reimbursement for
transportation.

But we are never sure who is low income because we have no
income guidelires to be a volunteer. It hardly seems fair, because a
lot of the other volunteers are going out three, four, five days a
week and helping and we don’t have it in our budgets.

The RSVP programs a very flexible and we wee the program as
having a large growth potential.

JEEY
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It would be nice if we could say in five years we will cover two-
thirds of the counties. We identify the need and we see volunteers
as the solution to many of the community needs.

I thank you for allowing me to speak today and if you find the
money, I would be glad to expand into other counties.

[The prepared statement of Marian Williams follows:]
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Congressman Kildee and Members of the Committee:

I'm Marian Williams, Retired Senior Volunteer Program Director from Dubuque, lowa.
Thank you for inviting me to give testimony on legislation to reauthonze the Domestic
Volunteer Service Act. | have been working with the Retired Senior Volunteer Program
for fifteen years and have held the posttion of Director since 1975.

Congressman Tom Tauke’s mother, who is deceased, served on the Advisory Coun-
cil of the Dubuque Retired Senior Voluntasr Program for six years. !had the pleasure
of having her as a fnend and also a person 1 could call on for help and adwvice as
needed. Esther was instrumental in promoting volunteerism in the area as she was
working in the field of aging.

The Retired Senior Volunteer Programs are helping many communities in interesting
ways. Congressman Tauke's father, Joe, has been an RSVP volunteer at the Dubuque
Law Enforcement Center for many years. He currently volunteers at the information
desk and assists staff with other duties as necessary, including writing notices for delin-
quent parking tichsts, filng, and helping people fill out information forms.

Volunteers are aiso working with law enforcement personnel in crime prevention for
older persons. Door and window locks have been mnstalled for elderly and hand-
icapped families. These devices are being mstalled at low cost or no cost. Home
safety is important, and volunteers help with home repairs such as repairing hand rails,
windows, installing smoke detectors and other things to make people fee! safei. Many
times these simple repairs enable peopie to remain in their own homes a little longer
and put off the necessity of entering a nursing home oo soon.

Aetired Senior Volunteers prepare and serve meals at the Rescue Mission in
Dubuque seven days a week to between 50 to 100 homeless and hungry individuals
and families. The volunteers also work at the Food Pantry and Salvation Army, helping
prepare and distribute food boxes to needy families.

In Cedar Rapids, lowa, the Public Library and the Retired Senior Volunteer Program
have launched an after school program for childre. age nine and older. PRQJECT
ASK (After School Kids) brings RSVP volurtesrs together with children who need assis-
tance with homework, reading or writing skills and research projects. Senior Volun-
teers, trained in library skills, work incvidually with children to help them learn to use
hibrary resources. The library is staffed by Senior Volunteers Monday through Thursday
afternoons from 3107 p.m Many of these young people would have to return to an
empty house because parents are still at work

Literacy 1s a pronlem we are all concerned about. Many hundreds of Retired Senior
Volunteers are assisting with Iiteracy counseling in cooperatiun with community
colleges and other agencies. Currently one Senior Voluritee in Dubugque is teaching
three students. Through volunteers, we are finding more persons needing literacy
counseling.

Many Senior Volunteers in Dubuque have been traned in financial counseling
through the County Extension program Thess volunteers are helping families and in-
dwiduals plan budgets and are making referrals to other agencies, if necessary.

o s
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About a year and a half ago a lady called my office concerned about her father, Ed,
who had recently been widowed. He was threatening suicide and was very serious
about it. She brought him to my office for an interview and | found that he would really
like to volunteer in the hospital in which his wife had died. As he had kriee surgery
several months previous, ke felt that walking could be good for him. | contacted the
maintenance department of The Finley Hospital and as the hospital is located near a
junior high schoot, there had been some trouble vath vandalism. Ed consented to
patrol the parking ramp and grounds every weekday afternoon.

Six months later | received another phone call fromn a lady who was concerned about
her father-in-law having recently been widowed He, too, was seriously considering
suicide. |talked to Ken and introduced him to Ed. They formed therr own support
team and are now helping five days weekly at the hospital. They are also taking part in
a support group and are participating in other community activities. This 1s really a part
of suicide prevention.

The Retired Senior Volunteer Program volunteers can and often do the same type of
volunteering that 1s done by Foster Grandparents and Senior Companion Programs.
The Retired Senior Volunteers do not receve any stipend, however

Retired Senior Volunteers are helping in schools on aregular basis. Almost ten years
ago, Lela came to the RSVP office to inquire about volunteer opportunities. After she
completed the regist-ation form, we discussed various ways volunteers were needed
One pressing area was in an elemeniary school helping students with learning disabil-
ies. Her trepidation was great, as she did not have a degree nor had she ever taught
schaool. After the principal and | explained that it wasn't necessary, she consented to
try one morning a week. Within a month, Lela had changed her personal calendar and
was helping four mornings a week. She continues to do this yet; the childran jove her,
and she 1s having a meaningful experience in Ife. She does not receive a stipend for
her work with these learning disabled children.

Another area of assistance to childsen is the "Every School Teiephone Help Line."
This 1s a point of contact for information and/or support for children when home alone
or without adult supervision, The youngster may call the Senior Volunteer daily from 3
107 pm., just to tell a happy story of something that happened at school. The valun-
teer provides some positve reinforcement or encouragement, Sometimes the child will
call because he is frightened or someone is at the door or maybe it 1s a windy day and
there are different noises in the house Many times the children are justlonely. About
150 calls are received monthly in this program in Waterloo, Jowa.

The Retired Senior Volunteer Programs, of course, recruit for the traditional volunteer-
type opportunities; however, many of the volunteers are helping with non-traditional
work. One of these areas Is providing respite care. This enables the primary care giver
an opportunity to leave the home for short periods of time to do grocery shopping,
doctor appointments, harr or barber shop trips, or possibly just give them a chance to
be alone. In the second congressional district of lowa, there are about 300 famlies
receivinC -sspite care from Senior Volunteers

Mary has besn a volunteer for many years. She s now 85 years ald and hasn't been
siowed down a Lit. Currenlly she 1s helping the Red Cross, American Cancer Society,
Dubuque Museum of Art, Greater Dubuque Development Corporation, Hilicrest Family
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Services, United Way, and is willing io assist as needed and when called by our office
She give between 30 and 40 hours weekly. All of this work I1s outside her own home
and she walks to most of the assignments.

Telephone Reassurance Programs are also a help to people wanting to remain in
ther wwn homes. In cooperation with The Finley Hospttal, sponser of RSVP in Dubu-
que, lowa, the programis staffed by volunteers in the Emergency Department At a pre-
arranged time daily, a volunteer calis the persons to assure their well being. If the
recipient has a health complaint, a nurse will call later to ascertain i medical help 1s
needed. In the case of no one answering the phone, emergency procedures go into
effect. This includes contacting a neighbor or relative and, & necessary, the police.
Many Retired Senior Volunteer Programs have very similar programs to help the elderly
remain independent. One case is a couple living alone--the man was wheelcharr bound
and quite sentle, so his wife always answered the phone. On this particular day the hus-
band answered and the volunteer was not able to talk to his wife. He stated that she
couldn’t come to the phone at the time  The volunteer persisted and finally he said she
way lying on the floor and couldn’t get up An ambulance was called and she was
taken to a hospital for the necessary care.

Another program instituted by Retired Senior Volunteer Program Directors 1s BABES
(Beginning Alcoho! Basic Educaticn and Studies) This is substance abuse prevention
work with puppets to promote living and self concepts for children. Retired Senior
Volunteers go to schools and day care centers with their puppets and scnpt and assist
in helping young children understand the problems and prevention methods. It has
heen very successful in many areas across the nation.

When Don came to the office he reaily was interested in getting involved as a volun-
teer. His hobby is woodworking. That was perfect, as a school for severely and
profoundly handicapped needed some equipment that was cost prohibitive for them to
purchase. They gave Don & picture of the tems and he proceeded to make charrs to fit
two children with a special need He also made a conveyor to help with sorting cans
and bottles This is a dexterity exercise for these chidren These special students now
have equipment that may not have been possible If an RSVP volunteer hadn’t
responded to the need

Many programs provide services to senior citizens, and Retired Senior Volunteers pro-
vide community service  Where there i1s a need, there is a Retired Senior Volunteer

Alberta retired a few years ago as an executive secretary to the superintendent of
schools  She wanted to volunteer, but not too often. She said there were only so many
walls to wash, cabinets to clean and other housework to be done. But, again she
reminded me that she didn’t want to get tied down to volunteer work. One half day a
week would be enough and maybe more than enough 1 asked her to help at the
United Way office with som® typing and she consented but said, *l don’t want to be tied
down " A month later she phoned to say that she was back in the world of the living
again and was volunteering two full days and a half day weekly.

Senior Volunteers also help with VITA (Volunteer Income Tax Assistance). This invol-
ves assisting older persons in filling sut their ncome tax forms. Voluntaers receve ex-
tensive training to accomplish this assignment
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A big problam Retired Senior Volunteer Program directors are having is fundraising it
seems we are spending as much time trying to raise money to maintain the program as
we are trying to find volunteers to fill the community needs. Mot only do we want to
maintain--BUT--we want to grow and that is becoming more difficutt on the imited
monies available. Fund raising Is a very genuine concern for us. Last year RSVP
received a 3.9% COLA increase, and this was the first ACTION increase in the past ten
years.

RSVP recruits and places volunteers with agencies in a vansty of opportunities  Al-
though we have Memorandums of Understanding with these agsncies, and we request
them to keep records of volunteer hours, manv times the agencies take ownership.
They call them “their volunteers” and tend to forget that they were onginally recrutted
and placed by a staff in the Retired Senior Volurteer Program. Although we do site
visits regularly, there just isn't enough staff to accomplish additional visits.

It appears there 1s a misconception that RSVP 1s a wealthy persons’ program. Direc-
tors and volunteers come from all walks of tife. Ever though there are no ircome
guidelines to be a volunteer, many volunteers are low-income persons. The Retired
Senior Volunteer Program provides opportunities for low income persons as well as
providing services to assist them to become more independent and remain inde-
pendent. We need to clear up the myth--

COME INDIVIDUALS,

There IS a need for funding of additional Retired Senior Volunteer Programs. In lowa,
only one naw full-time program has been instituted since 1981. RSVP has grown by its
own efforts. We have had to be creative and innovate with the very imited resources
available. If additional monies were made available, I'm sure that most of the RSVP
programs could expand and meet other needs in our community as well as in new
communities.

Our reimbursement policy is to offer out of pocket expenses to all volunteers. Many
of thie RSVP's have had tn offer it only to those volunteers we know are in the low in-
come category and needing the transportation reimbursement. This hardly seems far
but with cur budget imitations, there just s not enough money.

Although we seek out low-income, handicapped and minorty persons for involve-
ment in the community, there s also a need to find volunteer opportunities for the
recently-retired persons RSVP can be, and often 1s, a reai Iife saver for the new retiree
These persons have a wealth of knowledge and ne~d to keep utilizing their time anc
skills.

The Retired Senior Volunteer Programs are flexible and heip to meet the cor munity
needs RSVP not only identfias areas needing help but helps create volunteer oppor-
tunites People need to be needed. Volunteering gives the Senior Citizen an oppor-
tunity to contribute to the community and fill both community and personal needs.

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to present testmony on behalf of the Retired
Senior Volunteer Program -

sees retired people as a solution to many of our community problem.




115

Mr. KiLpee. Thank you, Ms. Williams. I appreciate your testimo-
ny I will start with a few questions here more directly on the
foster grandparent and senior companion programs.

How big a role does a stipend play in enabling low income people
to make a 20 hour per week commitment to serving in these pro-
grams?

Ms. MANLEY. Our people—the foster grandparents really need
that money. They reaﬁy do not have the money to get out each day
to be a volunteer. Much as they would like to, many times they
will say to me, I would love to be able to do this, to say that I
would do this, even if I didn’t get the money, but the truth is, I
have to have that money to survive.

The income limits are quite low, as you know. I consider it very,
very important. I testified on this before the Senate at the time
that Action was proposing the nonstipended clause in the law.

Our people are volunteers and they talk about themselves as
being velunteers. But they are always proud of this little job and
their is not—I feel really good when payday comes. I feel as though
I have earned it. They feel the same way.

I think that it is very, very important.

Mr. KiLpgg. Dwight.

Mr. Rasmussen. I think I can reiterate that somewhat. I think
anybody who is paid any kind of reimbursement feels somewhat
more of a commitment to do the job, but to do the job well, because
there is some financial reimbursement riding on their ability to
complete that job.

I believe that it also helps with the 20 hour a week commitment,
that that is said to them in the very beginning.

This is the commitment we are making to you with the reim-
b}l:mements, and the financial ability for us to reimburse you on
this.

Now we expect that you will commit yourselves to the full 20
hours a week.

Sometimes that is difficult for someone who is 75 or getting close
to 80 years old, but if they know that going in up front, that that is
a commitment they are making on the 20 hour work week for the
financial reimbursement, that is going to heip them and their life-
style somewhat.

I think it all works together and does pull that commitment into
a strong frame. We do have those individuals who do get ill. They
are not able to work that full 20 hours a week for a short period of
time, but knowing that their volunteer commitment kind of de-
pends on their ability to come back and work 20 hours pulls that
all together.

So I believe the stipend does have an awful lot to do with that.

Senior companions I believe have a bit more turnover than foster
grandparents. We are in the private home setting. We are seeing
very sick, very frail, senior elderly individuals. That can sometimes
be difficult to deal with on a four hour basis, when you are in that
home along, with that individuals.

In the foster grandparents setting, they have staff around some-
times in the institutions. I think that is very important because
they work with some very difficult clients also. But when you are
home alone or in that private home setting with someone who may
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be bed-bound or terminally ill, I think that financial stipend can
help pull that commitment together.

As a director, it is our responsibility and our sponsoring agencies
and our volunteer stations to make sure we try to watch the burn-
out effort and that we place them with other clients that there is
always a kind of uplifting experience for them, too. Maybe someone
90 or 95, but still sharp as a tack and wanting to get out who needs
a little bit of assistance.

We all have a responsibility to that.

Mr. KiLpEE. What I have seen going around my own district, the
five counties I represent, is that very often that ability to earn
some money for themselves enhances their own dignity as they are
out trying to promote the dignity of the other person they are serv-
ing.

There is a dual dignity lifting here.

Do you find that rather common out there?

Mr. RAsMUSSEN. Very prevalent. I believe I said that in my oral
remarks.

The obligation of that senior companion or the foster grandpar-
ents it contributes to the independence of both the client as well as
the volunteer. They have something to get up for in the morning.
They have someplace to go, and the biggest thing they are doing is
that they have someone to help.

Most of these people have been in the helping role all of their
life anyway, especially the women. Now we are seeing a fairly high
influx of men who have worked all their lives. Now they haven’t
had that chance to help somebody. We are seeing that grow some-
what. It is exciting to see the male, the senior male get involved in
waﬁti{}% to help an Alzheimer’s patient or someone who is termi-
nally ill.

The assignments are so varied that there is plenty for everybody
to do. It does contribute to the independence of both.

Ms. MANLEY. Along these lines, we value work in this society.
The person who is productive is the person who gets the most re-
spect. The paycheck is an indication of a productive individual.
They respond in that way. It means they are worth something.

Mr. KiLDEe. Mr. Grandy.

Mr. GRANDY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Let me begin by apologizing. I have to leave in about five or ten
minutes to catch a flight.

Let me ask some questions about two topics, the nonstipended/
stipend discussion and the cost of living adjustment.

In the nonstipend program, do You have any data that indicates
how many nonstipend volunteers were at one point stipended? How
many switched over?

We are talking about a small universe anyway, of, what, 80 in
the entire program? How many of those were originally stipended
and stayed in the program as nonstipended employees?

Ms. MANLEY. I cannot give you any numbers. I have anecdotal
information of directors who have told me about nonstipended
people they had, and it was interesting, they usually were in state
hospitals.

It would be a spouse who could not get the stipend, who would go
with the two, the married couple wou%d go together and one would
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work as a nonstipended volunteer with the husband. I did get a
lady, a spouse, and she lasted for seven weeks.

Mr. GRaNDY. I was just intrigued by something that was in Ms.
Dowling’s testimony, saying 41 percent of the RSVP program are
low income, which has no stipend at all.

You just reimburse for expenses, is that correct?

Ms. DowLING. If we can.

Mr. GrRaNDY. Then we have a study here that I guess was con-
ducted by Action which you may know about which says that non-
stipended volunteers worked cooperatively at many volunteer sta-
tions, many nonstipended volunteers had served on a stipended
basis for many years before advancing age cut back on their ability
to commit a full 20 hour week.

If we assume what Mr. Rasmussen says is true, and if we are a
rapidly aging society, won’t there be a market for some of these el-
derly folks that cannot fulfill a 20 hour work week but could per-
form on a lesser role who could move from a stipended category to
a nonstipended category?

Isn’t there a need to perhaps maintain those folks as well?

Ms. DowLiNG. I will give you the example of what we do in El
Paso.

If there are people who can no longer serve full time with FGP
or SCP, foster grandparents or senior companions, they become
RSVP volunteers.

Mr. GRANDY. You move them into the nonstipended?

Ms. DowLiNG. Exactly. They are still covered by insurance which
is an advantage. When we can, we reimburse them for transporta-
tion and meals.

It is a very sensible transition. Our position always was that that
is what nonstipended volunteers are, RSVP.

Mr. GrANDY. [ grant you that. But is there always an RSVP pro-
gram to go into?

Ms. DowLing. That is true, but almost always there is, very very
rarely will you find a situation where there is not.

Mr. GRANDY. In rural areas I think that is probably more true
than in urban areas.

Are you maintaining that there is an administrative burden in
recr‘v;liting these nonstipended volunteeis and it is not worth the
cost?

Ms. MaNLEY. There is an administrative burden, definitely. I
have always made it a practice to over—and if it was not legal to
have nonstipended volunteers before, I was never aware of that. I
know other directors who were not aware of that.

4 I }ﬁave always offered that. I have not been able to get anyone to
o that.

But the more people you have, were I to have recruited—succeed-
ed in recruiting some, then I would have more people to train,
more people to supervise, and more people to offer support to. all
kinds of support that we offer them.

It definitely is an administrative burden, the more we have the
more work there is.

Mr. Granpy. How much effort is put into recruiting the nonsti-
pended volunteer? Is that a significant portion of your administra-
tive overhead?

4’
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Mr. RasMusseN. Currently I believe in my project very little is
added into our administrative costs for recruitment or training or
anything of that sort, Mr. Grandy.

But the intent of the language says to us, “You are encouraged
to do that.” Whether or not we do that, is that going to be a diffi-
cult problem for us?

The encouragement we feel in there is kind of a drawback to us.
If I might respond to the first part of your question in reference to
the number of volunteers that were once nonstipended and then
the language came in and assumed that, I am aware of one project
that probably had seven or eight prior to the language, after the
language, then there were also maybe seven or eight.

Mr. GRANDY. I guess in terms of administrative costs, the nonsti-
pended volunteer is not really obligated to fulfill a 20 hour work
week and is then not obligated to fill out time and attendance
sheets.

So there is no enormous administrative bookkeeping and over-
head for these volunteers. I wouldn’t think they would cost the pro-
gram a lot of money at this point.

Mr. RasmusseN. That is difficult for me to answer, vecause I have
not utilized them nor do I at this point have an interest. I realize
there may be a pool there. I guess I am lucky enough that I have an
allocated RVSP program, and it is very close to me, and { can refer to
that.

I believe the intent strays from—or it—it strays from the intent
of Congress in the low income.

I feel like there are other ways to utilize those individuals and
their talents, rather than pull them into what ha. traditionally
been the low income stipended program.

I think you also have some controversy, I have hearw this with
some of the programs, where you have someone who is getting a
stipend and someone who is not. If they get into in-service training
together, that that has caused some frictiun.

Mr. GranDY. I can understand that point. I'll go back to the pos-
sibility that there may be those nonstipended fermerly stipended
employees who want to stay in the program just because they have
a commitment to service, that they believe in the volunteer compo-
nent of this program. I am not sure that that is a worthwhile en-
deavor, to cut those individuals off.

That is my concern. Again, we are talking about a pitifully small
amount of people. I am wondering what the big deal is in terms of
getting rid of it or keeping it. It does not seem to cost a lot either
way. I do think we should be trying to encourage as much volun-
teerism as we can.

I have just one more question.

Regarding the COLA, the five percent increase that you would
like to see, that would go to your administrative budget in the
field; is that correct?

Ms. MaNLEY. If it was five percent of the total budget. Some of
that could go for the needs I am describing.

Mr. GranDY. You are talking about a five percent cost of living
adjust{)nent for the grant every year, an ongoing five percent in-
crease?
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Would that include the salaries of the people who work in the
program as well?

Ms. MANLEY. Foster grandparents or the stipend?

Mr. Granpy. The five percent cost of living adjustment would in-
crease everything, would it not?

Ms. MANLEY. Right.

Mr. Granpy. It would give you the flexibility to decide?

Ms. ManNLEY. Well, we would have to work out the wording of
the legislation to see exactly how that would work.

Mr. Granpy. You don’t want us to pass a five percent cost of
living adjustment ana say you cannot use it for salaries, right?

Ms. MANLEY. Are you talking about staff salaries or foster grand-
parent stipends?

Mr. GRANDY. Staff salaries.

Ms. MANLEY. No, no, I don’t want you to do that.

Mr. GranDY. I didn’t think so.

But here is what I am asking. We are looking at these needed
cost-of-living adjustments supposedly in a time of tighter dollars
and kinder and gentler discussion with leaner and meaner budgets,
and it occurs to me, seeing as how in Mrs. Alvarado’s testimony we
have seen that there is a very strong participatory element from
the private sector kicking in funds here, would it be conceivable to
devise a cost-of-living adjustment that would be contingent upon
your ability to get the organizations in your community to help you
underwrite your programs to kick in half of it?

In other words, if we came in with 2.5 percent, it would only be
happening if it was contingent upon a 2.5 match by the people that
underwrite you privately.

Ms. MANLEY. We have raised money locally and we have reached
the end of our rope.

Mr. GRANDY. You are saying the communities themselves——

Ms. MaNLEY. That is right. My own agency cut back our United
Way funds by $8,000 this last year, plus the fact that there were
COLA adjustments to make, so it made a cut of about $14,000 in
our program and that was because they are hurting so badly with
all of their pcograms.

The money is simoly—there are so many people going after that
private dollar and I think we have shown that we have been able
to get that money, but the rubber band is stretched awfully far at
this point.

Mr. Granpy. Do you find the same thing, Mr. Rasmussen, in
terms of soliciting the communities for funds?

Mr. RasmusseN. In a very large sense, but I also believe that we
do have a responsibility to do that. The problem is, and where the
line is drawn is that the money is easie: to get when it goes direct-
ly to the volunteer. When you are able to say, “We can add four
foster grandparents or two senior companions to serve 10 more in-
dividuals,” they will listen more and buy into the proposal.

But if we ask them if we can use a certain percentage of that
money to increase our salary or to add one staff member for five
hours a week to help us recruit those five, then the dollar becomes

tighter because they are concerned about the administrative costs
as well as everybody is.
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I get $20,000 from a hospital corporation on a yearly basis. Every
bit of that money is tied to add five ..ditional Senior Companions.
They have bought into the program. They like us, they like the
staff because we do a fairly good job, but if I was to ask them for
$25,000 and say, “We would like to use $5000 of that for adminis-
trative costs,”” I don’t think I would get it and I think I would jeop-
ardize the relationship that I have there. That is the difficulty.

Ms. DowLING. I agree it is hard to raise money, especially in
rural areas. I know from RSVP that it is a lot harder for rural
RSVPs to raise money than urban. However, I do think that we
have a responsibility too, that we shouldn't just be here with our
hands out saying we would like more money, wouldn’t that be nice.

I suggest that maybe we continue, that it might be tied to the
way the grants are now tied, that is for AFGP-SCP that it is a 90/
10 match and that for RSVP it is a 70/30 match. Maybe that would
be a possibility, that the additional monies would depend upon a 30
or a 10 percent match depending on the program.

Mr. Granpy. This question comes up time and again when
people come before committees asking for increased funding. I
would like particularly in an area like this, where there has been a
private sector commitment to this, to in a sense hold their feet to
the fire as well, because some of these adjustments are inevitable
regardless of what the budget figures are. But the constant Federal
exposure is I think the wrong message to send to the private sector.

Ms. DowLING Keep in mind that except for last year we have
had no kind of COLA for 10 years. Really the l.cal areas do not
have the feeling that all this largess is coming from the Federal
Government. There is a commitment there. What do you think of
the idea of the 90/10 or the 70/30?

Mr. GranDY. In other words, if there is a 5 percent increase we
provide 90 percent and the community provides 10?

Ms. DowLING. Yes, because it would continue the commitment on
both sides.

Mr. GranDY. I wasn’t here when those 90/10 formulas were
agreed. I sit on this side of the aisle and that seems like increased
Federal exposure, which is usually something I do not support. I
would consider some kind of cost sharing agreement.

Thank you.

Mr. KiLpge. Ms. Unsoeld.

Ms. UNsOELD. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.

I wanted to thank the ;:nel because even the best of st .stics
and reports there is a special impact when we hear from people
who have been actually doing the job. So thank you very much for
coming.

Mr. KiLpge. Mr. Poshard.

Mr. PosHarD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of
the committee. Forgive me if I am stepping on forbidden territory
here, but I couldn’t help but notice some of the nonverbal reactions
of some of you folks when the previous panel was speaking.

Within your written testimony there is an obvious adversarial re-
lationship here of a sort—maybe it is ot as bad as I think it is,
between your programs and ACTION. What is under the table
here, the hidden agenda?
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Ms. Dowwring. Because I worked for ACTION for 10 years in
Washington, I feel very comfortable about dealing with ACTION.
But it is nice to have seen both sides.

The problem is not at all—when we have been saying ACTION, I
think we are talking really about national policy. We are not talk-
ing about individual ACTION staff or the support that we get in
most cases, tremendous support, and I am sorry if I didn’t really
make that clear, that there are some marvelous people in ACTION,
totally dedicated, smart and able, and willing to, after 15 years, to
get out there every day and work hard for our programs and see
them expand. They are great people.

I guess you could say in a nutshell that there are a number of
things that we haven’t been happy about in the leadership.

Mr. PosHARD. Does anybody want to elaborate on that or am I off
base here, Mr. Chairman?

You have in your written testimony that there are policy consid-
erations that you are not satisfied with. What are those?

It seems to me that all of you are in the same boat, so to speak,
in terms of the constituency that you serve and that we ought to
have cooperation instead of divisive policies.

I am a freshman; I don’t know whether I am asking the right
question or not.

Mr. Kibee. There are no wrong questions here.

Mr. RasMUSSEN. As one freshman to another, I too remarked also
in my oral remarks about that type of relationship and I am, as I
said, I am four years old and the first project director that I came
to in 1985 here I heard the word ACTION family, welcome to an
ACTION family, a lot. I was proud to be a part of that and still am
proud to be a part of the ACTION family.

But there are variances and differences and I will give one exam-
ple, that when it comes to a regional or state training the national
associations that we have come together to form are not allowed
time on the agenda to work together and to network and to talk
about the things that we would like to see happen with the pro-
grams.

We are to meet after or before or any of the time during the
agendas. To me that seems that there is that barrier there. So in
(riny oral remarks, as a new officer, I would like to tear that barrier

own.

I believe that we have a lot to offer ACTION as people working
with the volunteers. We have a lot to offer them as well as they
have a lot to offer us.

I have a wonderful working relationship with our state office
people. I can call them at any time and ask them for anything. It
just seems as though on the national level that the associations
and individuals like ourselves are not utilized to our fullest capac-
ity, and I think that is what I would like to see a betterment for so
that we are working for the same cause.

I hope I elaborated enough on the fact that if we all work togeth-
er more of those seniors will be served and we will use more of
those seniors to help fill that community need.

Mr. Posnarp. Have you articulated those concerns to the
ACTION director?
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Mr. RasMusseN. The short period I have been involved with the
national association and attended two meetings with the staff here,
some of those concerns have been articulated.

Mr. Possarp. Why would ACTION want to retain any barriers
between the organizations?

Mr. RasmuUssen. I don’t believe I have an opinion on that, sir. I
can’t see a reason for it to tell you the truth, in my judgment.

If I might say one additional word, I believe that there is in some
sense a willingness on their part to utilize project directors. I was
invited back in November to be a part of the new director training.

When they brought all 44 projects together they invited three of
the Senior Companion directors back to assist in that training, and
I think that is a point to start and to continue with in national
trainings where they utilize our expertise and come to the associa-
tions and say, “What do you think about this?”

Tom Linhart did a wonderful job of putting that orientation to-
gether and he utilized three individuals who had been in the field
for 12 to 15 years and myself as the freshman, four years, so I
think that is a start, and I would like to see that expand.

Mr. PosHaRD. One other comment, if I may. On the suggestion
that you made in terms of the cost share basis, I certainly favor
that sort of thing. I have been a car./ul observer of senior pro-
grams in my area and I have watched those programs almost be
demeaned to the point where it is sickening sometimes.

Many of our senior groups raise money through bake sales and
raffles. Every week it is something else just to come up with what-
ever amount of money they have to come up with to get ‘he match-
ing funds from the state or Federal programs. It has alr-nst gotten
to the point where you can’t go any further.

We don’t have any big United Ways or big cities. I think the big-
gest town in my district is 15,000 people. E] Paso has all kinds of
things that maybe help senior citizens; the rural areas of this coun-
try do not. They have to beat the bushes for money.

I would hope that a 90/10 could work to our advantage in the
rural areas in terms of maintaining quality of these programs.

Ms. DOwLING. At the same time giving people an opportunity te
contribute something. It gives them ownership.

Mr. PosHARD. That is right.

Ms. DowLINe You asked about the relationship with ACTION.
RSVP has really had a problem in these last few years because we
have been pretty much ignored. It was hard when you consider we
are 84 percent of the entire ACTION program.

One specific thing that happened in October is that ACTION said
they didn’t have enough money to provide regional training in the
spring. Notwnally ACTION trains twice a year for project directors.

So the assoiiations together offered to do the training, and
ACTION just rejected it out of hand. Not only did they do that, but
then when they sent out a letter to the regions and the state offices
saying what would be allowed, they specifically said that it
shouldn’t have anything to do with an association meeting, so natu-
rally we feel rebuffed.

Mr. Possarbp Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KiibEe. Thank you, Mr. Poshard. You are no longer a fresh-
man.
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I want to thank the panel. It has been excellent. You people are
in the field. You serve the people. You have brought us a great
deai of information, insight, some new energy, too, and I appreciate
it very much. We will be in contact with you.

Mr. KiLpee. I really appreciate the patience of our last panel. I
will ask them to come forward now.

Joseph Nicholas, Senior Companion Volunteer; Edith Wells,
Foster Grandparent Volunteer; Jennie Walke., Retired Senior Vol-
unteer.

Mr. Nicholas, do you want to start?

STATEMENTS OF JOSEPH NICHOLAS, SENIOR COMPANION VOL-
UNTEER; EDITH WELLS, FOSTER GRANDPARENT VOLUNTEER;
AND JENNIE L. WALKER, RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER

Mr. NicHoras. Mr. Chairman, Members of the committee, thank
you for th’ opportunity to testify before you today. Good morning.
My name is Joseph Nicholas. I am a resident of the District of Co-
lumbia. I am an SC volunteer, working in the program sponsored
Ey the Institute of Gerontology, Universiy of the District of Colum-

1a.

I'am currently working at the D.C. Village Nursing facility. For
seven years I have helped those who cannot help themselves. For
four hours per day, five days per week I care, share and give of
myself by expressions of love, concern and compassion.

I'have three clients assigned to me. I help them in whatever way
I can, such as escorting clients to the various clinics and programs,
talking, cheering up and any other tasks that contribute to the
comfort and well-being of the clients.

One of my clients is bedridden. Every morning I have to have
prayer with her. The prayer sessions seem to help her cope with
f_}}e pain and suffering. In addition, there is renewed interest in
ife.

This experience has given me a great sense of accomplishment
and pride. Working in the SC program has given me the joy of
going out of my home, preventing me from sitting around nursing
my own problems. I got involved in the program because I believe
that those of us who are not limited should take care of those who
Cﬁn’t take care of themselves. The SC program allows me to do
this. :

Being an SC myself, this work helps me to maintain my physical
and mental health. The information I receive at the monthly in-
service training sessions is beneficial to both the client and SCs.

For example, at a recent training session we had, a presentation
was made on available energy services and cost-saving ideas. The
services and ideas passed on to the senior companion and subse-
quently to the clients will surely reduce the strain of our limited
income, especially those residing in homes or apartments.

The stipend provided has enabled me to maintain a reasonable
quality of life. Without it, I probably would have to seek employ-
ment elsewhere and apply for aid from the D.C. Department of
Human Services. I thank God for the strength and knowledge to be
able to help someone and pray that the program will be available
to me as a client when I can no longer care for myself.
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Thank you.

Mr. KiLpEe. Thank you very much, Mr. Nicholas

Edith Wells from Richmond.

Ms. WeLLs. Mr. Chairman and the committee, good morning, or
afternoon. It is a pleasure to be here today to testify on this com-
mittee or to say a few words about my duties.

It has been a pleasure for me to be a Foster Grandparent, as I
am a grandparent and a great-grandparent. I work with the first-
graders in school, and during my time of work there—I have been
there four years, and I also have a lot of little children that I have
to contend with every day, and sometimes they can be very, very
upsetting and then again they can be making you very happy with
the things that they do. But during my time of being there, I have
found that the service that I am rendering has been more inspira
tional to the children and helpful as it has been to myself.

There are a lot of little children that come to school that they do
not get attention at home. They do not have the love and attention
that they really need. And when you see that you can make a child
happy or you can see a smile on their face, it means so much to
you, because I ki.ow how my grandchildren are when something
goes for them, and they brighten up and the saii.e thing happens to
those children in the classroom.

I have certain duties that I perform with the children. Some of
the slow learners in the class, if they don't know their math or if
they cannot read, I have a round table that I sit, I take them to
myself while the teacher is working with the other class, and I
work with them.

For the last four years I have had about five children that were
either slow in reading or math, and I have helped them to accom-
plish what they needed to so they could pass their grades at the
end of the year. And that has made me feel real good, because I
know I have been of some help and I know the parent, if .ney
knew what was going on, they would appreciate that.

During the time that I am in the classroom, the teacher feels
confident enough that she can leave the class with me and go out if
she needs to go, and the children will listen if I say, “Be quiet,”
and et cetera.

I have really enjoyed being a Foster Grandparent and as a volun-
teer. Of course, there are a few things that don’t go your way all
the time and they are exactly as you expect them to be, but what is
going right in life all the time? We have our ups and downs so we
have to make the best of whatever. We would like things to be
better for us. o

I am a mother of five sons. I have 21 grandchildren. I have four
great-grandchildren. I have a handicapped son that I have to look
after each day, but during the morning hours while I am in school,
he has a personal care nurse to come in in the morning and this
gives me a break that I can get a way from that diversion. When I
leave school, I go back to that. But being in school, it helps me and
I am helping someone else also.

So I say to anyone that feels like they want to help someone,
work with the little children because they are very appreciative. If
I miss a day out of school, the next morning when I hit the door,
“Ms. Wells, where were you yesterday? We missed you.” That
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makes you feel good if you have done something to help someone,
even a little child.

The Bible says “a little child will lead them,” and if you watch
out, they will. I hope I can continue this program until I'can’t do it
and I mcan that from the bottom of my heart.

Mr. KiLpEe. Thank you Ms. Wells. Very good.

Ms. Jennie Waiker.

Ms. WALKER. Congressman Kildee, other Congress Members, in-
vited guests and my director, Dr. Cos y, good afternoon or good
morning, whichever. I am Jennie L. Waiker and I am here to speak
on the RSVP Volunteer Services which is sponsored by Fam.ily and
Child Services, Washington, D.C.

I have worked with Meals on Wheels, which was organized by
Ms. Sara Tollington at New York Avenue Presbyterian Church. 1
worked siv years after the orientation meeting. T enjoyed serving
these people. They were so happy to see me, each day they would
come and ask me why I was so long getting back. I didn’t work
every day, but maybe two days a week. They had other volunteers
for other days.

I would have a li.ie chat with them, and always tried to leave
them in a good feeling, smiling or what have you. Because I had
other meals to serve, and we tried to serve them so they would be
hot for the other people—on my route I had a blind lady. She was a
darling. She could not see anything, so she asked me to help her
sign her check. That was the day that thcy have to pay. I was also
collecting. And I told her, yes, I would be glad to help her.

Then I would sit close to her and tell her where to start her pen,
and then I would say quietly to her, “You're doing fine. Now don’t
move the pen. Just go straight along. Oh, that’s good. Come dewn
just a little.” Then she gets it done and I compliment her for her
effort in signing her check, and she was very grateful to me and
thanked me so many, many times, even gave me a Christmas
present that year.

Another station—I worked at Freidman’s Hospital. I helped pa-
tients with reading material from the library, writing letters, and
listening to people tell of their situations and let them *alk. I also
received patients for appointments to the doctors.

I then moved to Howard Hospital where I helped visitors and
families find their way through the new hospital. At the communi-
ty service at Simon Hamlin Methodist Church, here we were help-
ing the young people, young ladies and men, to find a job or stay in
school, and we had fairly good success with doing that. And Family
and Child Services, I helped with the mailing, writing, and babysit-
ting. Sometimes there were 10 children at a time.

But I had a neighbor who was lonely and wanted something to
do, so I asked her if she would like to join RSVP. She said, “Well,
maybe. T1l go with you sometime.” So she went with me one day
and enjoyed it. We both love children. That was Mrs. Montague,
and we are sorry about her passing last December.

RSVP has made it possible for us to go on trips, to moves, and we
were invited to the recognition programs where we received certifi-
cates as appreciation for our work. The luncheons and Christmas
parties were very enjoyable. Everyone was very happy, and we had
a good fellowship there.

1«
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Now, the finance. The donation we receive is a small amount for
us. Of course, we don’t hold back because of the amount. We still
do the work. It is a small amount, because we are all on small in-
comes and we have our regular bills to pay, food to buy, and
clothes. Everything has gone sky-high now, as you know. In that
light, I feel that we should be given more.

I also worked with the American Diabetic Foundation and do
writing there. Through RSVP we are shoppers, office helpers,
friendly visitors, sales persons, thrift shop helpers, and we can help
handicapped people, and we have one that I visit who cannot walk,
and of course she cried about three months after she lost her hus-
band wanting to go home, and it is a sad situation.

We also have the deaf, the mentally retarded, and we can be hos-
pital aides or tutors. Through RSVP, we have made new friends,
helped in community problems, forgotten our own worries by help-
ing others

We can be officially recognized by Action and our local RSVP.
We might even find a second career. We feel with this—nay I
leave this little point with you?—we feel as a motto, “Others, Lord,
yes others, let this our motto be: Let us help others that we may be
like thee.”

It has been a pleasure working with the volunteers and I am
grateful for being invited here today. Congressman Kildee, I re-
ceived your letter, and it was very nice.

When we go to see these people who are so shut in and when we
go there and see them hoping to give them some consolation, they
give us consolation. We are so happy when we leave them.

So I thank you.

Mr. KiLpee. The 1k you very much. I thank all three of you.

This has been the best panel; no disrespect to the others. I think
we agree it has been very good.

I have to philosophize a bit. My staff has probably heard this
be}for?. I am a father of three teenagers, one in college, two in high
school.

When I came to Washington, they were four, five and six. Rais-
ing my own children, my wife, and I also, felt it was very impor-
tant they have a good feeling about themselves, that they have a
sense of dignity and self worth. That is very important.

People have to have that good feeling about themselves. I tell the
story of my sixteen year old son, Paul. When he was about seven
years old, I was tucking him in bed one night, and heard his pray-
ers.

After he finished his formal prayers, he said “I love God, I love
Mommie, I love David, I love, Laura, and I love me.”

That was very important. I went downstairs and told my wife,
that kid is going to make it. That’s very important; that you really
respect yourself.

Obviously, in delivering services, whether it be math, shopping
services, or whether it be meals on wheels, or helping somebody,
praying with them, whatever, in doing that, if you can make them
feel a little better about themselves, that child who has not had
(siuccess before and feels he or she cannot do it, you can help them

o it.
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Or the person who feels life is just nothing, but you can bring
them joy by coming in there, or talking to someone with meals on
wheels as you deliver the meal, by also delivering a nice, kind word
to make them feel they are worth something.

I think that is really important. I think it is extremely impor-
tant. Maybe starting with you, Mrs. Wells, on how do those chil-
dren feel. The rest of you can join in if you have ideas on this. How
do they feel when you show them they can be successful in math?
Does that help them as a person, too, beyond just the skills they
have gained?

Ms. WEeLLS. They feel real good because—first, they didn’t think
they could do it. When you continue to tell them. just take a little
time, well, you add, you try to put your marks down. I have blocks
or soft counters at school, and you let them use those so they will
know how to do these things.

When they find out that they can do it, they are very proud they
are able to go back with the regular class and can perform with the
class, with the teacher, teaching them, that they don’t have to be
with me to do this.

They love to be with me. But when they know they can go back
and perform with the class, it makes them feel real good, because
they they get a better mark on their report card.

It's a better grade average for them and everything.

You try to teach them how to take the words apart, pronounce
the words, recognize their alphabets, their letters, et cetera.

They feel real good.

Mr. KiLDEE. It pains me very often when I go into a supermarket
and you see maybe a mother saying to her child, “You never do
anything right.” That’s child abuse, really. It really is. It’s probably
more abusive than physical abuse. That child begins to feel that I
am not as %ood as others. I can’t get things right. That’s a terrible
thing to tell a child. I think that’s really abusive.

Mr. Nicholas, in acaling with the people you work with, can you
see that you are able to uplift them and make them feel a little
better about themselves?

Mr. NicHoLas. I really do, Congressman. They get a joy out of it
and also, so do I. It is a wonderful feeling when you can help some-
body else that is less fortunate than you are.

I myself am 77 years old, and I can enjoy helping someone that
can’t do for themselves.

Mr. KiLDEE. Very good.

Mrs. Walker, can you talk about some experience perhaps where
you were able to feel someone felt better about themselves?

Mrs. WALKER. Yes, I can. This was at school. The young lady—
well, a little over her age class, we decided to have this program,
and she was asked to recite a poem. Her mother said to me, you
car’t put Margaret on the program because she won'’t speak. She
will m _ybe start, but she will cry. I said why? She said oh, I don’t
know. I said, okay, thank you. I'will try and take care of that for
you.

So I gave Margaret a poem and she said to me, Oh, I don’t be-
lieve I can do that. That’s too long. I said that’s not very long, Mar-
garet. You area big,, . now and you should be 4oing these kind of
things; and I said your mother told me that when you started
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speaking, you would always get up and cry. I said why are you
crying?

She said, Oh, the people make me nervous. I said well, we won't
do that this time. I said I'm going to be back there. I guess I can
say in the wings, and your mother will be out front. Your father
will be out there. All of the friends. I said you are going to speak to
them. And I said now, we are not going to cry and I don’t want to
see you start from that platform, coming down and not say this
piece for me. We rehearsed, went through it.

The night came. Oh, it was beautiful. She did it and everyone
was so happy. Of course, I was bubbling over.

Mr. KiLpek. That is wonderful. You know, I am going to pass on
to Mrs. Unsoeld in a minute here, but when I first got elected
about 25 years ago to the State Legislature, I was in charge of the
prison budget, the prison authorization. I used to visit Jackson
Prison, in Jackson, Michigan, the largest walled prison in the
world. I visited the prisoners a great deal. I began to discover that
most of the prisoners there really did not think much of them-
selves. They didn’t really think they had great worth or that they
had any dignity. You know, if you do not think you are worth any-
t}ﬁing, then you certainly don’t think other people are worth any-
thing.

If you don’t think you have worth or dignity, it is much easier to
steal the other person’s property because they have no worth, dig-
nity or importance; and even take their life. If I am not important,
their life is not important. If you respect yourself, you are much
more likely to respect someone else. If you think you have worth,
your self has dignity, you are more likely to respect the worth and
dignity of someone else.

I concluded most of the people there could take someone else’s
property or life because they didn’t respect themselves and there-
fore did not respect the other person. If we can help pe.ple respect
themselves, not only are they better, but also society is better.

I think you are doing a tremendous job in doing that.

Mrs. Unsoeld.

Ms. UnsoeLD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

What a pleasure it was to have you here today to tell us about
your experiences. As you indicated, Mrs. Wells, there are so often
children today who do not have anyone who are really giving them
that little encouragement and lift. What you all do, the other
people who are doing what you are doing, is so important. You
never know when it is that little bit of encouragement that is going
to have somebody make a major choice in where their life eventu-
ally goes.

Also, the sharing at other moments in our lives, sometimes not
so pleasant, but to have somebody to share it with so the burden is
not so great.

Thank you so much for coming today to lelp inspire us so that
we pick up and do our job better and with more enthusiasm and
thank you for sharing your joy in what you give to others with us.

Thank you.

Mr. KiLpeg. Thank you, Mrs. Unsoeld.

Mr. Poshard.
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Mr. Posnarp. Well, I think all of you exemplify—one of the pray-
ers I always grew up with was Saint Francis of Assisi, when he
said “For it is in giving we receive; for it is in understanding that
we are understood; it is in loving that we are loved.”

I think all of you exemplify that. When I look out across our soci-
ety today and see all the people that are out there that are kind of
in the shadows of life, the homeless, the dispossessed, the disabled,
and the way some people tend to look at that part of our society
and those people as being almost drawbacks, almost dredges upon
society, to tax our resources and our energies and everything else. I
think you people, as all of us, should kind of look upon those folks
as real opportunities to validate ourselves. I think the Lord does
give us those folks, not just to help them, but to help us so that we
understand a little more about what life is really about.

I think you people do that very well, more than any of the rheto-
ric. I just thank you.

Ms. Wells, I'll tell you, as Chairman Kildee said, I have a 15 year
old and a 21 year old now. I missed half their lives being in this
business. I would have loved for you to have been their teacher.

Ms. WEeLLs. Thank jou. I wanted to say something else. It has
given me a great pleasure to be here today. This is an opportunity
that I have never had, and I know I will probably never have it
again. So I want all of you to know it was well appreciated, and
thank you so much for the invitation.

Now I can go back to Richmond and tell them what wonderful
people I met. May God bless all of you. I wish you just all the best.
You all pray for me that I may continue to do what I am doing. I
am asking the Lord to use me where he needs me, because I don’t
know what his intentions are for me. As long as I am able, I am
going to continue to go on.

Thank you so much.

Ms. WALKER. May I say one thing? I am so happy to be here also.
I have not been to one of these sessions. I guess I thought it is all
right for me to go. When I told them yes, like I do always when
they call me for any other thing, you just forget the word no, I
think. But this was very beautiful. I am glad to have met all of you
wonderful people.

Thank you.

Mr. NicHoLas. ( just want to say I thank you, too, because this is
my first experience of thic. It has been a wonderful experience.
Thank God for it.

[Applause.]

Mr. KiLDEE. Let rae say this. The proceedings of this hearing will
become part of the archives of the United States. They will be
printed up and permanently kept in the Library of Congress. As a
matter of fact, in case we do not have the wisdom to keep the
peace, which I pray to God we do have the grace to keep the peace,
we even put extra copies of the archives of the United States, in-
cluding what has been said here today, your very words, buried in
the mountains in Maryland. So a thousand years from now, histori-
ans reading those records, can read something about this society.
They are going to read that Joseph Nicholas and Jenny Walker
made Washington, D.C. a better place in which to live and that
Edith Wells made Richmond, Virginia a better place in which to
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live and that all three of you made this world a better place in
which to live.

Thank you very much. God bless you.
The hearing stands adjourned.

{Whereupon, at 12:45 p.m., the hearing was adjourned, subject to
the call of the chair.]

[Additional material submitted for the record follows:]
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COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
US HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
320 CANNON HOUSE OFFICL BU LOING
WASHINGTON OC 20515

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

February 27, 193

Ms. Donna M. Alvarado, Director
ACTION

806 Conneczicut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20525

Dear Ms. Alvarado-

Thank you for your testimony at the Subcomaittee's February 24, 1989 hearing
on the reauthcrization of the Older Azerican Volunteer Programs. In order to
further complete the hearing record I would appre.iate your answering the
following questions.

1) During the 1987 reauthorization of the Older Azericans Act, a new Title
L1, part D was included to provide i{n-home services to the frail elderly.
Have any efforts been undetrtaken o encoutage state agencies on aging to
involve Senior Companion and RSVP voluntewrs in providing services to
the frail elderly under this provision?

2

~

Can you provide the Subcomzmittee with any information conc~rning
partnerships developed on the local level that involve Senior Companion ot
RSVP volunteers in the new part D program’

3

~

Please explain the interagency agreezents that cutreatly exist between
ACTION and other federal agencies. When ACTION enters into agrcements
with other agencies, do the other agencies contribute funds to support
volunteers?

&4

~

Could you describe how the public/private partaerships between ACTION and
8. Dalton Booksellers, and ACTION and Exxon caxse about? Have these i{ssue
specific initiatives been successful’

S

~

In {ts FY 1990 budget subnission, ACTION requests funds for coumunicatiun
purposes: $20,000 for the Foster Grandparents program, $20,000 for the
Senior Cocpanions program, and $43,000 for RSVP. How will these funds be
used’

® Why are these funds being requested from the program account rather than
the administration account as it has been in previons years?
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Ms. Donna M. Alvarado
February 17, 1989
Page 2

* If these funds come out of the prvgran account will this result i{n fewer
volunteers?

6

Since the challenge grant program was initiated, how many such grants have
been pade? What have they been for? Do these initiatives continue once
the challenge grant has run out” In cases where the initiative {g
continued, where does this funding coze from?

-

What {s the current administrative structure for RSVP, Senior Companions
and Foster Grandparents? Does each progra@ have its own director? Lf
not, why not?

8) RSVP received a $225,000 dollar increase for FY 1989, How have these
funds been allocated” If they have been allocated, please provide for the
record a breakdown of where these funds were allocated, and in what
anounts.

9

The Foster Grandparent program received an additional $1.484 million in
new funds for FY 1989. How have these funds been allocated” Lf they have
been allocated, please provide for the recocd a breakdouwn of where these
funds were allocated, and in what agounts.

10) The Senior Companton program received an additional $2.014 nmillion
increase for FY 1989. How have these funds been allocated? If they have
been allocated, please provide for the record a breakdown of where these
funds were allocated, and in wnat amounts.

I

Please provide the Subcommittee with information detailing the amount of
federal funds awarded to grantees on an {ndividual basis each year since
1982 and the amounts allowed for administrative expenses at each project
for each of :hose years.

It would be greatly appreczated if you would respond in writing to the
following questions by March 14, 1989. Your cooperation {n providing this
fnformation is greatly appreciated. This letter, your written response and
acy additional {nformation you provide will be made part of the printed
hearing record.

Sincerely,

Dale E. Kildee
Chairman
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ACTION

WASHINGTON, D C. 20525

OFFICE OF
THE DIRECTOR

March 15, 1989

Honorable Dale E. Kildee
Chairman

Committee on Education and Labor
U. 5. House of Representatives
320 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

In response to your letter of February 27, 1989, I am pleased
to provide the enclosed responses to your eleven questions.

Sincerely,

»917“”4 2 (legia b

Donna M. Alvarado

Enclosur

FOSTER GRANDPARENT P IGRAM o YOUNG VOLUNTEERS IN ACTION * SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM
RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROGRA:n ® OFFICE OF VOLUNTARISM INITIATIVES » VOLUNTEER DRUG USE PREVENTION PROGRAM
VISTA © NATIONAL CENTER FOR SERVICE LEARNING
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House Suuc¢uamittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Questaion

Question 1

Mr. Kildee: During the 1987 reauthorization of the Older
American Act, a new Title III, part D was
included to provide in-home services to the frail
elderly. Have any efforts been undertaken to
encourage state agencies on aging to involve
Senior Companion and RSVP Volunteers in providing
services to the frail elderly under thas
provision?

Ms. Alvarado: The 1987 Older Americans Act Amendments
appropriated $4.8 million for in-home gervices
for the frail elderly. AOA allocates these funds
among State Offices on Aging through formula
grants based on census estimates of the 60 +
population i1n each state.

ACTION has coordinated implementation through
efforts of its regional offices. As a result,

state funds totallang $200,945 have been

awarded through AAAs to SCP projects in Michigan,
Alaska, Washington, and Oregon for respite care

and other services. Idaho SCPs have received $8,944
in Title 3A AQA respite care funds, and $30,000

1n state revenue sharing funds is utilized by
Florida SCP projects for respite care.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Question 2
Mr. Kildee:

Ms. Alvarado:

ERIC
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Can you provide the Subcommittee with any
information concerning partnerships developed on
the local level that involve Senior Companion or
RSVP volunteers in the new part D program?

State revenue sharing, AOA categorical grants
and state appropriated funds have been channeled
to SCP projects in several states for respite
care activaties. Examples include:

1) $30,000 in state revenue sharing to SCP
projects in Florada.

2) $8,944 in Title 3A AOA respite care funds
to Idaho SCP projects.

3) $94,945 in state funds through AAAs in
Alaska, Washington and Oregon to SCP projects.

4) Michigan State Agency on Aging has
channelled $106,000 to the Detroit SCP to
support SCP/Respite Care services in the area.

Also, 24,860 RSVP volunteers are providing
3,800,000 hours in long term care services to
at-rask older persons. These are directed
primarily to chronically homebound clients
affiliated with Area Agencies on Aging.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Question 3

Mr. Kildee: Please explain the interagency agreements that
currently exist between ACTION and other federal
agencies. When ACTION enters into agreements
with other agencies, do the other agencies
contrabute funds to support volunceers?

Ms. Alvarado: ACTION currently has three interagency
agreements with other Federal agencies
1nvolving one or more of the Older American
Volunteer Programs.

The Agreement with the veterans
Administration, signed June 23, 1988,
prometes the use of Senior Companions and
RSVP volunteers to provide in-home services.
including respite care, to veterans.
Currently 179 Senior Companions are serving
625 veterans in 31 projects. Eleven of
these projects received two year seed grants
from ACTION. Three RSVP projects receaived
one year seed grants and are presently
recruiting and placing volunteers.

In December 1988, ACTION and the Department
of Defense signed an agreement to facilitate
expansion of FGP volunteer service to
handicapped and special needs children on
military installations co-locatea with
existing FGP projects. Several projects
have been placing volunteers in such
settings for several years. We anticipate
that expansion will be supported by local
DOD facilities funding resources.

ACTION and the National Ccmm ssion on
Libraries and Information £° <nce entered
into a Memorandum of Understanding (MU) 1in
March 1986. Specific OAVP activity was
developed in April 1988 to imrlement the

MU. The RSVP Intergeneratiocnal Library
Assistance Program places RSVP volunteers to
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(Question 3 continued)

Ms. Alvarado:

assist labrary staff to develop and implement
programs for the increasing number of unattended
school children using the library during after
school hours. Fourteen RSVP projects receaved
one year seed grants from ACTION to demonstrate
this concept. oOver 250 volunteers are currently
serving.

The three current agreements do not involve a
transfer of funds between agencies. Several
agreements in the past, including Head Start and
Office of Juvenile Just:ice Delinquency
Prevention, did involve the transfer of funds
from these agencies to ACTION.

A
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow=-up Question

Question 4

Mr. Kildee: Could you describe how the public/private
partnerships between ACTION and B. Dalton
Booksellers, and ACTION and Exxon came about?
Have these specific i1nitiatives been
successful?

Ms. Alvarado: ACTION/B Dalton Booksellers

The ACTION Office of Voluntarism Initiatives
awarded a demonstration grant under Title I of
the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973, as
amended, to support the use of existing private
sector programs and generate new volunteer
resources for the expansion of quality literacy
services in urban areas. ACTION's contribution
was $250,000 which was matched with the B.
Dalton's $100,000 and Gannett's $159,000. The
funds were used to make awards to Laubach for the
two-fold purpose of (1) providing literacy seed
grants (subgrants) to RSVP projects on a
competitive basis and (2) providing technical
assistance to all RSVP projects interested 1n
adult lateracy.

Over the three-year period of the RSVP Literacy
Project, Laubach awarded 94 subgrants ranging from
$2,000 - $5,000 to 71 RSVP projects throughout

the country. The RSVP subgrantees generated

3,363 volunteers working in adult literacy. The
volunteers tutored 4,265 adult learners.

Laubach also developed the National RSVP Literacy
Network as a means of disseminating information
about adult lateracy. Sixty-three percent of
RSVP's 750 projects (469 projects) chose to
participate i1n the Network.




(Question 4 continued)

In connection with this, as well as sending out
regular mailings and providing telephone
technical assistance, Laubach:

0 Wrote the Literacy Guidebook for the Naticnal
RSVP Literacy Projects, a 60-page manual based
upon the problem-solving experience of RSVP
project directors involved in adult literacy;

o Developed (and revised annually) tle National
Literacy Resource Directory for RSVP Projects;

o Produceé¢ "Making a Difference", a l4-minute
video orientation tape for RSVP literacy
volunteers.

Laubach also provided literacy training at 19
ACTION Regional and State OAVP training events;
and made presentations regarding the RSVP Literacy
Project at 11 nationally-based conferences.

Beyond the specifics of adult literacy, however,
this collaboration has demonstrated how
creatively and constructively public and private
resources can be whe. applied to an area of
shared national concern.

ACTION/EXXON - ACTION has encouraged RSVP project
directors for several years to expand the
recruitment of male volunteers through a greater
number of volunteers stations needing highly
skilled volunteers. As a result of discussions
with the National Association of RSVP Program
Directors and the New York City RSVP Project
Director, a joint effort was 1nitiated to match
ACTION funding waith that of the Exxon

Corporation to conduct a pilot study to test
various approaches to recruiting large numbers of
male volunteers. The Exxon Corporation provaided
$30,000 and ACTION matched the sum for a total
$60,000. Subsequently thirteen RSVP projects
received funding for this effort. The final
report from the sponsor will be submitted to
ACTION shortly. Preliminary data indicate that
over 1,000 male volunteers were recruited and
placed.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Questaion 5
Mr. Kildee:

Ms. Alvarado:

O

ERIC
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In 1ts FY 1990 budget submission, ACTION requests
funds for communication purpose: $20,000 for the
Foster Grandparent Program; $20,000 for the
Senior Companions Program; and $43,000 for RSVP.
How will these funds be used?

* Why are these funds being requested from the
program account rather than the administration
account as 1t has been in previous years?

* If these funds come out of the program account
w1ll this result in fewer volunteers?

Prior budget submissions included the
communication totals in the line item "training
and technical assistance™. For the FY 1990
submission, the Agency decided to display these
amounts in two categories, “training and technical
assistance®™ and "communications."

Items included in the communications item are
program specific recruitment pmaterials, flyers,
posters, films, and videos. Funds are utilized for
the desaign, production, duplication and
distribution to local projects. Such items have
always been requested from the program account.

The communication item 1s estimated praor to the
beginning of the fiscal year and monitored
throughout. Funds are not diverted from the
grants 1item, unless they are identified as
unexpended funds due to slow start up of new
projects, staff turnover, etc. Direct support of
volunteers 1s not reduced.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources ~ Follow-up Question

Question 6

Mr. Kildee: Since the Challenge Grant Program was initiated,
how many such grants have been made? wWhat have
they been for? Do these initiatives continue
once the Challenge Grant has run out? In cases
where the initiative 1s continued, where does
this funding come from?

Ms. Alvarado: As of FY 87, a total of 59 OAVP challenge grants
have been awarded. Each OAVP challenge grant
has been awarded for a three-year period. At the
end of the second year, each grantee 1s required
to have raised 50% of the total ACTION award.
For the fourth and succeeding years, each grant
1s expected to be supported totally wath
non~ACTION funds.

In FY 1988 14 (three-year) FGP challenge grants
were awarded with approximately $503,400 in
program funds.

In FY 1987 the following challenge grants were funded:
1) FGP - 32 grants $1,280,000
2) scp - 13 grants § 681,500

These grants will be completing their second year

of operation this fiscal year. A survey of thear
accomplishments will be conducted at the end of thas
fiscal year.

All challenge grants are awarded to existing
projects that are expected to generate local

funds to support the grants when ACTION funding 1is
terminated at the end of the third year.

(|
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources ~ Follow-up Question

Question 7

Mr. Rildee: What is the current administrative structure for
RSVP, Senior Companions and Foster Grandparents:
Does each program have its own director? If not,
why not?

Ms. Alvarado: In 1987, the Agency staff was realigned in order
to be able to absorb a reduction from 511 FTE to
448 FTE. At the same time, headquarters staffing
levels were further reduced in order to £ill
critical vacancies in the field. Efficiencies
were therefore realized across the board in
headquarters staffing. Within the OAVP Division,
the three branches of FGP, SCP, and RSVP were
combined into the two current branches of RSVP
and FGP/SCP.

The direction of the two stipended programs by a

single Program Officer is effective because “he
administrative structure of both programs is samilar
and many administrative policy determinations cross-cut
both programs.

The programs have operated as efficiently as
before, as well as producing fiscal savings as a
result of the elimination of a third distinct
branch. This factor is especial'y significant in
view of continued reductions in headquarters
staffing subsequent to the 1987 reorganization,
due to constrained program support budgets in

FY 88 and FY 89.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Question 8

Mr. Kildee: RSVP received a $225,000 dollar increase for FY
1989. How have these funds been allocated? If
they have been allocated, please provide for the
record a breakdown of where these funds were
allocated, and in what amounts.

Ms. Alvarado: The $£259,000 increase in RSVP in FY 1989 will be
allocated to finance new volunteers in currently
underrepresented geographical areas in Region IV
(Southeast U.S.).

ol
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Question 9

Mr. Kildee: The Foster Grandparent Program received an
additional $1.484 million in new funds for FY
1989. How have these funds been allocatea? If
they have been allocated, please provide for the
record a breakdown of where these funds were
allocated, and in what amounts.

Ms. Alvarado: The total amount of additional funding will be
used to support approximately 10 new FGP projects
in FY 1989.

Seven new grants have already been awarded in the
1st quarter. “The remaining grants should be in
place in the 3rd quarter.

The Agency targeted allocation of these new firnds
to Region IV and VI (Southeast and Southcentral
U.S.) which have been underfunded in FGP. Prior
to thas funding increase, Region IV was 5.3% and
Region IV 1.5% below their shares of national
funding based on the Resource Allocation Formula.

With the additional funding allocated to these two

regions in FY 1989, Region IV 1s now only 2.1%
under. and Region VI remains the same.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Question 10
Mr. Kildee:

Ms. Alvarado:

ERIC
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The Senior Companion Program received an
additional $2.014 million increase for FY year
1989. How have these funds been allocated? If
they have been allocated, please provide for the
record a breakdown of where these funds were
allocated, and in what amounts.

The increased SCP appropriation will be uysed to

fund at full annualized level the 44 new SCP
projects started in FY 1988. The amount required
for full annualization is $1.871 million. Plans for
the use of the remaining $159,600 are now being
developed.
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House Subcommittee on Human Resources - Follow-up Question

Question 1!

Mr. Kildee: Please provide the Subcommittee with
information detailing the amount of Federal
funds awarded to grantees on an individual
basis each year since 1982 and the amounts
allowed for administrative expenses at each
project for each of those years.

Ms. Alvarado: Attached you will find a listing of grants
by program for fiscal years 1984, 1985, 1986,
1987, and 1988. The column entitled "Support"
represents administrative expenses, and the
column entitled "Budget" equals the Federal
award.

The requested information for 1982 and 1983
is unavailable.

Submitted == erials retained in Subcommittee files.
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February 24, 1989

TESTIMONY BEFOKE
THE COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

Mr. Chairman, I want to commend you and the rank:ng minority
Member, Mr. Tauke, for holding these hearings on the

reauthorization of the Domestic Volunteer Service Act (DVSA).

As you know, volunteerism has had & long and proud tradition
throughout American history. Thus, 1t 1s fitting that Congress
nas sought to foster that tradition through 1ts pport for

ACTION, established by the DVSA.

While there are many aspects of ACTION which the subcommri ttee
will be reviewing, I would like to address my remarks to the
Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), which has made such a
significant contribution to our communities. As you are aware,
RSVP provides the opportunity for retired persons to give therr

volunteer services 1n various settings.

For example, RSVP volunteers have provided assistance to
orthopedically handicapped children, to homebound tndividuatls
needing shopping assistance or friendly visiting, to families

needing respite care, and to refugees 1n need of literacy

91
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training. One program in Lewiston, daine, 1s & neighborhood
after-school program which provides activities 1n a supervised
setting for children under 12, As you can see, RSVP programs

serve & vartety of community needs.

Thus, when I heard sbout the growing problem of latchkey children
in libraries because of a lack of adequate afterschool programs,
I began to wonder :f we might not turn this situation to an

advantage.

As you know, many working families are struggling to find
adequate, affordable day care for their children. With the
average annual cost of care totaling $3,000 per chitd, finding
quality care can be an impossible task. Currently, 2.1 million
children, ages 5 tc 13 years, regularly spend some period of time

without adult supzrvision afterschool.

Libraries, since the turn of the century, have made a conmitment
to serving the needs of cnildren, Nothing, however, has prepared
them to deal with tne deluge of unsupervised children who, on &
regular Sasis, are spending extended periods of time in the

library because of a lacx of day care.

In May, 1988, the American Library Association 1rndicated that
"what to do with and about Iibrary 'latchkey ehildren' 1 s become
one of the most rapidly developing public library policy

arenas." Exemplifying that problem, the report cited the

»re
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Brooklyn Public Library which has 100 or more unettended children
a day; and Los Angeles County which 1n 1985 found about 2,000
children a day whose parents used the libraries as an afterschool

center.

In places as disparate as Illinois, lexas and Oregon, librarians
are trying to cope with a problem tnat 1s really & community
problem -- how shall we care for our children and who shall be

responsible.

One solution I have proposed 1s the Intergenerational Library
Literacy Act. This legislution relies on older volunteers who
will work with libraries interested 1n developing afterschool
literacy and reading skills programs for latchkey children.
Additionally, older volunteers, through pregram ard example, will

stress positive images of aging.

Support for this bill has been widespread. Indeed, 1t was at the
reconmendation of the President of the National Association of
RSVY Divectors that I 1ncludea the concept of "Programs of
National Significance" 1n order to permit RSVP to better direct
volunteers into these library programs 1f such programs meet the
needs of the comnunity. In this w~ay, RS\P could provide 8 core

of volunteers upon which libraries could ouild their programs.
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In keeping with the notion of better targeting RSVP resources, I
will also be 1ntroducing a bill that includes two other areas of
"national significance" -- respite care services for caregivers

and monitors for guardianship programs.

As you know, 1n December, 1988 a study by ACTION found both RSVP
and Senior Companion Program (SCP) volunteers offered respite
services to caregivers. RSVP volunteers were found to spend
about 15 percent of their time 1n providing services to family
caregivers. Most organizations surveyed who receirved RSVP and
SCP help indicated that without these volunteers, "they either
could not operate or would have to curtail respite activities".
Volunteers were found to derive a sense of satisfaction from
providing respite services because they were aware of the value
of allowing caregivers the opportunity to take breaks from their

caregiving activities.

Unfortunately, the study found that large numbers of caregivers
are wait-listed and tnat the insufficient supply of volunteers
was a principal resons for limitations on respite care. For this
reason, establishing respite care as a targeted program may help

to provide greater emphasis on services to caregivers.

Finally, we are all aware of the problems that abound i1n the
guardianship programs. Wards are i1ndividuals whose legal rights,
dee:s onmaning authority, and possessions have been transferred

to the control of a guardian or conscrvator based on a judgment

1o
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that the ward is no longer able to take care of these natters.
Today, as many as 500,000 adults may have been made wards under
court guardianship or conservatorship programs. While guardians
can protect the well-being of those incapable of protecting
themselves, the current fragmented system provides few safeguards

to wards.

The idea of guardian advocates to monitor guardianship orograms
was first addressed in legislation I introduced 1n the last
Congress and which was reintroduced 1n January. Advocates can be
trained by the courts to explain what wards can expect from the
court system, to provide support, and in general serve as the
eyes and ears of the court system's monitoring process, I
believe that RSVP volunteers could serve as a cadre around which

to develop a program of volunteer advocates.

I want to urge the Subconmittee to consider these proposals as
ones which, although not binding on any community, will permit
the idea of these intergenerational library programs, respite
care programs and guardianship monitoring programs to develop and

grow. [ believe 1t 1s 1n the best interests of us all.

As the population ages, there will continue to be an i1ncreasingly
large number of older adults who seek meaningful opportunities
for contributing to society outside of paid employment. Older
volunteers bring with them & lifetime of experience which wmany

are ecager to share.
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I want to thank the Subcommittee for the opportunity to provide

testimony on the DVSA and the new concept of "Programs of

National Significance".
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